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By integrating consumer-friendly choices
and quality measurement into new health plan
benefit designs, PacifiCare has been recognized as
an industry leader in health care innovations.

%

March, 2004 — Award for Excellence and
Innovation in Value Purchasing from The National
Business Group on Health for our SignatureValue

Advantage program, a tiered benefit design
for our HMO network.
#*

January, 2004 — Health Financing Innovator
Award from the Foundation for Accountability,
for Quality Index” profiles.

*

November, 2003 — 2003 Innovators Award
sponsored by the Health Insurance Association
of America, National Underwriter and Witt/Keifer,
for efforts in developing innovative projects,
programs and services.

*

October 2003 — Best Disease Management Program
award from the Disease Management Association of

America, for our Medicare+Choice programs.
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For example:

HealthCredits™ is an innovative
program designed to reward our
members who take steps to improve
their health through better diet,
exercise, or lifestyle choices, or

by using one of PacifiCare’s health
care tools such as the online

Health Risk Assessmen




Dr. Sam Ho

Senior Vice President & “

Chief Medical Officer

Creator of the
HealthCredits™ program
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HealthCredits™ is the latest in a
line of programs from PacifiCare
designed to give consumers the ability
to control their own health care.
Credits toward prizes, or even increased
member health care benefits, can be
received for such actions as sustained
enrollment in one of our disease
management programs or participation

in a regular exercise plan.
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TO' help consumers ’ﬁiéke the
choices that are right for them, during
2003 we introduced our Quality Index®
Profile of Hospitals, which contains more
than 55 measures related to appropriate
care, patient safety, satisfaction and

length of stay. This new tool complements

the Quality Index® Profile of

Physician Organizations we have

published since 1998.
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Jeff Adams

Director of Product

Development

Coordinated development
of the Self-Directed
Health Plan
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PacifiCare’s Self-Directed

h Plan is our newest cor

€Ts arn
able combination of funds in a

self-directed account (SDA) with

additional PPO coverage. And.

unused amounts in the SDA can

be rolled forward to the next year.




In addition to PacifiCare’s unique
Self-Directed Health Plans, with our
Select Hospital Plan and Value Network
. programs we pioneered new concepts
that give employers and consumers
lower cost alternatives through a hospital
tiering structure and an optional

narrower network of providers.
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These types of products provide
members with flexibility and
choice as they continue to take on
increasing responsibility for the
cost of their specific health care

needs and decisions.

Paul Hastings

PaciliCare




A Solution for Caregivers pro-
vides support for the one-in-four
Americans who are currently caring
for an aging relative or friend. By
offering access to geriatric experts,
personalized research on commu-
nity and government programs,
legal referrals and geriatric care
management, this program is
designed to improve the produc-

tivity of employee—caregivers.
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oG . Janet Boling

Director of Senior
Product Development

Developed A Solution

for Caregivers
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control costs, but also i

prove th quality

of life for our seniors by managing chronic
conditions and reducing hospital stays.

In addition to A Solution for Caregivers, we
have expanded our portfolio of products
and services to include Medicare Supplement
plans; our Frail Elderly program and
a fully insured stand-alone senior

prescription drug card.
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Russ Bennett
Director of Latino
Health Solutions

Led the creation of Latino
Health Solutions




Latino Health Solutions is a set
of health and consumer programs
and services tailored to meet the
unique needs of the more than 20%
of our membership with a Latino
or Hispanic heritage. These pro-
grams include bilingual resources
such as a Spanish language website

zmd customer service number.
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As we continue to look at,

communicate with and respond to

our diverse membership, PacifiCare
is striving to develop products and services
that make it easier for our customers
to meet their unique health care needs.
In 2002 we introduced a set of programs

and services specifically designed for

women, including our Quality Index®

~ﬂ omprise
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specific to female patients.




And, along with the Latino
Health Solutions programs currently \
available, we are developing a similar

program for our African American

members that will focus —h—tgh

or most significant causes of

-3

illness among members in this

portion of our population.




PacifiCare’s increased earnings and cash flow have been used primarily to reduce
debt and increase excess statutory capital, which have contributed to a significant
increase in the market value of our common stock.

Net Income EPS Free Cash Flow' ‘
(in millions) (in millions) ‘
2003 2003 2003
$243 $3.04 $257

2002+
$1.98
2002* 2002*
$139 $156
2001
$90
2001
2001
$19 $0.27
|
!
|
i
|
Debt to Equity Excess Statutory Capital Stock Appreciation i
(in millions) (split adjusted) \
5
2002 2003 2003 ﬁ
39% $609 $33.80 !

2002
$375
2000 2001
2g% 200!
28% 00 2000 $276
225%3 $218
2002
$14.05
2000 200!
$v.50 $8.00

I. Free Cash Flow is defined as net income plus depreciation and amortization less capital expenditures.

* Excludes a non-cash charge in connection with the adoption of FAS 142 related to the amortization of goodwill.




To our stockholders

As PacifiCare celebrated its 25th anniversary, 2003 was a
year marked by significant events culminating with the
completion of the company’s turnaround. The strategic plan
launched early in 2001 was embraced by all of our employ-
ees, and served as the road map to the successes we are proud
to share with you in this report. After three years of trans-
forming our business model, strengthening our balance sheet
and developing new product lines, we have stabilized the
company, enhanced profitability and positioned PacifiGare
to enter 2004 as a growth company once again.

Operating results for 2003 reflected the continued
success of our efforts on many fronts to revitalize and
strengthen the company. Net income increased 74% year-
over-year (excluding the effect of the adoption in 2002 of
FAS 142 related to the amortization of goodwill) and cash
flow from operations was up 71%. The company’s medical
loss ratio improved by 280 basis points over 2002 as we
continued to, among other actions, appropriately price our
products and reap benefits from our award-winning disease
management programs. We also continued to strengthen the
balance sheet through several capital market transactions,
including an early debt payment of $175 million, resulting
in a 36% reduction in the company’s debt-to-equity ratio
and improved credit ratings. And, signaling an important
milestone, for the first time in three years we saw an increase
in commercial membership in the third and the fourth
quarters of 2003.

On June 6th, 18 years to the day that PacifiCare first
began trading on NASDAQ), the company transferred its
listing to the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE). The goal
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was to benefit from the NYSE’s auction market structure by
improving the liquidity in our stock while reducing the
volatility in its price.

At the end of the year, PacifiCare’s stock price was up
141% from the end of 2002. This not only led our peers
for 2003, but also came on top of a 76% increase in stock
price the prior year. As a result of this significant price
appreciation the Board of Directors approved a 2-for-I
split of the company’s common stock, which is intended to
further enhance liquidity by making the stock available to a
wider range of potential investors.

Perhaps the most significant event for PacifiCare during
2003 was Congress’s passage of the Medicare Prescription
Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act (MMA). Having
been involved with Medicare since 1982, and as one of the
first managed care companies in the country to obtain a
Medicare Risk license in 1985, PacifiCare’s history has been
shaped to a large extent by its participation in this pro-
gram. And, as the largest publicly owned Medicare HMO
in the country, we are still impacted significantly by the
structure and effectiveness of this program. With the pas-
sage of MMA, Congress has revitalized what had been an
outdated program that would have been incapable of
handling the strain of the 30 million Americans who will
become eligible for Medicare over the next 10 years. The
intent of the bill is to increase HMO reimbursements for
the Medicare+Choice program to a level that is equal with
the government’s fee-for-service program, allowing us to
increase benefits to our members and payments to our pro-

viders. In 2006, it also adds a very important prescription

PacifiCare




drug benefit for seniors. This means that in 2006 PacifiCare
will begin receiving reimbursement from the government
for a drug benefit that the company has been providing to
most of its members for many years. While the changes to
the Medicare+Choice program are sure to attract new
competition, we feel PacifiCare is better positioned than
its peers as we head into 2004. Over the last several years
many managed care companies exited most or all of the
counties in which they previously offered Medicare+Choice,
dismantling their provider networks and marketing pro-
grams. However, PacifiCare’s strategy was to remain in as
many counties as possible, while maintaining our well-estab-
lished provider networks as well as our internal support
functions. The company is also working to take advantage
of new opportunities to provide disease management and
prescription drug management services for the modernized
Medicare program.

While these new opportunities in Medicare will provide
additional areas of growth for PacifiCare, it does not mean
that we have changed the company’s long term strategy. We
can now move away from a managed phase-down of our
participation in the program and toward managed growth.
However, our intent is to continue focusing on the diver-
sification of our products and services so that we are never
again as reliant on one partner and revenue stream as we
were on the government in the past.

A key focus has been improving our commercial gross
margin, which increased 34% over 2002, and is up more
than 70% in the past two years. An important step toward

future expansion was the development of a proprietary

PacifiCare
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preferred provider organization (PPO) network that now

offers more than 32,000 new physicians that we believe is
large enough to meet the desires of brokers and providers
searching for an alternative to Blue Cross/Blue Shield Plans.
Though still a relatively small portion of our total medical
membership, we were pleased to see PPO membership grow
by 144% during 2003. We continued to be pioneers of
new consumer-aligned products as we launched our self-
directed health plan (SDHP). Introduced in August,
enrollment in this new product already exceeded 23,000
in just 6 months, and broker and customer enthusiasm
continues to build. We also broadened our emphasis on
market segments. While traditionally a leader in the mid-
and large-group HMO markets, we worked to expand our
small group membership and also launched a new PPO
product for individual customers. The result of this new
focus was an increase in individual and small group sales of
more than 200% in 2003.

On the senior side, our expanding portfolio of products
includes Medicare Supplement plans, our Caregiver pro-
gram and a fully insured, stand-alone senior prescription
drug card. In the first quarter of 2004 we launched a new
frail elderly program, called SecureAdvantage, that provides
primary and preventive care specifically to Medicare bene-
ficiaries who reside in skilled-nursing facilities.

Part of our success in regaining positive membership
momentum in the second half of 2003 was attributable to
our increased advertising and branding campaigns. The in-
creased expenditures in this area were a factor contributing

to a GO basis point rise in selling, general & administrative
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(SG&A) costs as a percent of revenue during the year.
However, the result was an award-winning advertising
campaign that increased unaided brand recognition among
non-members by 75% during the year.

Finally, we continued to see an increased contribution
from our specialty companies, which generated total revenues
that were 18% higher than last year. Our pharmacy benefit
management company, Prescription Solutions, continues to
make a name for itself, expanding its footprint nationally
and confirming its strength in the industry, as its member-
ship unaffiliated with PacifiCare grew by 436,000, or 27%,
during the year. And, we’re studying the potential benefits
of participating in the administration of the new Medicare
prescription drug program that starts in 2006.

While our successes in 2003 were many, we still have
work to do as we continue towards our goal of becoming the
leading consumer health organization and the preeminent
full-service senior company in the country. It’s important
that we continue to gain traction in an increasingly com-
petitive commercial business, not only through the new

products and services launched over the last two years, but

Sincerely,

%w/ﬁ iteid.

Howard G. Phanstiel
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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also from an expanded presence in the individual and small
group market segments. We must also continue to expand
our portfolio of senior products as well as increase the
unaffiliated membership in our pharmacy benefit manage-
ment and behavioral health companies.

All of this must occur even as we take advantage of the
new opportunities for growth in Medicare+Choice.
Managed growth must be the watchword in Medicare,
where we have the opportunity to leverage our knowledge
and experience, using our existing provider network and
sales force to get a jump in 2004 on what is sure to be
increased competition in 2005 and beyond. But managed
growth must also be the philosophy for our commercial
business, as we seek to continue to increase membership
while maintaining margins through disciplined pricing.

In some respects, 2003 was almost magical. With the
new challenge of nurturing and building on our recent
momentum, PacifiCare is a revitalized company whose
employees have a new sense of optimism as we continue to
deliver on our brand promise, "Caring is Good, Doing

Something is Better.”

David A. Reed

Lead Independent Director

PacifiCare
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Annual Meeting
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Paul Newman (left) with PacifiCare Chairman and CEQ Howie
Phanstiel and a group of young dreamers at a brunch sponsored by

the I Have a Dream Foundation.
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PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Introduction

We offer managed care and other health insurance products to employer groups and Medicare
beneficiaries primarily in eight Western states and Guam. Our commercial and senior plans are
designed to deliver quality health care and customer service to members cost-effectively. These
programs include health maintenance organizations, or HMOs, preferred provider organizations, or
PPOs, and Medicare Supplement products. We also offer a variety of specialty managed care
products and services that employees can purchase as a supplement to our basic commercial and
senior medical plans or as stand-alone products. These products include pharmacy benefit
management, or PBM, services, behavioral health services, group life and health insurance and dental
and vision benefit plans. As of December 31, 2003, we had approximately 2.9 million HMO and
other commercial and senior product members and approximately 9.4 million members in our PBM,
dental and behavioral plans, including both members covered by our commercial or senior HMOs,
and members who are unaffiliated with our HMOs.

We were formed in 1996 as a Delaware corporation and are the successor to a California corporation
that was formed in 1983 and reincorporated as a Delaware corporation in 1985. Our principal
executive offices are located at 5995 Plaza Drive, Cypress, California 90630, and our telephone
number is (714) 952-1121.

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on

Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports that we file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC, are currently available free of charge to the general public through our website
at www.pacificare.com. These reports are accessible on our website after being filed with the SEC.
These reports are also available at the SEC’s public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the public reference
room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains a website at www.sec.gov that
contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file
electronically with the SEC.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains both historical and forward-looking information. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and

“Cautionary Statements” for a description of a number of factors that could adversely affect our
results.

Business Strategy

Our mission is to create long-term stockholder value as a consumer health organization committed to
making people’s lives healthier and more secure. Our strategy to achieve this mission is to continue
the innovative expansion of our health care services portfolio, increase membership in our
commercial and specialty businesses, and maintain and grow our Medicare+Choice business. We
intend to accomplish this by taking advantage of opportunities in some markets to compete with the
standard government Medicare program for new members, and by aligning our organization to meet
the financial, health and wellness needs of our members.

We believe that employers and consumers desire innovative health care products that provide flexible
network benefit design and financing components. We are continuing to design and offer new
products such as our self-directed health plan product, a low cost plan which offers incentives to
consumers to help contain costs through a broad based PPO network, as well as tiered network
products and value network products that allow consumers to make trade-offs based upon breadth of
network, quality measures and costs.



We operate one of the largest Medicare+Choice programs in the United States and we have used
our long experience in working with seniors to operate our program cost-effectively in what was a
declining Medicare funding environment. On December 8, 2003, the President signed the new
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003, or DIMA, into law. This
law increases the Medicare+Choice reimbursement payment formula, creates a prescription drug
discount card program in 2004-2005 and establishes a new Part D Medicare prescription drug benefit
beginning in 2006. With the changes in Medicare funding, we expect to be able to improve our
competitive position in Medicare+Choice beginning in 2004 for the following reasons:

» Increased government funding under the newly enacted DIMA legislation allows us to improve
previously reduced benefits and reduce member premiums, co-payments and deductibles;

* Enhanced benefits, such as prescription drugs and lower out-of-pocket payments, should also make
our Medicare+Choice HMO more competitive with the government’s traditional Medicare
program. We already offer prescription drug coverage that will not be available under traditional
Medicare until 2006; and

+ We are well positioned to establish a greater market presence due to our long standing
commitment to the Medicare+Choice market even during times when adequate funding may not
have been available.

Products

We have developed products and services in order to meet the needs of our commercial and senior
customers. In developing our products and marketing plans, we take into account the differing needs
of our customers and believe that we create cost-effective, quality health care service options.

Commercial Products

Our commercial HMO and PPO products may be offered on a stand-alone basis or may be bundled
with our specialty products and services, including PBM, behavioral health services, group life and
health insurance products, and dental and vision services, providing employer groups and individuals
with more benefit options from a single source and the ability to design tailored benefit programs.
We also sell our specialty products and services on a stand-alone basis to unaffiliated health plans
and employer groups.

Our HMO plans provide health care benefits to commercial members through a defined provider
network in which members typically pay a fixed copayment for services accessed. We have a broad
network that as of December 31, 2003 included approximately 700 hospitals and 63,000 primary care
and specialty physicians.

Our PPO network supplements our existing HMO network with additional health care providers and
generally provides members with a broad selection of providers in any given geographic area.
Additionally, access is extended to health care providers located outside of a given geographic area
through out-of-network benefits that allow choice beyond the organized PPO network in exchange for
reduced coverage or higher coinsurance or copayments. Our PPO products provide members open
access to network providers, with.no primary care physician coordinating care and simplified medical
management practices.

We target a variety of plan sponsors including employer groups and other purchasing coalitions, as
well as state and federal government agencies. We offer both HMO and PPO products in a broad
spectrum of customer segments ranging from individuals and small groups to large employers. We
also have contracts with the United States Office of Personnel Management, or OPM, to provide

HMO services to members under the Federal Employee Health Benefit Program, or FEHBP, for

federal employees, annuitants and their dependents.
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As of December 31, 2003, we had approximately 2 million commercial HMO numbers and over
182,000 enrollees in our PPO products. '

Specialty Products

We use our existing employer group and senior relationships to offer our specialty products and
services in conjunction with our commercial and senior products. These specialty products and

services include PBM, behavioral health services, group life and health insurance products, and
dental and vision services. In addition, we sell our specialty products and services to unaffiliated
health plans, union trusts, third party administrators and employer groups.

Prescription Solutions®. Prescription Solutions offered integrated PBM services (including mail
order pharmacy services) to approximately 5 million people, including approximately 682,000 seniors,
as of December 31, 2003. Prescription Solutions offers a broad range of innovative programs,
products and services designed to enhance clinical outcomes with appropriate financial results for
employers and members.

We believe Prescription Solutions’ strength lies in its ability to influence medical outcomes and
reduce overall health care costs by focusing on appropriate prescription drug use. For example,
through its formulary management program, Prescription Solutions uses lists of physician-
recommended drugs in different therapeutic classes that have been reviewed for safety, efficacy and
value to ensure that drugs prescribed are the lowest cost option among equally effective alternatives.
Prescription Solutions operates independently of pharmaceutical or retail drug organizations, which
allows it to focus primarily on improving clinical outcomes.

We believe that Prescription Solutions’ mail order capabilities also differentiate us from our health
insurance competitors who do not have captive PBMs. Prescription Solutions operates an

84,000 square foot, fully automated facility in Carlsbad, California, which we believe can support our
projected internal growth for the foreseeable future. Prescription Solutions aggressively promotes mail
order pharmacy services as a convenient and cost-effective service for our members.

Behavioral Health Services. We provide behavioral health care services including managed mental
health, employee assistance, care management and chemical dependency benefit programs. As of
December 31, 2003, we provided these behavioral health care services to approximately 3.7 million
affiliated and unaffiliated members through our provider network. Managed mental health and
chemical dependency services are offered as a standard part of most of our commercial health plans
and are sold in conjunction with our other commercial and Medicare products, and are sold on a
stand-alone basis to unaffiliated health plans and employer groups.

Dental and Vision Services. We provide a broad range of dental and vision insurance and discount
services. Plans include HMO, PPO and indemnity fee-for-service dental, and PPO vision benefits to
individuals and employer groups. We also provide dental services to seniors through Secure Horizons.
We provide a complete range of dental and vision product offerings for small, mid-size and large
employers, regardless of their existing medical plan offering. As of December 31, 2003, we provided
these dental and vision services to approximately 720,000 affiliated and unaffiliated members.

Group Life and Health Insurance. We are licensed to issue life and health care insurance in

40 states, including each of the states where our HMOs operate, the District of Columbia and
Guam. By marketing our commercial health care product line in conjunction with supplemental
insurance products, we are able to offer multi-option health and financial benefit programs. Other
supplementary benefits offered to employer groups include basic life insurance, group term life
insurance, indemnity dental and indemnity behavioral health benefits. We also offer life, accidental
death and dismemberment and short-term and long-term disability products to our commercial
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employer groups under a private label arrangement with Continental Assurance Company,
Continental Casualty Company and CNA Group Life Assurance Company.

Senior Products

We offer eligible Medicare beneficiaries access to Medicare+Choice and Medicare Supplement
products through our Secure Horizons programs.

Medicare+Choice HMO. We are one of the largest Medicare+Choice HMOs in the United States
as measured by membership with approximately 682,000 members as of December 31, 2003.
Medicare is a federal program that provides persons age 65 and over and some disabled persons
under the age of 65 a variety of hospital and medical insurance benefits. Most individuals eligible for
Medicare are entitled to receive inpatient hospital care under Part A without the payment of any
premium, but are required to pay a premium to the federal government, which is adjusted annually,
to be eligible for physician care and other services under Part B. Even though they participate in
both Part A and Part B of the traditional Medicare program, beneficiaries are still required to pay
out-of-pocket deductibles and coinsurance.

We contract with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, under the
Medicare+Choice program to provide health insurance coverage in exchange for a fixed monthly
payment per member that varies based on the geographic areas in which the members reside.
Individuals who elect to participate in the Medicare+Choice program are relieved of the obligation
to pay some or all of the deductible or coinsurance amounts and may receive benefits greater than
the government program such as pharmacy drug coverage, but are generally required to use the
services provided by the HMO exclusively and are required to pay a Part B premium to the
Medicare program. These individuals also may be required to pay a monthly premium to the HMO.

Medicare Supplement Products. We are licensed in 22 states to offer group and individual senior
supplement products and have licenses pending in ten states. These products are designed to fill gaps
left by traditional Medicare coverage. For example, the Individual Supplement products pay for
hospital deductibles, physician copayments and coinsurance for which an individual enrolled in the
traditional Medicare program would otherwise be responsible. The Senior Supplement product
provides employer groups with similar coverage options for their Medicare eligible retirees. The
Secure Horizons Prescription Advantages Plan has no annual deductible, no annual maximums, and
provides unlimited coverage for approximately 400 generic medications covering many chronic
conditions and ailments. This plan offers discounts on most other drugs depending on how the drugs
are purchased.

Physician and Hospital Relationships
Contracting Arrangements with Physicians and Hospitals

We maintain a network of qualified physicians, hospitals and other health care providers in every
geographic area where we offer managed care products and services. Qur contracting strategy is to
base the type of contract utilized on our assessment of the underlying structure and strengths of the
medical communities within the applicable geographic markets. In HMO markets with physicians
and hospitals that we believe have the necessary infrastructure and financial strength to accept
delegation for certain administrative services and prepayment for health care services, we may elect
to use delegation and capitation contracts. In other circumstances, we may elect to use fee-for-
service or other shared risk arrangements. Most of our physician and hospital contracts have a one-
year term, however, we may also enter into multiple-year contracts with physician groups and
hospitals to enhance network stability or provide greater predictability of future health care costs.
Contracts for our PPO products are all fee-for-service.
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Our provider contracting processes include analysis and modeling of underlying cost and utilization
assumptions. Through these processes, we continually seek to identify strategies to better manage
health care costs. We also focus on provider consultation and management tools, including thorough
data reporting and financial analysis of expected performance of our contracts.

Underwriting

In establishing premium rates for our health care plans, we use underwriting criteria based upon our
accumulated actuarial data, with adjustments for factors such as the physicians and hospitals utilized,
claims experience, member demographic mix and industry differences. Predictive models using
pharmacy data and health status are also used to identify health care costs that are likely to emerge.
Our underwriting practices are filed and approved in states requiring those actions and in all states in
which we operate in the individual, small group and Medicare Supplement markets. Because our
members are in multiple states, our underwriting practices, especially in the individual, small group
and Medicare Supplement markets, are subject to a variety of legislative and regulatory requirements
and restrictions unique to the state in which a member resides.

Medical Management

Our profitability depends, in part, on our ability to control health care costs while providing quality
care. Our medical management staff consists of doctors and nurses who monitor the medical
treatment of our members in need of hospital and specialist care. In some cases, our medical
managers are located on-site at some of our key hospitals.

Our medical management programs include:

» Chronic Disease Management. We have created a wide range of disease management programs
designed to provide specialized services to members with chronic disease states including among
others, congestive heart failure, end-stage renal disease, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and
cancer. These programs focus on prevention, member education, and evidence-based care to
improve our members’ lifestyle and reduce unnecessary or preventable hospitalization costs. These
programs may be developed and managed internally or we may contract with third parties who
have specialized expertise or technology within a specific diagnostic category;

* Precertification of Admission. In the precertification stage, our medical managers verify that
requests for hospitalization and specified health care procedures meet specific clinical criteria and
are approved in advance;

» Concurrent Review. Once our member has been admitted to the hospital for care, our on-site or
telephonic medical managers provide administrative oversight of the hospitalization process. Our
medical managers also monitor the discharge process and coordinate any outpatient services
needed by the patient, including skilled nursing facility, home nursing care and rehabilitation
therapy. We also contract with hospitalists to assist us in managing the care of hospitalized
patients. Hospitalists are physicians who specialize in coordinating the care of patients during their
stay in a hospital, including oversight of patients in the emergency room, coordinating appropriate
admissions and level of care (including intensive care when appropriate), coordinating
consultations with subspecialists and ordering tests and procedures;

s Retrospective Review. Qur retrospective review process involves confirming our certifications of
services provided to our members when our medical management staff has not been concurrently
involved in the hospitalization of our members. This process can also occur when our members
receive emergency care at an out-of-area hospital or when medical claims may be disputed; and

s Case Management. Our case management department provides multi-disciplinary coordination of
personalized care for patients with complex medical conditions, including arranging access to
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appropriate medical and social services, to improve the health status and manage health care costs
for these patients; in addition, specific case management programs have been implemented for the
“frail member” and those with terminal illnesses.

Marketing

Our commercial products are marketed under the PacifiCare brand, which we believe has a
reputation for quality and value. Our senior products are marketed under the Secure Horizons name,
which we believe is one of the premier service marks in health care services among seniors in our
markets in the western United States. We market our specialty products under the PacifiCare brand
and our third-party unaffiliated PBM services under our Prescription Solutions service mark.

Marketing to our large group commercial customers is typically a two-step process in which we first
market to the employer, then market directly to employees, primarily during their open enroliment
periods, once the employer has selected our plan. For many of our larger commercial accounts the
open enrollment periods typically occur during the fourth quarter of the calendar year. For some
employer groups, we are the exclusive provider of health care products for their employees on a full-
replacement basis. We also offer individual commercial products directly to consumers.

We use various techniques to attract commercial members, including work site presentations, direct
mail, medical group tours and local advertising. We also use television, radio, billboard and print
media to market our programs to potential commercial members. Further, we utilize multiple
distribution channels such as general agents, an on-line price quoting service, and insurance brokers
and consultants who represent many employer groups. These brokers and consultants work directly
with employers to recommend or design employee benefits packages and select carriers to provide
these services.

We believe that our understanding of the senior population and our attention to customer service
differentiates our Secure Horizons program from competing products. We market our Secure
Horizons programs to Medicare beneficiaries and caregivers for Medicare beneficiaries primarily
through direct mail, telemarketing, our website, television, radio and community-based events with
participating physician groups. Most Secure Horizons members enroll directly in a plan, generally
without the involvement of insurance brokers, except when enrolling as part of an employer group
retiree offering. We also have a national broker channel for some of our individual Medicare
Supplement and Prescription Advantages products.

Management Information Systems and Claims Processing

We use computer-based information systems for various purposes, including e-commerce, marketing
and sales tracking, underwriting, billing, claims processing, medical management, medical cost and
utilization trending, financial and management accounting, reporting, planning and analysis. These
systems also support on-line customer service functions, provider and member administration
functions, and support our tracking and extensive analyses of health care costs and outcome data.

We have established corporate goals to have our information technology, or IT, systems operate
under one business platform and improve operational efficiency. Simplification and integration of the
systems servicing our business are important components of controlling health care and
administrative expenses and improving member satisfaction. To accomplish these goals, we have
outsourced data processing operations and maintenance of older software applications so we can focus
internally on new technologies. Additionally, we are opportunistically insourcing data center
operations and software development as part of our long-term sourcing strategy.

We use these computer-based information systems as an important component of claims processing.
We receive medical claims from physicians and hospitals for services to our members. Claims are
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reviewed to determine member eligibility, the quantity and kind of services performed and whether
services were authorized, then adjudicated against pricing, claims rules and benefits. To help ensure
timely and accurate payments, we regularly review reports on inventory levels and claims statistics
that focus on claims turn-around time and accuracy of payment processing. We also perform a
variety of claim audits and cost containment programs. We have significantly increased the number
and percentage of claims processed electronically to improve claims turnaround times and accuracy.

Government Regulation
General HMO and Indemnity Regulation

We are subject to extensive federal and state regulations that govern the scope of benefits provided to
our members. These regulations can vary significantly from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Broad latitude
is given to the agencies administering these regulations. Changes in applicable laws and regulations
are continually being considered, and the interpretation of existing laws and rules also may change
periodically. Existing and future laws and rules could force to change how we do business, restrict
revenue and enrollment growth, increase our health care and administrative costs and capital
requirements and increase our liability in federal and state courts for coverage determinations,
contract interpretation and other actions. We must obtain and maintain regulatory approvals to
market many of our products, to increase prices for certain regulated products and to consummate
acquisitions and dispositions of health plans.

We participate in federal, state and local government health care coverage programs. These programs
generally are subject to frequent change, including changes that may reduce the number of persons
enrolled or eligible, reduce the amount of reimbursement or payment levels, or increase our
administrative or health care costs under such programs. Such changes have adversely affected our
financial results and willingness to participate in such programs in the past and may do so in the
future.

State legislatures and Congress continue to focus on health care issues. Bills and regulations at state
and federal levels may affect certain aspects of our business, including:

» increasing minimum capital or risk-based capital, or RBC, requirements;

» mandating benefits and products;

» restricting a health plan’s ability to limit coverage to medically necessary care;

+ reducing the reimbursement or payment levels for government funded programs;

+ imposing guidelines for pharmaceutical manufacturers that would cause pharmaceutical companies
to restructure the financial terms of their business arrangements with PBMs, HMOs or other
health plans;

» patients’ bill of rights legislation at the state and federal level that would hold HMOs liable for
medical malpractice;

» limiting a health plan’s ability to capitate physicians and hospitals or delegate financial risk,
utilization review, quality assurance or other medical decisions to our contracting physicians and
hospitals;

» restricting a health plan’s ability to select and terminate providers in our networks;

+ allowing independent physicians to collectively bargain with health plans on a number of issues,
including financial compensation;

+ adding further restrictions and administrative requirements on the use, retention, transmission,
processing, protection and disclosure of personally identifiable health information; and
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* tightening time periods for the timely payment and administration of health care claiins and
imposing financial and other penalties for non-compliance.

Office of Personnel Management

We have commercial contracts with OPM to provide managed health care services to federal
employees, annuitants and their dependents under FEHBP. Rather than negotiating rates with us,
OPM requires us to provide the FEHBP with rates comparable to the rates charged to the two
employer groups with enroliment closest in size to the FEHBP in the applicable community after
making required adjustments. OPM further requires us to certify each year that its rates meet these
requirements, Periodically, the Office of the Inspector General, or OIG, audits us to verify that the
premiums charged are calculated and charged in compliance with these regulations and guidelines.
OPM has the right to audit the premiums charged during any period for up to five years following
the end of that contract year. The final resolution and settlement of audits have historically taken
more than three years and as many as seven years. We have a formal compliance program to
specifically address potential issues that may arise from the FEHBP rating process, to work with
OPM to understand its interpretation of the rules and guidelines prior to completion of the rating
process, to standardize the FEHBP rating process among all of our HMOs, and to help reduce the
likelihood that future government audits will result in any significant findings.

Required Statutory Capital

By law, regulation and governmental policy, our HMO, indemnity and regulated specialty product
subsidiaries, which we refer to as our regulated subsidiaries, are required to maintain minimum levels
of statutory net worth, The minimum statutory net worth requirements differ by state and are
generally based on a percentage of annualized premium revenue, a percentage of annualized health
care costs or RBC requirements. The RBC requirements are based on guidelines established by the
National Association of Insurance Commissioners, or NAIC. If adopted, the RBC requirements may
be modified as each state legislature deems appropriate for that state. The RBC formula, based on
asset risk, underwriting risk, credit risk, business risk and other factors, generates the authorized
control level, or ACL, which represents the minimum amount of net worth believed to be required to
support the regulated entity’s business. For states in which the RBC requirements have been
adopted, the regulated entity typically must maintain the greater of the required ACL or the
minimum statutory net worth requirement calculated pursuant to pre-RBC guidelines. As of
December 31, 2003, the aggregate net worth of our regulated subsidiaries exceeded 300% of the
aggregate ACL calculated under NAIC RBC guidelines. The amount of statutory capital in excess of
state regulatory requirements was approximately $614 million as of December 31, 2003. In addition
to the foregoing requirements, our regulated subsidiaries are subject to restrictions on their ability to
make dividend payments, loans and other transfers of cash to the parent company.

The statutory framework for our regulated subsidiaries’ statutory net worth requirements may change
over time. These subsidiaries are also subject to their state regulators’ overall oversight powers. Those
regulators could require our subsidiaries to maintain minimum levels of statutory net worth in excess
of the amount required under the applicable state laws if the regulators determine that maintaining
such additional statutory net worth is in the best interest of our members.

Pharmacy Regulations

Our PBM business is subject to state and federal statutes and regulations governing the operation of
pharmacies, labeling, packaging and repackaging of drug products, dispensing of controlled
substances, disposal, advertising, security, recordkeeping and inventory control.
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Many states have laws and regulations that require out-of-state internet and mail-service pharmacies
to register with, or be licensed by, the board of pharmacy or a similar regulatory body in the state.
Other states generally permit the dispensing pharmacy to follow the laws of the state within which
the dispensing pharmacy is located. Various other states, however, have enacted laws requiring,
among other things, the hiring of a pharmacist licensed by that state or compliance with all laws of
the states into which the out-of-state pharmacy dispenses medications, whether or not those laws
conflict with the laws of the state in which the pharmacy is located. If these laws are applicable to
us, they could restrict or prevent us from providing prescription internet or mail order in those states.

Other specific laws or regulations that may affect our PBM business include those that address any
willing provider, contract limitations, benefit mandates, pharmacy management restrictions,
limitations on price negotiations, changes in Medicaid “best price” rules, and the conduct of clinical
trials.

Privacy Regulations

The use of individually identifiable data by our businesses is regulated at international, federal, state
and local levels. These laws and rules are changed frequently by legislation or administrative
interpretation. Various state laws address the use and maintenance of individually identifiable health
data. Most are derived from the privacy provisions in the federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA. HIPAA also imposes
guidelines on our business associates (as this term is defined in the HIPAA regulations). Even
though we provide for appropriate protections through our contracts with our business associates, we
still have limited control over their actions and practices. Compliance with these proposals and new
regulations may result in cost increases due to necessary systems changes, the development of new
administrative processes, and the effects of potential noncompliance by our business associates. They
also may impose further restrictions on our use of patient identifiable data that is housed in one or
more of our administrative databases.

Risk Management

We maintain general liability, property, directors’ and officers’ liability and managed care errors and
omissions, which includes medical malpractice, insurance coverage. Policies typically include varying
and increasing levels of self-insured retention or deductibles that increase our risk of loss. We operate
a wholly owned captive insurance company designed to assist us primarily in managing the risk of
loss associated with our retained risk on errors and omissions claims and catastrophic medical claims.
We require contracting physicians, physician groups and hospitals to maintain individual malpractice
insurance coverage.

Competition

In offering HMOs, PPOs and related products, we compete with CIGNA Corporation, Aetna Inc.,
Health Net, Inc., WellPoint Health Networks Inc. and Anthem Inc., who are combining, other Blue
Cross and Blue Shield plans and UnitedHealth Group Incorporated for membership from national
employers. We also compete with regional HMOs and small group employers, which vary depending
on the geographic market. Regional competitors include Kaiser Foundation Health Plan Inc., Health
Net, Inc., WellPoint Health Networks Inc., Humana Inc., and the member companies of the Blue
Cross and Blue Shield Association. We also offer a regional alternative for national employers who
are willing to support multiple health plans to maintain plans that best suit the needs of employees
within a specific region.

We are -one of the largest Medicare+Choice health plans measured in terms of membership in the
nation, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of overall membership, offering competitive
advantages and economies of scale in the Medicare+Choice market. In 2002 and 2003, we reduced
our benefits, raised member copays and deductibles, and replaced coverage of brand name
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prescription drugs with generic drugs in most of the counties where we participate in
Medicare+Choice. This was in response to the rising health care costs of treating the senior
population and the inadequate rate of increase in levels of Medicare reimbursement from the
government. These changes caused members to leave our plans for competing plans or traditional
Medicare coverage. Many competing HMO health plans also reduced their participation in the
Medicare+Choice program and reduced benefits coverage.

Beginning in 2004, we expect to be able to improve our competitive position in Medicare+Choice for
the following reasons:

+ Increased government funding under the newly enacted DIMA legislation allows us to improve
previously reduced benefits and reduce member premiums, co-payments and deductibles;

» Enhanced benefits, such as prescription drugs and lower out-of-pocket payments, should also make
our Medicare+Choice HMO more competitive with the government’s traditional Medicare
program. We already offer prescription drug coverage that will not be available under traditional
Medicare until 2006; and

» We are well positioned to establish a greater market presence due to our long standing
commitment to the Medicare+Choice market even during times when adequate funding may not
have been available.

Beginning in 2005, there is a greater risk that competition among private health plans for
Medicare+Choice members could increase.

The Medicare Supplement product market is highly fragmented with few large competitors. Our
primary competition in this market is the Medicare Supplement product marketed by the American
Association of Retired Persons, or AARP, and underwritten by UnitedHealth Group Incorporated.
We believe that our product offerings and distribution channels differentiate our Medicare
Supplement products from competing products.

Prescription Solutions’ PBM services are sold as part of our commercial and Medicare products and
on a stand-alone basis to unaffiliated health plans and employer groups. We believe our competitors
include Medco Health Solutions Inc., MedImpact Healthcare Systems, Inc., Caremark Rx, Inc.,
Express Scripts Inc. and AdvancePCS. We believe because it is aligned with a managed care
organization, Prescription Solutions differentiates itself from other pharmacy benefit organizations by
managing prescription costs and outcomes for managed care organization members. Our mail order
prescription drug service competes with national, regional and local pharmacies and other mail order
prescription drug companies. Prescription Solutions also competes with firms offering prescription
discount cards, such as large drugstore chains.

The managed behavioral health care industry is dominated by a few large companies, principally
Magellan Health Services, Inc. and ValueOptions, Inc., as well as the behavioral health divisions of
health insurers such as UnitedHealth Group Incorporated and CIGNA Corporation. Our ability to
compete is affected by a limited national supply of providers, particularly psychiatrists and psychiatric
hospital units. Our behavioral health subsidiary has a core competency in managing at-risk contracts,
which we believe differentiates us competitively in states with mental health parity laws that mandate
equal coverage for mental health benefits.

We believe that to retain our health plans’ competitive advantages we should continue to focus on
developing additional products and services and eliminate or limit growth of unprofitable products.
We believe that consumers want products and services that go beyond basic necessity, extending to
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areas such as lifestyle and wellness enhancing products. The factors that we believe give us
competitive advantages are:

* our existing market position in our geographic areas of operation;

« our long-term operating experience in managed care;

» our marketplace reputation with physicians, hospitals, members and employers;

* a strong brand identity for PacifiCare, Secure Horizons and Prescription Solutions;
» our benefit design and flexibility of features for employers;

» our QUALITY INDEX® profile, which provides customers with certain provider performance
quality measures; and

« our emphasis on providing high quality customer service.

Intellectual Property

We own various federally registered trademarks, service marks and other trade names. Some of the
more material marks we own include PacifiCare®, SecureHorizons®, Prescription Solutions® and
QUALITY INDEX®. There is also a patent pending for certain methods used in creating our
QUALITY INDEX®.

Employees

At February 27, 2004, we had approximately 7,700 full and part-time employees. None of our
employees is presently covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We consider relations with our
employees to be good and have never experienced any work stoppage.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2003, we leased approximately 184,000 aggregate square feet of space for our
principal corporate headquarters and executive offices in Cypress and Santa Ana, California. In
connection with our operations, as of December 31, 2003, we leased approximately 1.7 million
aggregate square feet for office space, subsidiary operations, customer service centers and space for
computer facilities. Such space corresponds to areas in which our HMOs or specialty managed- care
products and services operate, or where we have satellite administrative offices. Our leases expire at
various dates from 2004 through 2012.

In California and Guam, we own two buildings encompassing approximately 225,000 aggregate
square feet of space primarily used for administrative operations. All of our facilities are in good
working condition, are well maintained and are adequate for our present and currently anticipated
needs. We believe that we can rent additional space at competitive rates when current leases expire,
or if we need additional space.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For information regarding our legal proceedings, see Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders during the three months ended December 31,
2003.

11



PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE COMPANY’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

On June 6, 2003, our common stock listing was transferred from the NASDAQ National Market
under the symbol PHSY to the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol PHS.

On January 20, 2004, we effected a two-for-one stock split in the form of a stock dividend of one
share of our common stock for every share of common stock outstanding to stockholders of record as
of the close of business on January 7, 2004. All share price and per share data and numbers of
common shares have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the stock split. See Note 6 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following table indicates the high and low reported sale prices per share as furnished by the
NYSE and NASDAQ.

_High Low
Year ended December 31, 2002
First QUarter. ...t $11.67 $ 7.30
Second Quarter. .......................... e $16.31 § 8.48
Third QUarter .. ... ... . e e $13.33  §$ 9.85
Fourth Quarter ...................... R $16.83  $10.65
Year ended December 31, 2003
First Quarter. . ... o e $14.87 $10.47
Second Quarter. ... . $25.99  $11.38
Third QUAItEr .. ... ittt e e $29.63  $23.35
Fourth Quarter ............. . i i i $34.20 $24.17

We have never paid cash dividends on our common stock. We do not expect to declare cash
dividends on our common stock in the future, retaining all earnings for business development. Any
possible future dividends will depend on our earnings, financial condition, and regulatory
requirements. 1f we decide to declare dividends on our common stock in the future, such dividends
may only be made in compliance with our senior credit facility and our 10%% senior notes.

As of February 27, 2004 there were 293 stockholders of record of our common stock.

We have $135 million in aggregate principal amount of 3% convertible subordinated debentures due
in 2032 outstanding. The debentures are convertible into 6,428,566 shares of common stock under
certain conditions, including satisfaction of a market price condition for our common stock,
satisfaction of a trading price condition relating to the debentures, upon notice of redemption, or
upon specified corporate transactions. Each $1,000 of the debentures is convertible into 47.619 shares
of our common stock. The market price condition for conversion of the debentures is satisfied if the
closing sale price of our common stock exceeds 110% of the conversion price (which is calculated at
$23.10 per share) for the debentures for at least 20 trading days in the 30 consecutive trading days
ending on the last trading day of any fiscal quarter. In the event that the market price condition is
satisfied during any fiscal quarter, the debentures are convertible, at the option of the holder, during
the following fiscal quarter. The market price condition is evaluated each quarter to determine
whether the debentures will be convertible at the option of the holder during the following fiscal
quarter. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, the market price condition described above
was satisfied for the quarters ended September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2003. As a result, the
debentures were convertible during the quarter ended December 31, 2003 and remain convertible at
the option of the holder at any time during the quarter ended March 31, 2004. While no debentures
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were converted as of December 31, 2003, they are considered common stock equivalents and are
included in the calculation of weighted average shares outstanding on a diluted basis for the fourth
quarter and fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.

Beginning in October 2007, we may redeem for cash all or any portion of the debentures, at a
purchase price of 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest, upon not less than 30 nor more
than 60 days written notice to the holders. Beginning in October 2007, and in successive 5-year
increments, our holders may require us to repurchase the debentures for cash at a repurchase price of
100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest. Our payment obligations under the debentures
are subordinated to our senior indebtedness, and effectively subordinated to all indebtedness and
other liabilities of our subsidiaries.

In November 2003, we issued 7.6 million shares of our common stock in a public offering. The net
proceeds from the offering, approximately $200 million after underwriting fees, were used to redeem
$175 million in principal of the company’s outstanding 10%% senior notes. See Note 5 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

With respect to information regarding our securities authorized for issuance under equity incentive
plans, the information contained in the section entitled “Equity Compensation Plan Information” of
our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein
by reference.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial and operating data are derived from our audited consolidated
financial statements. The selected financial and operating data should be read in conjunction with
“Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”
and also with “Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K.”

Income Statement Data
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002(2) 2001(3) 2000(4) 1999 (5)
(Amounts in thousands, except per-share data)
Operating revenue . ................coov.. ... $11,008,511 $11,156,502 $11,843,972 $11,576,298 $10,073,140
Expenses:
Health care services and other ............. 9,065,794 9,485,701 10,367,657 9,913,657 8,368,690
Selling, general and administrative expenses . . 1,452,542 1,370,160 1,288,374 1,286,790 1,181,773
Impairment, disposition, restructuring, Office
of Personnel Management and other
charges (credits), net ................... — 3,774 61,157 8,766 (2,233)
Operating income ...........ooivivieenninn 490,175 296,867 126,784 367,085 524,910
Interest expense, net............ ... ........ (100,531) (74,904) (70,282) (79,636) (43,001)
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiary. .. .. — — — 637 —
Income before income taxes ................. 389,644 221,963 56,502 288,086 481,909
Provision for income taxes................... 146,896 82,792 38,371 127,046 203,365
Income before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle and extraordinary gain. . . 242,748 139,171 18,131 161,040 278,544
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle (1) ........ .o i — (897,000) — — —
Extraordinary gain on early retirement of debt
(less income taxes of $0.9 million) ......... — — 875 — —
Net income (loSs) ... ... $ 242,748 § (757,829) § 19,006 $ 161,040 $ 278,544
Basic earnings (loss) per share (1):
Income before cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle and extraordinary
AN ... $ 326 % 198 $ 027 § 229 § 3.13
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle . ... ool — (12.73) — — —
Extraordinary gain, net.................... — — 0.01 — —
Basic earnings (loss)per share.............. $ 326 § (10.75) $ 028 $ 229 § 3.13
Diluted earnings (loss) per share (1):
Income before cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle and extraordinary
AN .. $ 304 § 198 $ 026 $ 229 § 3.11
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle . ... — (12.73) — — —
Extraordinary gain, net.................... — — 0.01 — —
Diluted earnings (loss) per share ........... $ 3.04 $ (10.75) $ 027 % 229§ 3.11
Operating Statistics
Fully-insured risk medical loss ratios:
Consolidated ............................ 84.0% 86.8% 89.7% 87.5% 84.8%
Private — Commercial .................... 84.0% 87.1% 89.3% 85.1% 81.7%
Private — Senior . ........ ... oo, 63.4% 53.5% 79.7% — —
Private — Consolidated ................... 83.7% 86.7% 89.2% 85.1% 81.7%
Government — Senior .................... 84.2% 86.9% 90.1% 89.4% 86.9%
Government — Consolidated .. ............. 84.2% 86.9% 90.1% 89.4% 86.9%
Selling, general and administrative expenses as a
percentage of operating revenue (excluding
net investment INCOME) . ... e... 13.3% 12.4% 11.0% 11.2% 11.8%
Operating income as a percentage of operating
TEVEMUE . .ottt tenn et ie e 4.5% 2.7% 1.1% 3.2% 5.2%
Effective tax rate(6) ... 37.7% 37.3% 67.9% 44.1% 42.2%

See footnotes following “Balance Sheet Data.”
Continued on next page
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Other Financial and Operating Data

December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)

Depreciation and amortization . .......... $ 66,621 § 73,884 § 148,704 § 130,563 $ 118,097
Capital expenditures ................... $ 52271 $ 39274 0§ 77,301 § 105256 § 66,211
Net cash flows provided by operating

activities . ... o $ 414,130 $ 242379 § 38923 § 631,236 $ 569,698
Net cash flows (used in) provided by

investing activities ................... $ (201,700) §$ (278,137) $(260,828) $ 72,376 $ (250,839)
Net cash flows provided by (used in)

financing activities ................... $ 34303 $ 9,688 § (51,971) $(301,041) $ (194,411)
Membership Data
Commercial .......................... 2,202,900 2,361,900 2,520,400 3,061,200 2,728,300
Senior .............. 709,200 776,100 939,500 1,057,200 1,014,600
Total HMO and other membership....... 2,912,100 3,138,000 3,479,900 4,118,400 3,742,900
Balance Sheet Data 4
Cash and equivalents................... $1,198,422 § 951,689 $§ 977,759  §$1,251,635 § 849,064
Marketable securities .................. 1,359,720 1,195,517 1,062,353 864,013 999,194
Total assets. .. ..., 4,619,304 4251,133 5,096,046 5,323,436 4,884,021
Medical claims and benefits payable . . . ... 1,027,500 1,044,500 1,095,900 1,270,800 795,200
Long-term debt, due after one year....... 612,700 731,961 794,309 836,556 975,000
Stockholders’ equity ................... 1,851,537 1,328,305 2,033,785 2,003,560 1,977,719

(1) All applicable per-share amounts reflect the retroactive effects of the two-for-one common stock
split in the form of a stock dividend that was effective January 20, 2004. See Note 6 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) The 2002 results include impairment, disposition, restructuring, OPM and other net pretax
charges totaling $3.8 million ($2.4 million or $0.03 diluted loss per share, net of tax). See
Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Operating income before net pretax
charges as a percentage of operating revenue was 2.7%.

The 2002 results include a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in connection
with the goodwill impairment recognized upon the adoption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, totaling

$929 million ($897 million or $12.73 diluted loss per share, net of tax). See Note 7 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3) The 2001 results include impairment, disposition, restructuring, OPM and other net pretax
charges totaling $61 million ($39 million or $0.56 diluted loss per share, net of tax). See
Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Operating income before net pretax
charges as a percentage of operating revenue was 1.6%.

(4) The 2000 results include impairment, disposition, restructuring, OPM and other net pretax
charges totaling $9 million ($5 million or $0.07 diluted loss per share, net of tax). See Note 10
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Operating income before net pretax charges
as a percentage of operating revenue was 3.2%.

(5) The 1999 results include impairment, disposition, restructuring and other net pretax credits
totaling $2 million ($2 million or $0.02 diluted loss per share, net of tax). The after tax and per
share amounts were losses because the goodwill impairment was not deductible for income tax
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purposes. Operating income before net pretax credits as a percentage of operating revenue was
5.2%.

(6) Effective income tax rate includes the effect of nondeductible pretax charges, primarily goodwill
amortization for the years ended December 31, 1999 through 2001.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we refer to PacifiCare Health Systems, Inc. as “PacifiCare,”
the “Company,” “we,” “us,” or “our”. Statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Federal Securities laws, and may involve a number of risks and
uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated as of the
date of this report. In addition, past financial and/or operating performance is not necessarily a
reliable indicator of future performance and you should not use our historical performance to
anticipate results or future period trends. In evaluating these forward-looking statements, you should
specifically consider the risks described below under “Cautionary Statements” which follows our
discussion on Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates and in other parts of this report.

Overview. We offer managed care and other health insurance products to employer groups and
Medicare beneficiaries in eight western states and Guam. Our commercial and senior plans are
designed to deliver quality health care and customer service to members cost-effectively. These
programs include health maintenance organizations, or HMOs, preferred provider organizations, or
PPOs, and Medicare Supplement products. We also offer a variety of specialty managed care
products and services that employees can purchase as a supplement to our basic commercial and
senior medical plans or as stand-alone products. These products include pharmacy benefit
management, or PBM, services, behavioral health services, group life and health insurance, dental
and vision benefit plans.

Premium revenues are earned from products where we bear insured risk. Non-premium revenues are
earned from all other sources, including revenues from our PBM mail order business, administrative
fees and other income. Commencing with the first quarter of 2003, we reformatted our statement of
operations to show total revenues (premium revenues and non-premium revenues) and health care
services and other expenses by the following categories: commercial, senior and specialty and other.
These changes are summarized below:

» For our behavioral health and dental and vision subsidiaries, we previously included premium
revenues in the commercial revenue line and non-premium revenues in the other income line. In
2003, all revenues (premium and non-premium) derived from our specialty companies (behavioral
health, dental and vision and PBM) are now reported in the specialty and other revenues line.

+ All health care services and other expenses for our specialty companies were previously included
within commercial health care costs. In 2003, all health care services and other expenses for our
specialty companies are now reported in the specialty and other health care services and other
expenses line.

+ Non-premium revenues earned by, and non-premium related fees charged by, our health plans or
subsidiaries were previously included in the other income line. In 2003, these amounts are now
included in the commercial, senior or specialty revenue and health care services and other
expenses lines, as appropriate.

All intercompany transactions and accounts are eliminated in consolidation.
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Revenue

Commercial and Senior. Our commercial and senior revenues include all premium revenue we
receive from our health plans, indemnity insurance subsidiary and Medicare Supplement and Senior
Supplement products, as well as fee revenue we receive from administrative services we offer through
our commercial and senior health plans and related subsidiaries. We receive a monthly payment on
behalf of each subscriber enrolled in our commercial HMOs and our indemnity insurance service
plans. Generally, our Medicare+Choice contracts entitle us to per member per month payments from
the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, on behalf of each enrolied Medicare
beneficiary. We report prepaid health care premiums received from our commercial plans’ enrolled
groups, CMS, and our Medicare plans’ members as revenue in the month that members are entitled
to receive health care. We record premiums received in advance as unearned premium revenue.

Premiums for our commercial products and Medicare+Choice products are generally fixed in
advance of the periods covered. Of our commercial business, more than 50% of our membership
renews on January 1 of each year, with premiums that are generally fixed for a period of one year. In
addition, each of our subsidiaries that offers Medicare+Choice products must submit adjusted
community rate proposals, generally by county or service area, to CMS, in early September for each
Medicare+Choice product that will be offered in the subsequent year. As a result, increases in the
costs of health care services in excess of the estimated future health care services expense reflected
in the premiums or the adjusted community rate proposals generally cannot be recovered in the
applicable contract year through higher premiums or changes in benefit designs.

Specialty and Other. Our specialty and other revenues include all premium revenues we receive
from our behavioral health and dental and vision service plans and fee revenue we receive from
administrative services we offer though our specialty companies, primarily from our PBM subsidiary.
Our PBM subsidiary generates mail order revenue where we, rather than network retail pharmacies,
collect the member copayments for both affiliated and unaffiliated members. Additionally, we record
revenues for prescription drug costs and administrative fees charged on prescriptions dispensed by our
mail order pharmacy when the prescription is filled. For prescription drugs dispensed through retail
pharmacies, we record administrative services fees when a prescription claim is reviewed and
approved, and the prescription is filled. For prescription drugs dispensed through retail pharmacies,
we do not record revenues for drugs dispensed or the network pharmacies’ dispensing fees; nor do we
record revenues for copayments our members make to the retail pharmacies.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income consists of interest income, gross realized gains and
losses experienced on cash invested over each period.

Expenses

Commercial and Senior Health Care Services and Other. Health care services and other expenses
for our commercial plans and our senior plans primarily comprise payments to physicians, hospitals
and other health care providers under capitated or risk-based contracts for services provided to our
commercial and senior health plan members and indemnity insurance plan members.

Our risk-based health care services expenses consist mostly of four cost of care components:
outpatient care, inpatient care, professional services (primarily physician care) and pharmacy benefit
costs. All four components are affected by both unit costs and utilization rates. Unit costs, for
example, are the cost of outpatient medical procedures, inpatient hospital stays, physician fees for
office visits and prescription drug prices. Utilization rates represent the volume of consumption of
health services and vary with the age and health of our members and broader social and lifestyle
patterns of the population as a whole.
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The cost of health care provided is accrued in the month services are provided to members, based in
part on estimates of claims for hospital services and other health care costs that have been incurred
but not yet reported (including those claims received but not yet paid), or IBNR, under our risk-
based provider contracts as well as some services under our capitation contracts for which we retain
financial liability, or carve-outs, primarily using standard actuarial methodologies based on historical
data. These standard actuarial methodologies include, among other factors, contractual requirements,
historical utilization trends, the interval between the date services are rendered and the date claims
are paid, denied claims activity, disputed claims activity, benefit changes, expected health care cost
inflation, seasonality patterns and changes in membership. These estimates are adjusted in future
periods as we receive actual paid claims data, and can either increase or reduce our accrued health
care costs. Included in health care services and other expenses for the year ended December 31,
2003 were net favorable adjustments of 2002 and prior period medical cost estimates of
approximately $54 million of which the commercial and senior net favorable adjustments were

$22 million and $32 million, respectively. For both commercial and senior, the net favorable
adjustments were mainly from our Texas and California markets and were the result of lower than
anticipated health care costs that materialized primarily in senior markets that we exited and
recoveries of claims overpayments at rates higher than historic recovery patterns. The cost of
prescription drugs covered under our commercial and senior plans is expensed when the prescription
drugs are dispensed. Our commercial and senior plans also provide incentives, through a variety of
programs, for health care providers that participate in those plans to control health care costs while
providing quality health care. Expenses related to these programs, which are based in part on
estimates, are recorded in the period in which the related services are provided. Historically, we have
primarily arranged health care services for our members by contracting with health care providers on
a capitated basis, regardless of the services provided to each member. Under our risk-based contracts,
we generally bear or partially share the risk of excess health care expenses with health care providers,
meaning that if member utilization of health care services exceeds agreed-upon amounts, we bear or
partially share the excess expenses with the applicable health care provider.

Specialty and Other Health Care Services and Other. Health care services and other expenses for
our specialty companies primarily comprise payments to physicians, hospitals and other health care
providers under capitated or risk-based contracts for services provided to our behavioral health and
dental and vision members and the cost of acquiring drugs for our mail order pharmacy benefit

management subsidiary. Health care services and other expenses also include expenses for
administrative services performed by our specialty companies.
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2003 Compared with 2002

Membership. Total HMO and other membership decreased 7% to approximately 2.9 million
members at December 31, 2003 from approximately 3.1 million members at December 31, 2002.

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Commercial Senior Total Commercial Senior Total
HMO Membership Data:
Arizona............... 148,500 86,600 235,100 141,300 88,400 229,700
California . ............ 1,333,000 348,400 1,681,400 1,543,000 386,100 1,929,100
Colorado .............. 173,700 52,600 226,300 178,300 57,600 235,900
Guam ................ 26,400 -— 26,400 32,200 — 32,200
Nevada ............... 25,800 25,300 51,100 24,300 27,400 51,700
Oklahoma............. 87,200 18,400 105,600 101,100 19,800 120,900
Oregon ............... 58,200 24,000 82,200 68,000 25,300 93,300
Texas................. 76,500 74,500 151,000 101,100 100,400 201,500
Washington ........... 65,500 52,500 118,000 62,700 55,500 118,200
Total HMO
membership ....... 1,994,800 682,300 2,677,100 2,252,000 760,500 3,012,500
Other Membership Data:
PPO and indemnity. . ... 183,500 — 183,500 75,100 — 75,100
Employer self-funded . .. 24,600 — 24,600 34,800 — 34,800
Medicare Supplement . . . = 26,900 26,900 — 15,600 15,600
Total other
membership ....... 208,100 26,900 235,000 109,900 15,600 125,500
Total HMO and other
membership ....... 2,202,900 709,200 2,912,100 2,361,900 776,100 3,138,000
December 31, 2003 As December 31, 2002
PacifiCare Unaffiliated Total PacifiCare Unaffiliated Total

Specialty Membership:
Pharmacy benefit
management(1l) ... 2,912,100 2,071,400 4,983,500 3,138,000 1,635,100 4,773,100
Behavioral health(2) 2,013,400 1,646,700 3,660,100 2,194,700 1,681,300 3,876,000
Dental and vision(2) 485,000 234,600 719,600 442,500 244 800 687,300

(1) PBM PacifiCare membership represents members that are in our commercial or senior HMO,
PPO and indemnity, employer self-funded and Medicare Supplement plans. All of these
members either have a prescription drug benefit or are able to purchase their prescriptions
utilizing our retail network contracts or our mail order.

(2) Behavioral health and dental and vision PacifiCare membership represents members that are in
our commercial and senior HMO that are also enrolled in our behavioral health or dental and
vision plans.

Commercial HMO membership decreased approximately 11%, or 257,200 members, at

December 31, 2003 compared to the prior year. The decreases were primarily due to elimination of
unprofitable commercial business and the termination of contracts with network providers. As
previously announced, our contract with the California Public Employee Retirement System, or
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CalPERS, was not renewed for 2003, resulting in the loss of approximately 180,100 commercial
HMO members in California effective January 1, 2003.

PPO and indemnity membership increased approximately 144% at December 31, 2003 compared to
the prior year primarily due to enhanced marketing and the addition of approximately
14,900 members from new product initiatives primarily in California and Colorado.

Senior HMGO membership decreased approximately 10%, or 78,200 members, at December 31, 2003
compared to the prior year. This decrease primarily resulted from county exits and member
disenrollments attributable to reduced benefits and increased premiums effective January 1, 2003. As
previously announced, we exited five counties in California and Texas resulting in the loss of
approximately 63,000 senior HMO members effective January 1, 2003.

We anticipate that commercial and senior membership will increase in 2004,

Pharmacy benefit management unaffiliated membership at December 31, 2003 increased
approximately 27%, or 436,300 members, compared to the prior year primarily due to an increase of
approximately 400,000 from one group and the net addition of 20 clients. Pharmacy benefit
management HMO membership at December 31, 2003 decreased approximately 7% compared to the
prior year as a result of county exits and member disenrollments attributable to reduced benefits and
increased premiums effective January 1, 2003 and the loss of our contract with CalPERS as
discussed above.

PacifiCare behavioral health membership at December 31, 2003 decreased approximately 8%
compared to the prior year primarily due to the loss of our contract with CalPERS as discussed
above in commercial HMO membership. Behavioral health unaffiliated membership at December 31,
2003 decreased approximately 2%, or 34,600 members, compared to the prior year due to member
disenrollments.

PacifiCare dental and vision membership at December 31, 2003 increased approximately 10%, or
42,500 members, compared to the prior year primarily due to increased cross-selling of these
products in conjunction with our commercial products. Dental and vision unaffiliated membership at
December 31, 2003 was comparable to the prior year.

We anticipate that total specialty membership will increase in 2004.

Commercial Revenue. Commercial revenue increased 5%, or $260 million, to $5 billion for the year
ended December 31, 2003 compared to the prior year as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2003

(Amounts in millions)

Revenue increases primarily due to premium rate increases of

approximately 18% for the year ended December 31, 2003 ......... $ 743
Net membership decreases, primarily in California and Texas .. ...... (489)
Other .. o 6
Increase over prior Year ... ...vvovr et 260

We anticipate revenue increases in 2004 primarily due to membership and rate increases. However,
we do not expect the same percentage premium rate increases in 2004 that we experienced in 2003,
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Senior Revenue. Senior revenue decreased 8%, or $492 million, to $5.4 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2003 compared to the prior year as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2003

(Amounts in millions)

Revenue increases primarily due to premium rate increases of

approximately 4% for the year ended December 31,2003 .......... $ 260
Net membership decreases, primarily in California and Texas ........ (752)
Decrease OVET PIHOT YEAT. . ..o\ttt ettt e e $(492)

We anticipate revenue increases in 2004 primarily due to membership and rate increases, and from
changes as a result of the newly enacted DIMA legislation.

Specialty and Other Revenue. Specialty and other revenue of $499 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 increased 18%, or $77 million, compared to the same period in the prior year.
The increase was primarily due to increased mail order revenues and unaffiliated membership from
our pharmacy benefit management subsidiary.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income increased 11%, or $7 million, to $71 million for the
year ended December 31, 2003, from $64 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The
increase was primarily due to the following:

+ write-off of a decline in the value of our investment in MedUnite, Inc. of $11 million during 2002,
with no comparable activity in 2003;

» write-down of certain telecommunication investments to market value resulting in a charge of
approximately $2 million during 2002, with no comparable activity in 2003; partially offset by

+ lower pre-tax rates of return due to Federal Reserve rate reductions in 2003.

Commercial Margin. Our commercial margin increased 34%, or $195 million, to $773 million for
the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to $578 million for the same period in the prior year
as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2003

{Amounts in millions)

Commercial revenue increases (as noted above) ................... $ 260

Decreases in health care services and other expenses as a result of net
HMO and PPO membership decreases, primarily in California and

T eXAS . e 432
Increases in health care services and other expenses as a result of

health care cost trends and increases in capitation expense ......... (481)
Other .. (16)
Increase over the comparable period of the prior year............... $ 195

We anticipate our commercial margin in 2004 will be slightly higher than 2003.
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Senior Margin. Our senior margin increased 9%, or $72 million, to $855 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003, compared to $783 million the same period in the prior year as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2003

(Amounts in millions)

Senior revenue decreases (as noted above) ............. ... .. $(492)
Decreases in health care services and other expenses as a result of

HMO membership decreases, primarily in California and Texas . ... 614
Increases in health care services and other expenses as a result of

health care cost trends partially offset by benefit adjustments....... (43)
OtReT o (7)
Increase over the comparable period of the prior year ............... $ 72

We anticipate our senior margin in 2004 will be lower than in 2003 primarily due to expected
enhancement of benefits offered to our Medicare+Choice beneficiaries.

Specialty and Other Margin. Our specialty and other margin decreased 1%, or $2 million, to

$244 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The decrease was primarily driven by the loss of
higher margin business, partially offset by an increase in unaffiliated membership in our behavioral
health and PBM businesses.

Medical Loss Ratio. Our medical loss ratios, or MLRs, are calculated using premium revenue and
related health care services and other expenses and cannot be directly calculated from the line items
in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Our MLRs are calculated using the following
categories of revenue and expenses:

s Private — Commercial: includes premium revenue and related health care services and other
expenses for our commercial HMO products (including Federal Employees Health Benefit
Program, or FEHBP, and state and local government contracts), PPO products, and other
indemnity, behavioral, dental and vision plans;

s Private — Senior: includes premium revenue and related health care services and other expenses
for our Medicare Supplement and Senior Supplement products where premiums are paid in full by
the employer or the consumer;

« Government — Senior: includes premium revenue and related health care services and other
expenses for our Medicare+Choice, HMO and PPO products and other senior products where
premiums are paid principally through government programs.

All non-premium revenues and related health care services and other expenses are excluded from the
calculation of our MLR.

In 2002, we calculated our MLR for our commercial and senior products based on total premiums
and total health care services expenses as reported on our statement of operations. This resulted in
the inclusion of certain health care costs related to the cost of acquiring drugs for our mail order
business of our PBM subsidiary within our commercial MLR calculation for which there was no
corresponding revenues (the related revenues were included in the other income line). Since this
inadvertently had the effect of slightly increasing the MLR of our commercial product, we changed
this presentation in order to provide more transparency on the trends affecting the profitability of our
insured products. Under our new format, only premium revenues and the related health care and
other services expenses are included in the MLR calculations. The 2002 MLR calculations have
been recalculated to conform to the 2003 presentation.
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The consolidated MLR and its components, unadjusted for any prior period changes in healthcare
cost estimates, for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2003 2002
Medical loss ratio:

Consolidated . ... ... ... .. . . . 84.0% 86.8%
Private — Commercial .. . ... .. .. . 84.0% 87.1%
Private — Semior. ... . 63.4% 53.5%
Private — Consolidated .. ........ ... . . .. .. .. . 83.7% 86.7%
Government — SENior ... ... ... it 84.2% 86.9%
Government — Consolidated . ... ...... e 84.2% 86.9%

Private — Commercial Medical Loss Ratio. Our private — commercial medical loss ratio decreased
to 84.0% for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to 87.1% for the prior year. The decrease
was driven by premium rate increases that outpaced an increase in health care services and other
expenses on both an absolute dollar and per member per month basis.

Private — Senior Medical Loss Ratio. Our private — senior medical loss ratio increased to 63.4%
for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to 53.5% for the prior year. The increase was
primarily driven by health care services and other expenses increases that outpaced premium revenue
increases on a per member per month basis.

Government — Senior Medical Loss Ratio. Our government — senior medical loss ratio decreased
to 84.2% for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to 86.9% for the prior year. The decrease
was driven by rate increases, benefit reductions and decreased utilization attributable to our medical
management programs that outpaced an increase in health care services and other expenses on a per
member per month basis.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses
increased $82 million to $1.5 billion for the year ended December 31, 2003, from $1.4 billion in the
prior year. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased primarily due to increased spending
for new product development and marketing costs, our expensing of stock-based compensation and
increased write-off of certain property and equipment.

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of operating revenue (excluding net
investment income) increased compared to the prior year primarily due to declines in operating
revenue (excluding net investment income) totaling $155 million for the year ended December 31,
2003.

Year Ended
December 31,
2003 2002
Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of operating
revenue (excluding net investment income) ............. ... ... ... ... 13.3% 12.4%

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased 34%, or $26 million, to $101 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003, from $75 million compared to the prior year. The increase was due to the
following:

¢ $28 million for the redemption premium and other write-offs associated with our redemption of
$175 million in principal of our 10%% senior notes in December 2003 with no comparable activity
in the prior year,
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+ approximately $3 million for the write-off of unamortized loan fees in the second quarter of 2003
in connection with the replacement of our senior credit facility with no comparable activity in the
prior year, partially offset by

» $5 million of favorable effect of the interest rate swap on $300 million of our 10%% senior notes
with no comparable activity in the prior year, and

» lower interest rate from our term loan under the senior credit facility which was effective June
2003.

Provision for Income Taxes. The effective income tax rate was 37.7% for the year ended
December 31, 2003, compared with 37.3% in 2002. The increase in the effective tax rate from the
prior year is primarily due to higher 2003 earnings resulting in a higher state tax expense while
reducing the benefit that tax-exempt income had on our effective tax rate.

Our effective tax rate is based on statutory tax rates, reported income, certain permanent tax
differences, and tax planning opportunities available to us in the various jurisdictions in which we
operate. Significant judgment is required in determining our effective tax rate and in evaluating our
tax positions. Despite our belief that our tax return positions are fully supportable, we may establish
reserves when we believe that certain tax positions are likely to be challenged and we may not fully
prevail in overcoming these challenges. We may adjust these reserves as relevant circumstances
evolve, such as the progress of a tax audit. Our effective tax rate includes the impact of reserve
provisions and changes to reserves that we consider appropriate, as well as related interest. In the
event that there is a significant unusual or one-time item recognized in our operating results, the tax
attributable to that item would be separately calculated and recorded at the same time as the usual
or one-time item.
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2002 Compared with 2001

Membership. Total HMO and other membership decreased 10% to approximately 3.1 million
members at December 31, 2002 from approximately 3.5 million members at December 31, 2001,

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Commercial Senior Total Commercial Senior Total
HMO Membership Data:
Arizona............... 141,300 88,400 229,700 144,000 104,600 248,600
California ............. 1,543,000 386,100 1,929,100 1,579,000 487,000 2,066,000
Colorado.............. 178,300 57,600 235,900 202,300 60,300 262,600
Guam ................ 32,200 — 32,200 36,400 — 36,400
Nevada ............... 24,300 27,400 51,700 36,100 30,900 67,000
Oklahoma ............. 101,100 19,800 120,900 91,300 30,200 121,500
Oregon ............... 68,000 25,300 93,300 93,200 26,800 120,000
Texas................. 101,100 100,400 201,500 180,400 149,600 330,000
Washington ........... 62,700 55,500 118,200 76,900 59,100 136,000
Total HMO
membership ....... 2,252,000 760,500 3,012,500 2,439,600 948,500 3,388,100
Other Membership Data:
PPO and indemnity. . ... 75,100 — 75,100 38,400 — 38,400
Employer self-funded . .. 34,800 — 34,800 42,400 — 42,400
Medicare Supplement . .. —_ 15,600 15,600 —_ 11,000 11,000
Total other
membership ....... 109,900 15,600 125,500 80,800 11,000 91,800
Total HMO and other
membership ....... 2,361,900 776,100 3,138,000 2,520,400 959,500 3,479,900
December 31, 2002 As December 31, 2001
PacifiCare  Unaffiliated Total PacifiCare  Unaffiliated Total
Specialty Membership:
Pharmacy benefit
management(1l) ........ 3,138,000 1,635,100 4,773,100 3,479,900 1,129,000 4,608,900
Behavioral health(2) ...... 2,194,700 1,681,300 3,876,000 2,337,200 1,373,400 3,710,600
Dental and vision(2) ...... 442,500 244,800 687,300 685,300 222,800 908,100

(1) PBM PacifiCare membership represents members that are in our commercial or senior HMO,
PPO and indemnity, employer self-funded and Medicare Supplement plans. All of these
members either have a prescription drug benefit or are able to purchase their prescriptions
utilizing our retail network contracts or our mail order.

(2) Behavioral health and dental and vision PacifiCare membership represents members that are in
our commercial and senior HMO that are also enrolled in our behavioral health or dental and
vision plans.

Commercial HMO membership decreased approximately 8% at December 31, 2002 compared to the
prior year due to decreases of 79,300 members in Texas, 36,000 members in California, 25,200
members in Oregon and 24,000 members in Colorado. These decreases were primarily due to
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elimination of unprofitable commercial business and the termination of contracts with network
providers.

Senior HMO membership decreased approximately 20% at December 31, 2002 compared to the
prior year due to a decrease of 150,100 members in California and Texas. This decrease primarily
resulted from county exits and member disenrollments attributable to reduced benefits and increased
premiums effective January 1, 2002.

PPO and indemnity membership increased approximately 96% at December 31, 2002 compared to
the prior year due to enhanced marketing and new product initiatives primarily in California and
Texas.

Pharmacy benefit management unaffiliated membership at December 31, 2002 increased
approximately 45% compared to the prior year due to increased marketing efforts. PacifiCare
pharmacy benefit management membership at December 31, 2002 decreased approximately 10%
compared to the prior year as a result of county exits and member disenrollments attributable to
reduced benefits and increased premiums effective January 1, 2002.

PacifiCare behavioral health membership at December 31, 2002 decreased approximately 6%
compared to the prior year due to declines in commercial HMO membership resulting from renewal
premium rate increases primarily in Texas. Behavioral health unaffiliated membership at

December 31, 2002 increased approximately 22% compared to the prior year due to the addition of
one large employer group in the eastern United States.

PacifiCare dental and vision membership at December 31, 2002 decreased approximately 35%
compared to the prior year primarily due to senior membership losses in California, attributable to
dental benefit changes effective January I, 2002. Dental and vision unaffiliated membership at
December 31, 2002 increased approximately 10% compared to the prior year due to membership
from new PPO product offerings.

Commercial Revenue. Commercial revenue increased 5%, or $229 million, for the year ended
December 31, 2002 compared to the prior year as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2002

(Amounts in millions)

Premium yield increases that averaged approximately 15% for the year

ended December 31, 2002 ... ... it $ 634
Net membership decreases, primarily in California, Colorado and

T EXaS ot (420)
Other 15
Increase over prior year ... ...... i e $ 229

Senior Revenue. Senior revenue decreased 3%, or $911 million, for the year ended December 31,
2002 compared to the prior year as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2002

(Amounts in millions)

Premium yield increases, including member premiums, that averaged

approximately 8% for the year ended December 31,2002 .......... $ 390
Membership decreases, primarily in California and Texas............ (1,270)
Other ... e (31)
Decrease OVEr PriOT YEAT . .. .ottt ettt $ (911)




Specialty and Other Revenue. Specialty and other revenue increased 11%, or $41 million, for the
year ended December 31, 2002, compared to the same period in the prior year. The increase was
primarily due to increased unaffiliated membership and mail order revenues of our pharmacy benefit
management subsidiary.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income decreased 42%, or $47 million, to $64 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002, from $111 million for the year ended December 31, 2001.

During 2002, we wrote off our entire $11 million investment in MedUnite Inc. In late 2002,
MedUnite was acquired by ProxyMed Inc. Additionally, during 2002, we wrote down certain
telecommunications investments to market value resulting in a charge of approximately $2 million
during the second quarter of 2002. In total, we recorded a charge of $13 million ($8 million, or $0.11
diluted loss per share, net of tax) for other than temporary impairments to the value of these
investments which is included in net investment income. In addition to the impairment of these
investments, we experienced lower pretax rates of return on our portfolio as a result of lower
investable balances and interest rates that have been declining since 2001.

Commercial Margin. Our commercial margin increased 28%, or $126 million, to $578 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to $452 million for the same period in the prior year
as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2002

(Amounts in millions)
Commercial revenue increases (as noted above) ................... $ 229

Decreases in health care services and other expenses as a result of net
HMO and PPO membership decreases, primarily in California and

T eXaS i 366
Increases in health care services and other expenses as a result of

health care cost trends and increases in capitation expense . ........ (469)
Increase over the comparable period of the prior year . .............. 126

Senior Margin. Our senior margin increased 18%, or $118 million, to $783 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002, compared to $665 million the same period in the prior year as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2002

(Amounts in millions)

Senior revenue decreases (as noted above) ......... ... ... ... ... $(911)
Decreases in health care services and other expenses as a result of

HMO membership decreases, primarily in California and Texas .. .. 1,192
Increases in health care services and other expenses as a result of

health care cost trends partially offset by benefit adjustments. ...... _(163)
Increase over the comparable period of the prior year ............... 118

Specialty and Other Margin. Our specialty and other margin decreased 1%, or $3 million, to

$245 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The decrease was primarily driven by the loss of
PacifiCare senior dental and vision members attributable to dental benefit changes effective

January 1, 2002.
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Medical Loss Ratio. The consolidated MLR and its components, unadjusted for any prior period
changes in healthcare cost estimates, for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the prior year are as
follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2002 2001
Medical loss ratio:

Consolidated .. ... .. . 86.8% 89.7%
Private — Commercial . . ... ... i e 87.1% 89.3%
Private — Senior. .. ... 53.5% 79.7%
Private — Consolidated . .......... .. .. i 86.7% 89.2%
GOVErNMENt —— SEMIOT .. .\ttt ettt it et e te e e 86.9% 90.1%
Government — Consolidated . . ............ ... ... . 86.9% 90.1%

Private — Commercial Medical Loss Ratio. Our private — commercial medical loss ratio decreased
to 87.1% for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to 89.3% in the prior year. The decrease
was driven by significant premium rate increases that outpaced an increase in health care services
and other expenses on both an absolute dollar and per member per month basis.

Private — Senior Medical Loss Ratio. Our private — senior medical loss ratio decreased to 53.5%
for year ended December 31, 2002 compared to 79.7% in the prior year. The decrease was driven by
rate increases, benefit reductions primarily of prescription drugs, effective January 1, 2002 and
decreased utilization attributable to our medical management programs that outpaced an increase in
health care services and other expenses on a per member per month basis.

Government — Senior Medical Loss Ratio. Our government — senior medical loss ratio decreased
to 86.9% for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to 90.1% in the prior year. The decrease
was driven by a 8% increase in premium revenue, offset partially by a 4% decrease in health care
services and other expenses.

Selling, Gereral and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses
increased $82 million to $1.4 billion for the year ended December 31, 2002, from $1.3 billion in the
prior year. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased primarily due to increased spending
for information technology, or IT, initiatives, our PacifiCare and Secure Horizons brand building
campaign and incentive compensation costs. These costs were partially offset by lower labor costs as
a result of our 2001 corporate restructuring and no goodwill amortization in 2002 due to the adoption
of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. See Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of operating revenue {excluding net
investment income) increased compared to the prior year primarily due to declines in operating
revenue (excluding net investment income) totaling $641 million for the year ended December 31,
2002.

Year Ended
December 31,
2002 2001
Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of operating
revenue (excluding net investment income) .......... ... ..., 12.4% 11.0%

Impairment, Disposition, Restructuring, Office of Personnel Management, or OPM, and Other
Charges. We recognized net pretax charges of approximately $3.7 million ($2.2 million or $0.04
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diluted loss per share, net of tax) for the year ended December 31, 2002. See Note 10 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased 7%, or $5 million, to $75 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002, from $70 million in the prior year due to our sale of $500 million in aggregate
principal amount of 10%:% senior notes in May 2002, which carried a higher annual interest rate than
the debt we repaid using the proceeds of that offering. The increase was partially offset by cash
redemptions of a portion of our outstanding 7% FHP senior notes and our sale of $135 million in
aggregate principal amount of 3% convertible subordinated debentures in the fourth quarter of 2002,
which carried a lower annual interest rate than the debt we repaid using a portion of the proceeds of
that offering. See Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Provision for Income Taxes. The effective income tax rate was 37.3% for the year ended

December 31, 2002, compared with 67.9% in 2001. The decrease was primarily attributable to our
adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, effective January 1, 2002. Under SFAS No. 142, beginning with the first quarter of
2002, goodwill is no longer being amortized. Because a significant portion of our goodwill
amortization was nondeductible, this accounting change caused a significant reduction to our effective
tax rate.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operating Cash Flows. Our consolidated cash, equivalents and marketable securities increased
$411 million, or 19%, to $2.6 billion at December 31, 2003, from $2.1 billion at December 31, 2002.

Cash flows provided by operations were $414 million (or $397 million, excluding the impact of
unearned premium revenue) for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to cash flows provided
by operations of $242 million (or $312 million, excluding the impact of unearned premium revenue)
for the year ended December 31, 2002. The increase was primarily related to our increased net
income for the year ended December 31, 2003 and the changes in assets and liabilities as discussed
below in “Other Balance Sheet Change Explanations.”

Investing Activities. For the year ended December 31, 2003, investing activities used $202 million
of cash, compared to $278 million used during the year ended December 31, 2002. The change was
primarily related to decreased purchases of restricted marketable securities, partially offset by an
increase in purchases of unrestricted marketable securities.

Financing Activities. For the year ended December 31, 2003, financing activities provided
$34 million of cash, compared to $10 million provided during the year ended December 31, 2002.
During the year ended December 31, 2003, the significant changes were as follows:

* We redeemed $175 million in principal of our 10 3% senior notes, paid a redemption premium of
$19 million and received approximately $200 million of net proceeds from our public offering of
7.6 million shares of common stock in 2003, after adjusting the number of shares for the two-for-
one stock split in the form of a stock dividend.

* We paid $151 million on our previous senior credit facility and received $150 million of proceeds
from our new syndicated senior credit facility in 2003.

» We paid $43 million on the remaining principal balance from the FHP senior notes by liquidating
the restricted cash collateral which was established for this purpose, with no comparable activity
during 2002.

» We received $41 million from the issuance of common stock for year ended December 31, 2003 in
connection with our Employee Stock Purchase Plan and exercises of employee stock options
compared to $5 million during the same period in 2002.
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« We paid $7 million in loan fees in connection with the replacement of our senior credit facility in
June 2003. In 2002, we paid $38 million in loan fees, including $20 million in connection with the
10%% senior notes offering, $13 million in connection with the amendment to the previous senior
credit facility, and $5 million in connection with the 3% convertible subordinated debentures
offering.

« We received $135 million from the 3% convertible subordinated debentures offering in 2002, with
no comparable activity during 2003.

» We paid $554 million under our senior credit facility, including $499 million under the term loan
facility and $55 million under the revolving credit facility, and received $497 million of proceeds
from the 10% senior notes offering in 2002.

* We received $9 million in proceeds from a draw down on an equity commitment arrangement in
2002, with no comparable activity during 2003.

We have $135 million in aggregate principal amount of 3% convertible subordinated debentures due
in 2032. The debentures are convertible into 6,428,566 shares of common stock under certain
conditions, including satisfaction of a market price condition for our common stock, satisfaction of a
trading price condition relating to the debentures, upon notice of redemption, or upon specified
corporate transactions. Each $1,000 of the debentures is convertible into 47.619 shares of our
common stock. The market price condition for conversion of the debentures is satisfied if the closing
sale price of our common stock exceeds 110% of the conversion price (which is calculated at

$23.10 per share) for the debentures for at least 20 trading days in the 30 consecutive trading days
ending on the last trading day of any fiscal quarter. In the event that the market price condition is
satisfied during any fiscal quarter, the debentures are convertible, at the option of the holder, during
the following fiscal quarter. The market price condition is evaluated each quarter to determine
whether the debentures will be convertible at the option of the holder during the following fiscal
quarter. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, the market price condition described above
was satisfied for the quarters ended September 30, 2003 and December 31, 2003. As a result, the
debentures were convertible during the quarter ended December 31, 2003 and remain convertible at
the option of the holder at any time during the quarter ended March 31, 2004. While no debentures
were converted as of December 31, 2003, they are considered common stock equivalents and are
included in the calculation of weighted average shares outstanding on a diluted basis for the fourth
quarter and fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.

Beginning in October 2007, we may redeem for cash all or any portion of the debentures, at a
purchase price of 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest, upon not less than 30 nor more
than 60 days’ written notice to the holders. Beginning in October 2007, and in successive 5-year
increments, our holders may require us to repurchase the debentures for cash at a repurchase price of
100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest. Qur payment obligations under the debentures
are subordinated to our senior indebtedness, and effectively subordinated to all indebtedness and
other liabilities of our subsidiaries.

We have $325 million in aggregate principal amount of 103%% senior notes due in 2009 outstanding.
The 10%:% senior notes were issued in May 2002 at 99.389% of the aggregate principal amount
representing a discount of $3 million that is being amortized over the term of the notes. In
December 2003, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the indenture, we redeemed

$175 million in principal of the senior notes at a redemption price equal to 110.750%, plus accrued
and unpaid interest on the notes as of the redemption date. We expensed approximately $28 million
in connection with the redemption, including the pro-rata write-off of the initial discount, the
redemption premium and other fees and expenses associated with the transaction. We may redeem
the remaining 10%% senior notes at any time on or after June 1, 2006 at an initial redemption price
equal to 105.375% of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. The redemption price
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will thereafter decline annually. Additionally, at any time on or prior to June 1, 2006, we may
redeem the 10°%4% senior notes upon a change of control, as defined in the indenture for the notes, at
100% of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest and a “make-whole” premium.

Certain of our domestic, unregulated subsidiaries fully and unconditionally guarantee the

10%:% senior notes. Prior to September 15, 2003, some of our domestic, unregulated subsidiaries
were restricted from guaranteeing the 10%% senior notes by the terms of the FHP senior notes. As
the FHP senior notes were repaid in full on September 15, 2003, these subsidiaries now fully and
unconditionally guarantee the 10°:% senior notes. See Note 15 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In April 2003, we entered into an interest rate swap on $300 million of our 10%.% senior notes for
the purpose of hedging the fair value of our indebtedness. This fair value hedge is accounted for
using the short-cut method under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, whereby the hedge is reported in our balance sheets at fair value, and the carrying
value of the long-term debt is adjusted for an offsetting amount representing changes in fair value
attributable to the hedged risk. Under the terms of the agreement, we make interest payments based
on the three-month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 692 basis points and receive
interest payments based on the 10%% fixed rate. Our rate under the swap agreement was 8.09%, at
December 31, 2003 which is based on a 90-day LIBOR of 1.17% plus 692 basis points. The three-
month LIBOR rate we use to determine our interest payments under the swap agreement was first
established on June 2, 2003 and resets every three months thereafter, until expiration in June 2009.

In June 2003, we replaced our senior credit facility with a new syndicated facility with JPMorgan
Chase Bank serving as the Administrative Agent. The new facility consists of a $150 million term
loan, which matures on June 3, 2008, and a $150 million revolving line of credit, which matures on
June 3, 2006. We used the proceeds from the term loan to repay the $131 million outstanding under
the prior facility. The remaining $19 million was used to pay fees and expenses relating to the new
facility and for general corporate purposes. As of December 31, 2003, we had $149 million
outstanding on the term loan and no balance outstanding on the revolving line of credit. We
borrowed and repaid $3 million under the revolving line of credit during the year ended

December 31, 2003.

On December 17, 2003, our senior credit facility was amended to provide for reduced interest rates
per annum applicable to term loan borrowings, with the amount of margin spread for the borrowing
being determined by our current debt ratings. The amended applicable rates are, at our option, either
JPMorgan Chase Bank’s prime rate (or, if greater, the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5%) which we
refer to as the alternative base rate, plus a margin spread of 1.25% to 1.75% per annum, or the
LIBOR for the applicable interest period, plus a margin spread of 2.25% to 2.75% per annum. All of
our borrowings under the term loan are currently LIBOR borrowings, and the current margin spread
on our term loan borrowings is 2.50%. As of December 31, 2003, our term loan rate was 3.68% per
annum, which is based on a 90-day LIBOR of 1.18% plus the applicable margin spread of 2.50%.
The interest rates per annum under the senior credit facility applicable to revolving credit borrowings
are, at our option, either the alternate base rate plus a margin spread of between 1.5% to 2.75% per
annum, or the LIBOR for the applicable interest period plus a margin spread of between 2.5% to
3.75% per annum, with the amount of the margin for any borrowing being determined based on
current credit ratings for the debt under the senior credit facility, Our current margins for revolving
credit borrowings are 2.25% per annum for alternate base rate borrowings and 3.25% per annum for
LIBOR borrowings.

The terms of the senior credit facility contain various covenants customary for financings of this type
which place restrictions on our and/or our subsidiaries’ ability to incur debt, pay dividends, create
liens, make investments, optionally repay, redeem or repurchase our securities, and enter into
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mergers, dispositions and transactions with affiliates. The senior credit facility also requires us to
meet various financial ratios, including a minimum net worth requirement, a minimum fixed-charge
coverage requirement and a maximum leverage ratio. At December 31, 2003, we were in compliance
with all of these covenants. See Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Certain of our domestic, unregulated subsidiaries provide guarantees and have granted security
interests to the lenders in substantially all of their personal property in order to secure our obligations
under the senior credit facility. We have also pledged the equity of certain of our subsidiaries to the
lenders. Prior to September 15, 2003, some of our domestic, unregulated subsidiaries were restricted
from guaranteeing the senior credit facility by the terms of the FHP senior notes. As the FHP senior
notes were repaid in full on September 15, 2003, these subsidiaries now fully and unconditionally
guarantee the senior credit facility.

Revolving
Term Loan Credit
Facility Facility Total
(Amounts in millions)
Balance at December 31,2001......................... $ 650 $ 55 $ 705
~ Proceeds applied from funding of 10%:% senior notes ... ... (315) (54) (369)
Scheduled payments ......... ... . i, (60) - (60)
Proceeds applied from funding of convertible subordinated
debentures. ......... ... (53) — (53)
Proceeds applied from sales of property ................. (35) — (35)
Payments under amendment to senior credit facility .. ... .. (32) — (32)
Proceeds applied from equity commitment arrangement. . . . (4) (1) (5)
Balance at December 31, 2002. . ....................... 151 — 151
Scheduled payments under prior senior credit facility ... ... (20) — (20)
Repayment of outstanding balance under prior senior credit
facility .. ... (131) — (131)
Proceeds from borrowing under new senior credit facility . . . 150 3 153
Scheduled payments under new senior credit facility ...... (1) (3) 4)
Balance at December 31,2003......................... $ 149 $ — $ 149
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Our contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2003, including long-term debt and other
commitments, were as follows:

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1 - 3 years 3 -5 years 5 years

(Amounts in millions)

Long-term debt:

10%:% senior notes, net of discount ...... $ 323 $ — $ — $ — $323
Senior term loan...................... 149 2 24 123 —
Convertible subordinated debentures ... .. 135 — — — 135
Database financing agreement. .......... 9 5 4 — —
Other .......... ... ... .. ... ..., 4 - 2 1 _ 1
Total long-term debt commitments,
including current maturities......... 620 _ 1 30 124 459

Other commitments:

Information technology outsourcing '
contracts(l) ........ ... ... .. ... ..., 1,118 175 306 263 374

Operating leases ........................ 107 27 44 25 11
Purchase obligations(2) .................. 51 27 14 6 4
Interest on long-term debt, including current
maturities(3) . ... 288 37 74 68 109
Other long-term liabilities reflected on our
balance sheet under GAAP............. 28 — — — 28
Total other commitments ............ 1,592 266 438 362 526
Total contractual cash obligations.......... $2,212 $273 $468 $486 $985

(1) Amounts under information technology outsourcing contracts reflect our payment obligations for
the resource baselines specified in the applicable outsourcing contracts and do not take into
consideration any rights we may have under these contracts to reduce or eliminate resource
usage or baselines.

(2) Purchase obligations include agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and
legally binding on us and that specify all significant terms, including: fixed or minimum
quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or variable price provisions; and the approximate
timing of the transaction. This includes contracts which are cancelable with notice and the
payment of an early termination penalty. Purchase obligations exclude agreements that are
cancelable without penalty and also exclude liabilities to the extent presented on the balance
sheet as of December 31, 2003.

We are subject to various contracts with certain health care providers and facilities for the
provision of health care services to its members. Such contracts involve payments from us,
generally on a monthly basis, in the ordinary course of business and are not included in the
above table because we are not required to make minimum payments under these contracts.

(3) Interest on long-term debt is calculated using the stated rates per the financing agreements. For
debt with variable rates, such as the swap on $300 million of our 10%% senior notes and the
senior term loan, the rate in place as of December 31, 2003 was used to estimate all remaining
payments.
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As of December 31, 2003 we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that are required to be
disclosed under Item 303(a) (4) (ii) of SEC Regulation S-K.

In February 2004, our debt was rated below investment grade by the major credit rating agencies as
follows:

Senior 10%:% Convertible
Credit Senior Subordinated

Agency Outlook Facility Notes Debentures
Moody's. ... Positive ~ Ba3 Bl B2
Standard & Poor’s ........ ... ... ... oL Stable BB+ BB+ B
FitchIBCA.......... ... .. Positive BB BB B+

Consequently, if we seek to raise funds in capital markets transactions, our ability to do so will be
limited to issuing additional non-investment grade debt or issuing equity and/or equity-linked
instruments.

We expect to fund our working capital requirements and capital expenditures during the next twelve
months from our cash flow from operations or from capital market transactions. We have taken a
number of steps to increase our internally generated cash flow, including increasing premiums,
increasing our marketing of specialty product lines, introducing new products to generate new
revenue sources and reducing our health care expenses by, among other things, exiting from
unprofitable markets and cost savings initiatives. If our cash flow is less than we expect due to one or
more of the risk factors described in “Cautionary Statements,” or our cash flow requirements
increase for reasons we do not currently foresee or we make any acquisitions as part of our growth
strategy, then we may need to draw down available funds on our revolving line of credit which
matures in June 2006 or issue additional debt or equity securities. A failure to comply with any
covenant in the senior credit facility could make funds under our revolving line of credit unavailable.
We also may be required to take additional actions to reduce our cash flow requirements, including
the deferral of planned investments aimed at reducing our selling, general and administrative
expenses. The deferral or cancellation of any investments could have a material adverse impact on
our ability to meet our short-term business objectives. We regularly evaluate cash requirements for
current operations and commitments, and for capital acquisitions and other strategic transactions. We
may elect to raise additional funds for these purposes either through additional debt or equity, the
sale of investment securities or otherwise as appropriate. We have an effective shelf registration
statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission under which we may sell common
stock, preferred stock, depositary shares, debt securities, warrants, stock purchase contracts and stock
purchase units in one or more offerings from time to time up to a total dollar amount of

$600 million. As of December 31, 2003, we have approximately $400 million available under the
shelf registration after our common stock offering in November 2003. The actual amount of any
securities issued, the terms of those securities and the intended use of the proceeds from any sale,
will be determined at the time of sale, if any such sale occurs.

Other Balance Sheet Change Explanations

Receivables, Net. Receivables, net as of December 31, 2003, decreased $24 million from
December 31, 2002 due to the decrease in provider receivables from collections and settlements
primarily in California and Washington.

Medical Claims and Benefits Payable. The majority of our medical claims and benefits payable
represents liabilities related to our risk-based contracts. Under risk-based contracts, claims are
payable once incurred and cash disbursements are made to health care providers for services provided
to members after the related claim has been submitted and adjudicated. Under capitated contracts,
health care providers are prepaid on a fixed-fee per member per month basis, regardless of the
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services provided to members. The liabilities that arise for capitated contracts relate to timing issues
primarily due to membership changes that may occur. As of December 31, 2003, approximately 85%
of medical claims and benefits payable was attributable to risk-based contracts.

The following table presents the breakdown of our medical claims and benefits payable:

December 31, December 31,

2003 2002

(Amounts in millions)
Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) ....................... $ 826 $ 753
Capitation and All Other Medical Claims and Benefits Payable 202 292
Medical Claims and Benefits Payable ...................... $1,028 $1,045

Medical claims and benefits payable as of December 31, 2003 decreased $17 million from the
balance as of December 31, 2002, primarily due to a $90 million reduction in capitation and all other
medical claims and benefits payable due primarily to annual settlements of provider risk sharing
programs through payouts or by offsetting of risk program receivables against risk program liabilities.
IBNR increased $73 million as a result of an increase in commercial risk membership and
commercial health care costs per member, partially offset by a decrease in the elapsed time between
the date health care services were provided and payment of the related claims liabilities as compared
to December 31, 2002.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, including
accrued compensation and employee benefits, increased $52 million from December 31, 2002,
primarily due to an increase of $39 million related to increases in liabilities for reinsurance and legal
expenses and the timing of payments of trade accounts payable and other accruals, an increase of
$16 million in accrued compensation and an increase of $10 million in accrued taxes, partially offset
by a decrease of $13 million in OPM reserves.

Stockholders’ Equity. The decrease in treasury stock and additional paid-in capital from

December 31, 2002 were primarily due to the retirement of all 23 million shares of outstanding
treasury stock, partially offset by the issuance of 7.6 million shares in connection with the public
common stock offering and 1.5 million shares of restricted common stock that we granted as part of
an employee recognition and retention program during the year ended December 31, 2003. All share
data have been adjusted for the effect of the two-for-one stock split in the form of a stock dividend
that was effective January 20, 2004. See Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Adoption of New Accounting Policy — Stock-Based Compensation

For the year ended December 31, 2003, we recognized approximately $8 million, net of tax, of
compensation expense related to stock-based compensation for employees and directors related to
stock options and shares under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Prior to 2003, we accounted for
our stock-based employee and director compensation plans under the recognition and measurement
provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related
Interpretations. Stock-based employee and director compensation cost was not reflected in the net
loss for the year ended December 31, 2002, because all options granted under our plans had exercise
prices equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Effective
January 1, 2003, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, on a prospective basis for all employee and director
awards granted, modified, or settled after January 1, 2003. Awards to employees typically vest over
four years. Therefore, the cost related to stock-based employee and director compensation included in
the determination of net income for 2003 is less than that which would have been recognized if the
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fair value based method had been applied to all awards granted, modified or settled since October 1,
1995. See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

When we prepare our consolidated financial statements, we use estimates and assumptions that may
affect reported amounts and disclosures. The accounting estimates that we believe involve the most
complex judgments, and are the most critical to the accurate reporting of our financial condition and
results of operations include the following:

Incurred But Not Reported or Paid Claims Reserves. We estimate the amount of our reserves for
claims incurred but not reported (including those received but not yet paid), or IBNR, under our
risk-based provider contracts and our fee-for service carve-outs from our capitated provider contracts,
primarily using standard actuarial methodologies based on historical data. These standard actuarial
methodologies include, among other factors, contractual requirements, historical utilization trends,
the interval between the date services are rendered and the date claims are paid, denied claims
activity, disputed claims activity, benefit changes, expected health care cost inflation, seasonality
patterns and changes in membership. In developing the IBNR estimate, we apply different estimation
methods depending on the month for which incurred claims are being estimated. For example, we
actuarially calculate completion factors using our analysis of claims payment patterns over the most
recent 36-month period. The completion factor is an actuarial estimate, based upon historical
experience, of the percentage of claims incurred during a given period that has been adjudicated by
us as of the date of estimation. We then apply these completion factors to the actual claims paid to-
date for each incurral month, except for the most recent months, to estimate the expected amount of
ultimate incurred claims for each of these months. We do not believe that completion factors are a
reliable basis for estimating claims incurred for the most recent two to four months, because claims
likely have not had enough time to achieve a trendable level of completion. Therefore, for the more
recent months, we estimate our claims incurred by applying observed trend factors to the per
member per month (PMPM) costs for prior months, which costs have been estimated using
completion factors, in order to estimate the PMPMs for the most recent months. We validate our
estimates of the most recent PMPMs by comparing the most recent months’ utilization levels to the
utilization levels in older months. This approach is consistently applied from period to period.

The completion factors and claims PMPM trend factors are the most significant factors we use in
estimating our IBNR. The following table illustrates the sensitivity of these factors and the estimated
potential impact on the Company’s operating results caused by these factors:

Completion Factor(a) Increase (Decrease) in
Increase (Decrease) in Factor Medical Claims Payable
(Amounts in millions)
(3)% $ 41
(2)% 27
(1)% 13
1% (13)
2% (26)
3% (39)
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Claims Trend Factor(b) Increase (Decrease) in

Increase (Decrease) in Factor Medical Claims Payable
(Amounts in millions)
(3)% $(2)
(2)% (1)
% (1)
1% 1
2% 1
3% 2

(a) Reflects estimated potential changes in medical claims payable caused by changes in completion
factors in each of the most recent four months.

(b) Reflects estimated potential changes in medical claims payable caused by changes in annualized
claims trend used for the estimation of per member per month claims for the most recent four
months.

In addition, assuming a hypothetical 1% difference between our December 31, 2003 estimated claims
liability and the actual claims incurred run-out, net income for the year ended December 31, 2003
would increase or decrease by approximately $8.3 million, while diluted net income per share would
increase or decrease by $0.06 per share, net of tax, after adjusting for the two-for-one stock split in
the form of a stock dividend that was effective January 20, 2004.

The estimates for submitted claims and IBNR claims liabilities are made on an accrual basis and
adjusted, based on actual claims data, in future periods as required. Adjustments to prior period
estimates, if any, are included in the current period. We also consider exceptional situations that
might require judgmental adjustments in establishing our best estimate, such as system conversions,
processing interruptions, or environmental changes. None of these factors had a material impact on
the development of our claims payable estimates during any of the periods reflected in this filing.

For new products, such as our PPO products, estimates are initially based on health care cost data
provided by third parties. This data includes assumptions for member age, gender and geography.
The models that we use to prepare estimates for cach product are adjusted to be in line with the
approach discussed above as we accumulate actual claims data. Such estimates could materially
understate or overstate our actual liability for medical claims and benefits payable.

Provider Insolvency Reserves. We maintain insolvency reserves for our capitated contracts with
providers that include estimates for potentially insolvent providers, where conditions indicate claims
are not being paid or have slowed considerably, and we have determined that it is probable that we
will be required to make the providers’ claim payments. These insolvency reserves include the
estimated cost of unpaid health care claims that were previously the responsibility of the capitated
provider. Depending on states’ laws, we may be held liable for unpaid health care claims that were
previously the responsibility of the capitated provider and for which we have already paid capitation.
These estimates could materially understate or overstate our actual liability for medical claims and
benefits payable.

Ordinary Course Legal Proceedings. From time to time, we are involved in legal proceedings that
involve claims for coverage and tort liability encountered in the ordinary course of business. The loss
of even one of these claims, if it results in a significant punitive damage award, could have a material
adverse effect on our business. In addition, our exposure to potential liability under punitive damage
theories may significantly decrease our ability to settle these claims on reasonable terms.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

In connection with the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995, we are hereby filing cautionary statements identifying important risk factors that could cause
our actual results to differ materially from those projected in “forward looking statements™ of the
Company made by or on behalf of the Company (in this report or otherwise), within the meaning of
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended. These forward looking statements relate to future events or our future
financial and/or operating performance and can generally be identified as such because the context of
the statement will include words such as “may,” “will,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “anticipates,”
“expects,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “continue,” or “opportunity,” the negative of these
words or words of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe our reserves and our future
plans, strategies, intentions, expectations, objectives, goals or prospects are also forward looking
statements. These forward looking statements are based largely on our expectations and projections
about future events and future trends affecting our business, and so are subject to risks and
uncertainties, including the risks and uncertainties set forth below, that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those anticipated as of the date of this report. In addition, past financial and/or
operating performance is not necessarily a reliable indicator of future performance and you should
not use our historical performance to anticipate results or future period trends. In evaluating these
statements, you should specifically consider the risks described below and in other parts of this
report. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date of this report.

LR

Risks Relating to Us and Our Industry

Our profitability will depend in part on accurately pricing our products and predicting health care
costs and on our ability to control future health care costs.

Our profitability depends in part on our ability to price our products accurately, predict our health
care costs and control future health care costs through underwriting criteria, medical and disease
management programs, product design and negotiation of favorable provider and hospital contracts.
We use our underwriting systems to establish and assess premium rates based on accumulated
actuarial data, with adjustments for factors such as claims experience and hospital and physician
contract changes. We may be less able to accurately price our new products than our other products
because of our relative lack of experience and accumulated data for our new products. Premiums on
our commercial products are generally fixed for one-year periods. Each of our subsidiaries that offers
Medicare+Choice products must submit adjusted community rate proposals, generally by county or
service area, to CMS in early September for each Medicare+Choice product that will be offered in a
subsequent year. As a result, increases in the costs of health care services in excess of the estimated
future health care costs reflected in the premiums or the adjusted community rate proposals generally
cannot be recovered in the applicable contract year through higher premiums or benefit designs.

Our actual health care costs may exceed our estimates reflected in premiums and adjusted
community rates due to various factors, including increased utilization of medical facilities and
services, including prescription drugs, changes in demographic characteristics, the regulatory
environment, changes in health care practices, medical cost inflation, new treatment and
technologies, continued consolidation of physician, hospital and other provider groups, termination of
capitation arrangements resulting in transfer of membership to risk based arrangements and
contractual disputes with providers. Our failure to adequately price our products or predict and
control health care costs may result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.
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If we fail to implement successfully our strategic initiatives, our revenues could decline and our
results of operations could be adversely affected.

Our performance depends in part upon our ability to implement our business strategy of expanding
our product portfolio and increasing our commercial and specialty memberships, managing our
participation in the Medicare+Choice program in light of the new Medicare legislation and growth
opportunity, and ultimately evolving into a consumer health organization. In 2002 and 2003, we
experienced a decline in revenue from our reduced participation in Medicare+Choice and a loss of
unprofitable commercial membership. We are seeking to replace revenue and increase our
commercial business through a number of new product initiatives. Our revenues could decline if we
lose membership, fail to increase membership in targeted markets or fail to gain market acceptance
for new products for any reason, including:

+ the effect of premium increases, benefit changes and member-paid supplemental premiums and
copayments on the retention of existing members and the enrollment of new members;

+ the member’s assessment of our benefits, quality of service, our ease of use and our network
stability for members in comparison to competing health plans;

« reductions in work force by existing customers and/or reductions in benefits purchased by existing
customers; and

+ negative publicity and news coverage about us or litigation or threats of litigation against us.

Our operating results could be adversely affected if our actual health care claims exceed our
reserves or our liability for unpaid claims of insolvent providers under capitation agreements
exceeds our insolvency reserves.

We estimate the amount of our reserves for submitted claims and claims that have been incurred but
not yet reported or IBNR claims primarily using standard actuarial methodologies based upon
historical data. The estimates for submitted claims and IBNR claims liabilities are made on an
accrual basis, are continually reviewed and are adjusted in current operations as required. Given the
uncertainties inherent in such estimates, the reserves could materially understate or overstate our
actual liability for claims and benefits payable. Any increases to these prior estimates could adversely
affect our results of operations in future periods.

Our capitated providers could become insolvent and expose us to unanticipated expenses. We
maintain insolvency reserves that include estimates for potentially insolvent providers, where
conditions indicate claims are not being paid or have slowed considerably. Depending on states’ laws,
we may be held liable for unpaid health care claims that were previously the responsibility of the
capitated provider and for which we have already paid capitation. We may also incur additional
health care costs in the event of provider instability that causes us to replace a provider at less cost-
effective rates to continue providing health care services to our members.

To reduce insolvency risk, we have developed contingency plans that include shifting members to
other providers and reviewing operational and financial plans to monitor and maximize financial and
network stability. As capitation contracts are renewed for providers we have also taken steps, where
feasible, to have security reserves established for insolvency issues. Security reserves are most
frequently in the forms of letters of credit or segregated funds that are held in the provider’s name in
a third party financial institution. The reserves may be used to pay claims that are the financial
responsibility of the provider. These security reserves may not be adequate to cover claims that are
the financial responsibility of the provider.
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A disruption in our health care provider network could have an adverse effect on our ability to
market our products and our profitability.

Our profitability is dependent in part upon our ability to contract with health care providers on
favorable terms. In any particular market, health care providers could refuse to contract with us,
demand higher payments or take other actions that could result in higher health care costs or our
difficulty in meeting regulatory or accreditation requirements. In some markets, health care providers
may have significant market positions or may be the only available health care provider. If health
care providers refuse to contract with us, use their market position to negotiate favorable contracts,
or place us at a competitive disadvantage, then our ability to market products or to be profitable in
those markets could be adversely affected. Our provider networks could also be disrupted by the
financial insolvency of large provider groups. Any disruption in our provider network could result in a
loss of membership or higher health care costs.

We may be exposed to liability or fail to estimate IBNR accurately if we cannot process our
increased volume of claims accurately and timely.

We have regulatory risk for the timely processing and payment of claims. If we, or any entities with
whom we subcontract to process or pay claims, are unable to handle continued increased claims
volume, or if we are unable to pay claims timely we may be subject to regulatory censure and
penalties, which could have a material adverse effect on our operations and results of operations. In
addition, if our claims processing system is unable to process claims accurately, the data we use for
our IBNR estimates could be incomplete and our ability to estimate claims liabilities and establish
adequate reserves could be adversely affected.

Our profitability may be adversely affected if we are unable to adequately control our prescription
drug costs.

Overall, prescription drug costs have been rising for the past few years. The increases are due to the
introduction of new drugs that treat new conditions or have fewer side effects, new medications
costing significantly more than existing drugs, direct consumer advertising by the pharmaceutical
industry creating consumer demand for particular brand drugs, patients seeking medications to
address lifestyle changes, higher prescribed doses of medications and enhanced pharmacy benefits for
members such as reduced copayments and higher benefit maximums. We may be unable to predict
these costs when establishing our premiums or completely manage these costs, which could adversely
impact our profitability.

Increases in our selling, general and administrative expenses could harm our profitability.

Our selling, general and administrative expenses have been rising due in part to our continued
investment in strategic initiatives and could increase more than we anticipate as a result of a number
of factors, which could adversely impact our profitability. These factors include:

» our need for additional investments in PBM expansion, branding and advertising campaigns,
medical management, underwriting and actuarial resources and technology;

« our need for additional investments in information technology projects, including consolidation of
our existing systems that manage membership, eligibility, capitation, claims processing and
payment information and other important information;

» our need for increased claims administration, personnel and systems;

» our greater emphasis on small group and individual health insurance products, which may result in
an increase in the broker commissions we pay;
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+ the necessity to comply with regulatory requirements;

« the success or lack of success of our marketing and sales plans to attract new customers, and
create customer acceptance for new products;

« our ability to estimate costs for our self-insured retention for medical malpractice claims; and

» our ability to estimate legal expenses and settlements associated with litigation that has been or
could be brought against us.

In addition, our selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of our revenue could
increase due to changes in our product mix among commercial, senior and specialty products and
unexpected declines in our membership and related revenue. If we do not generate expected cash
flow from operations, we could be forced to postpone or cancel some of these planned investments,
which would adversely affect our ability to meet our short-term strategic plan.

The inability or failure to properly maintain management information systems, or any inability or
failure to successfully update or expand processing capability or develop new capabilities to meet
our business needs could result in operational disruptions and other adverse consequences.

Our business depends significantly on effective information systems. The information gathered and
processed by our management information systems assists us in among other things, marketing and
sales tracking, underwriting, billing, claims processing, capitation processing, medical management,
medical cost and utilization trending, financial and management accounting, reporting, planning and
analysis and e-commerce. These systems also support our on-line customer service functions, provider
and member administrative functions and support our tracking and extensive analyses of health care
costs and outcome data. Any inability or failure to properly maintain management information
systems, or any inability or failure to successfully update or expand processing capability or develop
new capabilities to meet our business needs, could result in operational disruptions, loss of existing
customers, difficulty in attracting new customers, disputes with customers and providers, regulatory
problems, increases in administrative expenses and other adverse consequences.

We are subject to class action lawsuits that could result in material liabilities to us or cause us to
incur material costs, to change our operating procedures or comply with increased regulatory
requirements.

Health care providers and members are currently attacking practices of the HMO industry through a
number of lawsuits brought against us and other HMOs, including In re Managed Care. The class
action lawsuits brought by health care providers allege that HMOs’ claims processing systems
automatically and impermissibly alter codes included on providers’ reimbursement/claims forms to
reduce the amount of reimbursement, and that HMOs impose unfair contracting terms on health
care providers, impermissibly delay making capitated payments under their capitated contracts, and
negotiate capitation payments that are inadequate to cover the costs of health care services provided.

These lawsuits, including those filed to date against us, may take years to resolve and cause us to
incur substantial litigation expenses. Depending upon the outcomes of these cases, these lawsuits may
cause or force changes in practices of the HMO industry. These cases also may cause additional
regulation of the industry through new federal or state laws. These actions and actions brought by
state attorney generals ultimately could adversely affect the HMO industry and, whether due to
damage awards, required changes to our operating procedures, increased regulatory requirements or
otherwise, have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows
and prospects.
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We are subject to other litigation in the ordinary course of business that may result in material
liabilities to us, including liabilities for which we may not be insured.

We are, in the ordinary course of business, subject to the claims of our members arising out of
decisions to deny or restrict reimbursement for services, including medical malpractice claims related
to our taking a more active role in managing the cost of medical care. The loss of even one of these
claims, if it results in a significant punitive damage award, could have a material adverse effect on
our business. In addition, our exposure to potential liability under punitive damage theories may
significantly decrease our ability to settle these claims on reasonable terms. We maintain general
liability, property, excess managed care errors and omissions and medical malpractice insurance
coverage. We are at risk for our self-insured retention on these claims, and are substantially self-
insured for errors and omissions and medical malpractice claims through a combination of retention
and through premiums we pay to a captive insurance carrier. Coverages typically include varying and
increasing levels of self-insured retention or deductibles that increase our risk of loss.

As a government contractor, we are exposed to risks that could materially affect our revenue or
profitability from our Medicare+Choice products or our willingness to participate in the Medicare
program.

The Medicare program has accounted for 49% of our total revenue in 2003 and more than 50% of
our total revenue in each of the prior five years. CMS regulates the benefits provided, premiums
paid, quality assurance procedures, marketing and advertising for our Medicare+Choice products.
CMS may terminate our Medicare+Choice contracts or elect not to renew those contracts when
those contracts come up for renewal every 12 months. Although we expect to receive increased
government funding under the newly enacted DIMA legislation, we may still face the risk of reduced
or insufficient government reimbursement and the need to continue to exit unprofitable markets. The
loss of Medicare contracts or changes in the regulatory requirements governing the Medicare+Choice
program or the program itself could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

We compete in highly competitive markets and our inability to compete effectively for any reason in
any of those markets could adversely affect our profitability.

We operate in highly competitive markets. Consolidation of acute care hospitals and continuing
consolidation of insurance carriers, other HMOs, employer self-funded programs and PPOs, some of
which have substantially larger enrollments or greater financial resources than ours, has created
competition for hospitals, physicians and members, impacting profitability and the ability to influence
medical management. The cost of providing benefits is in many instances the controlling factor in
obtaining and retaining employer groups as clients and some of our competitors have set premium
rates at levels below our rates for comparable products. We anticipate that premium pricing will
continue to be highly competitive. In addition, PBM companies have continued to consolidate,
competing with our PBM, Prescription Solutions. Some PBMs possess greater financial, marketing
and other resources than we possess. If we are unable to compete effectively in any of our markets,
our business may be adversely affected.

Our business activities are highly regulated and new and proposed government regulation or
legislative reforms could increase our cost of doing business, reduce our membership or subject us
to additional litigation.

Our health plans are subject to substantial federal and state government regulations, including those
relating to:

» maintenance of minimum net worth or risk based capital;
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licensing requirements;
approval of policy language and benefits;
mandated benefits and administrative processes;

Employment Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or ERISA, claims and appeals review
procedures for employer-sponsored and self-insured plans;

provider compensation arrangemcnté;

member disclosure;

periodic audits and investigations by state and federal agencies;
restrictions on some investment activities; and

restrictions on our subsidiaries’ ability to make dividend payments, loans, loan repayments or other
payments to us.

The laws and regulations governing our business and interpretations of these laws and regulations are
subject to frequent change. In recent years, significant federal and state laws have been enacted that
have increased our cost of doing business, exposed us to increased liability and had other adverse
effects on our business. State and federal governments are continually considering changes to the
laws and regulations regulating our industry, and are currently considering laws and regulations
relating to: :

increasing minimum capital or risk based capital requirements;

mandating benefits and products;

restricting a health plan’s ability to limit coverage to medically necessary care;
reducing the reimbursement or payment levels for government funded programs;

imposing guidelines for pharmaceutical manufacturers that would cause pharmaceutical companies
to restructure the financial terms of their business arrangements with PBMs, HMOs or other
health plans;

patients’ bill of rights legislation at the state and federal level that would hold HMOs liable for
medical malpractice;

limiting a health plan’s ability to capitate physicians and hospitals or delegate financial risk,
utilization review, quality assurance or other medical decisions to our contracting physicians and
hospitals;

restricting a health plan’s ability to select and terminate providers in our networks;

allowing independent physicians to collectively bargain with health plans on a number of issues,
including financial compensation;

adding further restrictions and administrative requirements on the use, retention, transmission,
processing, protection and disclosure of personally identifiable health information; and

tightening time periods for the timely payment and administration of health care claims and
imposing financial and other penalties for non-compliance.

All of these proposals could apply to us and could increase our health care costs, decrease our
membership or otherwise adversely affect our revenue and our profitability.
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Our investment portfolio is subject to economic and market conditions as well as regulation that
may adversely affect the performance of the portfolio.

The market value of our investments fluctuates depending upon economic and market conditions.
The investment income we earn has been negatively impacted by the lower interest rates prevailing
in United States financial markets. In periods of declining interest rates, bond calls and mortgage
loan prepayments generally increase, resulting in the reinvestment of these funds at the then lower
market rates. Our regulated subsidiaries are also subject to state laws and regulations that require
diversification of our investment portfolio and limit the amount of investments we can make in riskier
investments that could generate higher returns. In some cases, these laws could require the sale of
investments in our portfolio. We cannot be certain that our investment portfolio will produce total
positive returns in future periods or that we will not sell investments at prices that are less than the
carrying value of these investments.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness and may incur additional indebtedness in the future,
which could adversely affect our operations.

We have substantial indebtedness outstanding and have available borrowing capacity under our senior
credit facility of up to $150 million. We may also incur additional indebtedness in the future.

Our significant indebtedness poses risks to our business, including the risks that:

» we could use a substantial portion of our consolidated cash flow from operations to pay principal
and interest on our debt, thereby reducing the funds available to fund our strategic initiatives and
working capital requirements;

« insufficient cash flow from operations may force us to sell assets, or seek additional capital, which
we may be unable to do at all or on terms favorable to us;

« our level of indebtedness may make us more vulnerable to economic or industry downturns; and

« our debt service obligations increase our vulnerabilities to competitive pressures, because many of
our competitors are less leveraged than we are.

Our ability to repay debt depends in part on dividends and cash transfers from our subsidiaries.

Nearly all of our subsidiaries are subject to HMO regulations or insurance regulations and may be
subject to substantial supervision by one or more HMO or insurance regulators. Subsidiaries subject
to regulation must meet or exceed various capital standards imposed by HMO or insurance
regulations, which may from time to time impact the amount of funds the subsidiaries can pay to us.
Our subsidiaries are not obligated to make funds available to us. Additionally, from time to time, we
advance funds in the form of a loan or capital contribution to our subsidiaries to assist them in
satisfying state financial requirements. We may provide additional funding to a subsidiary if a state
regulator imposes additional financial requirements due to concerns about the financial position of the
subsidiary or if there is an adverse effect resulting from changes to the risk-based capital
requirements. This may in turn affect the subsidiary’s ability to pay state-regulated dividends or make
other cash transfers.

Our senior credit facility and our 10%% senior notes contain restrictive covenants that may limit
our ability to expand or pursue our business strategy.

Our senior credit facility and our 10%% senior notes limit, and in some circumstances prohibit, our
ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends, make investments or other restricted
payments, sell or otherwise dispose of assets, effect a consolidation or merger and engage in other
activities.
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We are required under the senior credit facility to maintain compliance with certain financial ratios.
We may not be able to maintain these ratios. Covenants in the senior credit facility and our 10%%
senior notes may impair our ability to expand or pursue our business strategies. Our ability to comply
with these covenants and other provisions of the senior credit facility and our 10%% senior notes may
be affected by our operating and financial performance, changes in business conditions or results of
operations, adverse regulatory developments or other events beyond our control. In addition, if we do
not comply with these covenants, the lenders under the senior credit facility and our 10%% senior
notes may accelerate our debt repayment under the senior credit facility and our 10%% senior notes.
If the indebtedness under the senior credit facility or our 10%% senior notes is accelerated, we could
not assure you that our assets would be sufficient to repay all outstanding indebtedness in fuil.

The concentration of our commercial and government senior business in eight western states and
Guam subjects us to risks from economic downturns in this region.

We offer managed care and other health insurance products to employer groups and Medicare
beneficiaries primarily in eight western states and Guam. Due to this concentration of business in a
small number of states, we are exposed to potential losses resulting from the risk of an economic
downturn in these states and region of the country. If economic conditions deteriorate in any of these
states, particularly in California where we have our largest membership, our membership and our
margins may decline, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial conditions
and results of operations.

We could incur unexpected health care and other costs as a result of terrorism or natural disasters.

We cannot predict or prevent the occurrence of bioterrorism or other acts of terrorism or natural
disasters, such as earthquakes, which could cause increased and unexpected utilization of health care
services. These events could also have adverse effects on general economic conditions in the states
where we offer products, the price and availability of products and services we purchase, the
availability and morale of our employees, our operations and facilities or the demand for our
products. We maintain disaster recovery plans intended to enable us to continue to operate without
major disruptions in service following disasters. However, a disaster could severely impair or delay
service to our members, cause us to incur significant cost of recovery and cause a loss of members.

Our PBM subsidiary, Prescription Solutions, faces regulatory and other risks associated with the
pharmacy benefits management industry that differ from the risks of providing managed care and
health insurance products.

Our PBM is also subject to federal and state anti-remuneration laws that govern its relationships
with pharmaceutical manufacturers. Federal and state legislatures are considering new regulations for
the industry that could adversely affect current industry practices, including the receipt of rebates
from pharmaceutical companies. In addition, if a court were to determine that our PBM acts as a
fiduciary under ERISA, we could be subject to claims for alleged breaches of fiduciary obligations in
implementation of formularies, preferred drug listings and therapeutic intervention programs and
other transactions. We also conduct business as a mail-order pharmacy, which subjects us to
extensive federal, state and local regulation, as well as risks inherent in the packaging and
distribution of pharmaceuticals and other health care products. The failure to adhere to these
regulations could expose our PBM subsidiary to civil and criminal penalties. We also face potential
claims in connection with claimed errors by our mail-order pharmacy.
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Our forecasts and other forward looking statements are based upon various assumptions that are
subject to significant uncertainties that may result in our failure to achieve our forecasted results.

From time to time in press releases, conference calls and otherwise, we may publish or make
forecasts or other forward looking statements regarding our future results, including estimated
earnings per share and other operating and financial metrics. Our forecasts are based upon various
assumptions that are subject to significant uncertainties and any number of them may prove
incorrect. Qur estimated earnings per share are based in part upon a forecast of our weighted average
shares outstanding at the time of our estimate. Our convertible subordinated debentures include a
contingent conversion feature that may materially affect our weighted average shares outstanding in
any quarter. If the conditions to conversion are satisfied during a quarter, then the debentures are
convertible during the next quarter and the underlying shares of common stock into which they are
convertible are included in the calculation of our weighted average shares outstanding. If the
conditions to conversion are not met, then the underlying shares are excluded from the calculation.

Our achievement of any forecasts depends upon numerous factors, many of which are beyond our
control. Consequently, we cannot assure you that our performance will be consistent with
management forecasts. Variations from forecasts and other forward-looking statements may be
material and adverse.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Market Risk

The principal objective of our asset/liability management activities is to maximize net investment
income, while maintaining acceptable levels of interest rate risk and facilitating our funding needs.
Our net investment income and interest expense are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations.
To mitigate the impact of fluctuations in interest rates, we manage the structure of the maturity of
debt and investments and may use derivative financial instruments, primarily interest rate swaps.

In April 2003, we entered into an interest rate swap on $300 million of our 10%:% senior notes for
the purpose of hedging the fair value of our indebtedness. This fair value hedge is accounted for
using the short-cut method under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, whereby the hedge is reported in our balance sheets at fair value, and the carrying
value of the long-term debt is adjusted for an offsetting amount representing changes in fair value
attributable to the hedged risk. Under the terms of the agreement, we make interest payments based
on the three-month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 692 basis points and receive
interest payments based on the 10%% fixed rate. The three-month LIBOR rate we use to determine
our interest payments under the swap agreement was first established on June 2, 2003 and resets
every three months thereafter, until expiration in June 2009.

The following table provides information about our financial instruments that are sensitive to changes
in interest rates as of December 31, 2003 and 2002. For investment securities and debt obligations,
the table presents principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by expected
maturity dates. For debt with variable rates, the rates in place as of December 31, 2003 are used to
determine average interest rates. Additionally, we have assumed our marketable securities and
restricted marketable securities, comprised primarily of U.S. government, state, municipal, and
corporate debt securities, are similar enough to aggregate into fixed rate and variable rate securities
for presentation purposes. For terms relating to our long-term debt, see Note 5 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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As of December 31, 2003:

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Beyond Total Fair Value
(Amounts in thousands)

Assets:
Marketable securities:
Fixedrate............ $144,335  $79,464 $126,485 $111,437 §$148,452 §686,113  $1,296,286  $1,326,317
Average interest rate . . . 2.82% 5.55% 4.57% 5.16% 4.1 % 5.49% 4.99% —
Variable rate ......... $ 3,500 $2527 § — % 2506 § — $25043 $ 33576 § 33,403
Average interest rate. . . 1.45% 1.47% — 1.36% — 2.06% 1.91% —
Marketable securities —
restricted:
Fixedrate............ $108,383  $16,900 $ 14,631 $ 7,017 § 6,632 § 12,842 $ 166,405 $ 167,616
Average interest rate . .. 2.78% 2.78% 3.32% 5.42% 5.16% 5.79% 3.22% —
Variable rate ......... $ - $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — § 141 3 141 § 144
Average interest rate. .. — — — — — 6.24% 6.24% —
Liabilities:

Long term debt, including
debt due within one

year:

Fixedrate............ $ 599% $4532 § 905 $§ 270 0§ 289 $458954 § 470,946 § 470,946
Average interest rate . . . 4.36% 4.51% 6.17% 6.77% 6.77% 6.73% — —
Variable rate ......... $ 1,500 $ 1,500 § 23250 $ 72,750 §$ 50,250 § — § 149,250 § 149,250
Average interest rate. . . 3.68% 3.68% 3.68% 3.68% 3.68% — — —

As of December 31, 2002:

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Beyond Total Fair Value
(Amounts in thousands)

Assets:

Marketable securities:
Fixedrate.,............ $89,716  $21,947 $76,516 $107,695 $100,005 $733,833  $1,129,712  $1,167,299
Average interest rate. .. .. 3.14% 3.71% 6.49% 5.43% 5.35% 5.74% 5.48% —
Variable rate ........... $ — $350 §$2527 $ — 3 — $25021 § 31,048 § 28218
Average interest rate. . . .. — 6.53% 2.17% — — 2.65% 3.05% —

Marketable securities —
restricted:
Fixedrate . ............. $56,097  $85,105 $ 3342 § 7956 §$ 10,596 $ 22946 § 186,042 § 190,172
Average interest rate. . ... 1.34% 3.30% 6.16% 5.73% 5.45% 5.80% 3.12% —
Variable rate ........... $I — 8§ — $ - 3 — 8 — $ 147 3 147 $ 149
Average interest rate. .. .. — — — — — 6.24% 6.24% —

Liabilities:
Long term debt, including
debt due within one year:

Fixedrate.............. $46,750 $ 5,123 § 3,007 % — 3 — $633,562 $§ 688,442 § 688,442
Average interest rate. .. .. 6.83% 4.65% 4.65% — — 9.09% — —
Variable rate ........... $60,484  $81,103 $ 9,000 § — 3 — § — § 150,587 $ 150,587
Average interest rate. .. .. 6.40% 6.40% 6.40% — — — — —

ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

See “Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form §-K.”

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS AND
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

We have not changed our independent auditors, nor have we had disagreements with our auditors on
accounting principles, practices or financial statement disclosure.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive
officer, or CEQ, and chief financial officer, or CFO, an evaluation was performed on the effectiveness
of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period
covered by this annual report. Based on that evaluation, our management, including the CEQ and
CFO, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 31, 2003.

An evaluation was also performed under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including our CEO and CFO, of any change in our internal controls over financial
reporting that occurred during our last fiscal year and that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting. That evaluation did not
identify any change in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during our latest
fiscal year and that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
controls over financial reporting.
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PART I

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information contained in the sections entitled “Board of Directors,” “Director Compensation,”
“Executive Officers” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” contained in
Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated
herein by reference.

The information regarding the Registrant’s audit committee members and audit committee financial
experts set forth in the sections entitled “Activities of the Board of Directors and its Committees”
and “Audit Committee Report” contained in Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2004
Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.

The information regarding the Registrant’s code of ethics set forth in the section entitled “Code of
Ethics” contained in Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.

The information regarding the procedures for stockholders to recommend board nominees is set forth
in the section entitled “Procedures for Stockholder Recommendations of Board Nominees and
Stockholder Proposals” contained in Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information contained in the section entitled “Executive Compensation” in the Registrant’s
definitive Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Mecting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information contained in the section entitled “Principal Stockholders” and “Equity-Based
Instruments Held by Management” in the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2004
Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.

The information contained in the section entitled “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in the

Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is also
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
The information set forth in the section entitled “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions”

contained in the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANTS FEES AND SERVICES
The information contained in the section entitled “Independent Auditor Fees” in the Registrant’s

definitive Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON

(a)l.

FORM 8-K
The following documents are filed as part of this report:
Page
Reference
Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 ........... F-1
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31,

2003, 2002 and 2001 .. ... F-2
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended

December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 .. ... ... it F-3
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31,

2003, 2002 and 2001 .. ..o e F-4
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ............................. F-6
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors..................... F-42
Quarterly Information for 2003 and 2002 (Unaudited) .................... F-43
Financial Statement Schedule:

Schedule IT — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts . ....................... F-44

(b)

All other schedules are omitted because they are not required or the
information 1s included elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements.

Exhibits. An “Exhibit Index” is filed as part of this Form 10-K beginning on
page E-1 and is incorporated by reference.

Reports on Form 8-K:

We filed the following reports on Form 8-K during the quarter ended
December 31, 2003:

On November 5, 2003, we filed a Form 8-K that filed a press release wherein
we announced our financial results for the quarter ended September 30,
2003.

On November 10, 2003, we filed a Form 8-K that filed a press release wherein
we announced the appointment of Aida Alvarez and Linda Rosenstock to
the Board of Directors.

On November 12, 2003, we filed a Form 8-K that filed a press release wherein
we announced a revision to our earnings per share guidance for the 2003
fourth quarter and the full year 2003 to reflect the costs associated with the
redemption of $175 million in principal 10%:% senior notes and the dilutive
effect of the 7.6 million shares of common stock issued in the public
offering announced on November 10, 2003.

On November 13, 2003, we filed a Form 8-K that filed a press release wherein
we attached the Underwriting Agreement, dated as of November 10, 2003,
between us and Goldman, Sachs & Co. in connection with the public
offering of 7.6 million shares of our common stock.

On December 23, 2003, we filed a Form 8-K that filed a press release wherein
we announced that our Board of Directors had approved a two-for-one
common stock split in the form of a stock dividend, which was distributed
on January 20, 2004.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.

By: /s/  HowaRD G. PHANSTIEL

Howard G. Phanstiel
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 4, 2004

POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned directors and officers of PacifiCare Health Systems, Inc., do hereby constitute
and appoint Howard G. Phanstiel and Gregory W. Scott, or either of them, our true and lawful
attorneys and agents, to do any and all acts and things in our name and on our behalf in our
capacities as directors and officers and to execute any and all instruments for us and in our names in
the capacities indicated below, which said attorneys and agents, or either of them, may deem
necessary or advisable to enable said corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, and any rules, regulations, and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, in
connection with this Report, including specifically, but without limitation, power and authority to sign
any and all amendments hereto; and we do hereby ratify and confirm all that said attorneys and
agents, or either of them, shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

Name Tidle Date
/s/ HowarD G. PHANSTIEL Chairman of the Board and March 4, 2004
Howard G. Phanstiel Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/  GREGORY W. SCOTT Executive Vice President and March 4, 2004
Gregory W. Scott Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ PETER A. REYNOLDS Senior Vice President and March 4, 2004
Peter A. Reynolds Corporate Controller

(Chief Accounting Officer)

/s/  DaviD A. REED Lead Independent Director March 4, 2004
David A. Reed
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Name

/s/ AIDA ALVAREZ

Aida Alvarez

/s/ BRADLEY C. CALL

Bradley C. Call

/s/ SHIRLEY S. CHATER, PH.D.

Shirley S. Chater, PH.D.

/s/ TERRY O. HARTSHORN

Terry O. Hartshorn

/s/ GARy L. LEARY

Gary L. Leary

/s/ DomiNIc NG

Dominic Ng

/s/ WARREN E. PINCKERT II

Warren E. Pinckert 11

/s/ CHARLES R. RINEHART

Charles R. Rinehart

/s/  LINDA ROSENSTOCK

Linda Rosenstock

/s/ LLoyDp E. Ross

Lloyd E. Ross
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

(Amounts in thousands,
except per share data)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and equivalents ............. ... . i, $1,198,422 $ 951,689
Marketable securities . ...t e 1,359,720 1,195,517
Receivables, net. . ... ... . . . . 265,943 289,900
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ....................... 57,299 46,805
Restricted cash collateral for FHP seniornotes .................. — 43,346
Deferred InCome taxes .. ... ...ttt 149,817 100,758
Total current assetS .. ..ot 3,031,201 2,628,015
Property, plant and equipment at cost,net ................. ... . .... 149,407 161,685
Marketable securities-restricted. . . ... o 166,546 186,189
Goodwill, MEt ..o e 983,104 983,104
Intangible assets, net ....... .. ... ... . . . 221,108 243,016
Other a85etS . .o ot 67,938 49,124

$4,619,304  $4,251,133
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Medical claims and benefits payable ........................... $1,027,500  $1,044,500
Accounts payable . ........ .. 65,222 69,733
Accrued labilities .. ... ... .. . 326,051 285,438
Accrued compensation and employee benefits.................... 99,537 83,471
Unearned premium FeVENUE . . o .o vt v i tte et ie e 496,480 479,552
Current portion of long-term debt.............. ... ... ... . ..... 7,496 107,235
Total current Habilities .. ............. ... ... .. .. ... . ... 2,022,286 2,069,929
Long-term debt .. .. ... . 477,700 596,961
Convertible subordinated debentures ................ .. ... ... ... 135,000 135,000
Deferred income taxes .. ...t 104,777 103,790
Other liabilities ... ... . i 28,004 17,148

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 200,000 shares authorized; issued

84,854 shares in 2003 and 95,418 sharesin 2002 ............... 848 954
Unearned compensation . ....... ...t (16,843) (2,000)
Additional paid-in capital . ....... ... . o 1,458,310 1,560,308
Accumulated other comprehensive income ...................... 18,815 21,730
Retained earnings . ...t i 390,407 350,369
Treasury stock, at cost; no shares in 2003 and 23,409 shares in 2002 — (603,056)

Total stockholders” equity ......... ... o L. 1,851,537 1,328,305

$4,619,304  $4,251,133

All applicable share and per-share amounts reflect the retroactive effects of the two-for-one common
stock split in the form of a stock dividend that was effective January 20, 2004.

See accompanying notes.
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Revenue:
Commercial. . ... ... i $ 5,043,257 $ 4,782,973 $ 4,553,933
Senior. .. 5,395,265 5,887,603 6,798,637
Specialty and other ............................. 498 668 421,439 380,139
Net investment iINCOMe . .. ..., 71,321 64,487 111,263
Total operating revenue .................... 11,008,511 11,156,502 11,843,972
Expenses: :
Health care services and other:
Commercial .. ... 4,270,329 4,205,376 4,101,936
IO . . ittt e 4,540,301 5,104,275 6,133,789
Specialty and other ............................. 255,164 176,050 131,932
Total health care services and other.......... 9,065,794 9,485,701 10,367,657
Selling, general and administrative expenses........... 1,452,542 1,370,160 1,288,374
Impairment, disposition, restructuring, Office of Personnel
Management and other charges (credits), net......... — 3,774 61,157
Operating inCome . . .. .. covue et 490,175 296,867 126,784
Interest expense, net ........... ... .. ... (100,531) (74,904) (70,282)
Income before income taxes ........................ 389,644 221,963 56,502
Provision for income taxes................ooviuoan... 146,896 82,792 38,371
Income before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle and extraordinary gain ......... 242748 139,171 18,131
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .. — (897,000) —
Extraordinary gain on early retirement of debt, net .. ... — — 875
Netincome (10SS) . ... ... i $ 242,748 § (757.829) § 19,006

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Income before cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle and extraordinary gain ....... $ 326 § 198 § 0.27
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle — (12.73) —
Extraordinary gain, net ........... ... . ... . ..., — — 0.01
Basic earnings (loss) pershare.................... $ 326 §  (10.75) § 0.28

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Income before cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle and extraordinary gain ....... $ 3.04 % 198 § 0.26
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle — (12.73) —
Extraordinary gain, net .......................... — — 0.01
Diluted earnings (loss) pershare................ .. $ 3204 $ (1075 § 0.27

All applicable per-share amounts reflect the retroactive effects of the two-for-one common stock split
in the form of a stock dividend that was effective January 20, 2004.

See accompanying notes.
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balances at December 31, 2000. . .. ..

Comprehensive income:
Netincome.....................
Other comprehensive gain, net of tax:

Change in unrealized gains on
marketable securities, net of
reclassification adjustment . . ..

Comprehensive income

Capital stock activity:
Employee benefit plans
Reissuance of treasury stock.......

Purchase of remaining minority
interest in consolidated subsidiary . .

Tax benefit associated with exercise of
stock options. . ............ .. ...,

Balances at December 31, 2001. ... ..

Comprehensive income (loss):
Netloss......oooovviiinnnnn.
Other comprehensive gain, net of tax:

Change in unrealized gains on
marketable securities, net of
reclassification adjustment . . ..

Comprehensive income (loss)

Capital stock activity:
Employee benefit plans
Reissuance of treasury stock.......

Tax benefit associated with exercise of
stock options .. . ..................

Balances at December 31, 2002. ... ..

Comprehensive income (loss):
Netincome.....................
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:

Change in unrealized gains on
marketable securities, net of
reclassification adjustment . . ..

Comprehensive income (loss)

Capital stock activity:
Employee benefit plans
Purchase of treasury stock

Retirement of treasury stock

Proceeds from equity offering........

Tax benefit associated with exercise of
stock options. . ..................

Balances at December 31, 2003, ... ..

Accumulated

Oth
Additional Comprehegnsive
Common Unearned Paid-in Income Retained Treasury
Stock  Compensation Capital (Loss) Earnings Stock Total
(Amounts in thousands)

$940 § — $1,613,474  $(2,975) $1,089,192 $(697,071) $2,003,560
— — — — 19,006 — 19,006
— — — 4,926 19,006 — 23,932
6 (1,153) 4357 — — — 3,210
— — (28,621) — — 38821 10,200
— — (7,138) — — — (7,138)
— — 21 — — — 21
946 (1,153) 1,582,093 1,951 1,108,198 (658,250) 2,033,785
— — — — (757,829) —  (757,829)
— — — 19,779 — — 19,779
— — — 19,779 (757,829) —  (738,050)
8 (847) (7,649) — 28,301 19,813
— — (15,145) — — 26,893 11,748
— — 1,009 — — — 1,009
954 (2,000) 1,560,308 21,730 350,369  (603,056) 1,328,305
— — — — 242,748 — 242,748
_ - — (2,915) — — (2915)
_ _ —  (2915) 242,748 — 239833
51 (14,843) 78,974 — — 2,448 66,630
— — — — -~ (493) (493)
(233) — (398,158) — (202,710) 601,101 —
16 — 199,348 — — — 199,424
— — 17,838 — — — 17,838
$ 848  $(16,843) $1,458,310 $18,815 § 390,407 $ — $1,851,537

All applicable dollar amounts reflect the retroactive effects of the two-for-one common stock split in the form
of a stock dividend that was effective January 20, 2004.

See accompanying notes.
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended  Year Ended  Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2003 2002 2001

{Amounts in thousands)

Operating activities:

Net inCOME (10SS) &\ v it e ettt et e e e e $ 242,748 $(757,829) $ 19,006
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash flows provided by operating
activities:
Deferred INCOME tAXES . . o v« v vt ettt it et i it e et s et e ar e (46,088) 18,559 (3,966)
Depreciation and amortization . .......... ... i e 44,713 50,284 65,808
Expenses related to bond redemption ......... ..o 28,155 — —_
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and other......................... 22,328 12,793 6,053
Amortization of intangible assets . ... ... . ... e 21,908 23,600 23,781
Stock-based compensation eXpense ... ... .. ... 19,092 693 3,632
Tax benefit realized for stock option €Xercises .........ocooviiinin i innan... 17,838 1,009 21
Provision for doubtful accounts .. ......... .o e 10,271 6,346 22,070
Amortization of capitalized loan fees ....... ... ... .. i 7,481 7,784 7,560
Amortization of notes receivable from sale of fixed assets ........................... (5,641) (3,107) —
Employer benefit plan contributions in treasury stock............... .. ... il 1,363 12,132 —
Amortization of discount on 10%% senior notes ................. .. iiiiiii.. .. 424 266 —
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle . ........... ..o, — 897,000 —
Marketable and other securities impairment for other than temporary declines in value . . . ... — 12,543 —
Impairment, disposition, restructuring, Office of Personnel Management and other
charges (Credits), MEt ... . . i e — 3,774 61,157
Adjustment to cash received in purchase transaction ........... ... .. ... .. ... — 17 —
Amortization of goodwill. . .. ... — — 59,115
Gain on early retirement of debt . ....... ... . . e — — (1,800)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, Met . . ..ot it e e 19,327 82,369 16,186
Prepaid expenses and other assets .. ... (33,748) 2,627 7,721
Medical claims and benefits payable . . ........ ... . (17,000) (52,226) (174,900)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
Payment for Office of Personnel Management settlement, net of amounts received . . . .. (10,000) (65,441) —
Other changes in accounts payable and accrued liabilities . ...................... 74,031 59,027 (25,216)
Unearned premitti TEVETIUE . . ..o ottt untt ettt e et r s 16,928 (69,841) (47,305)
Net cash flows provided by operating activities ............. ... oo 414,130 242,379 38,923
Investing activities:
Purchase of marketable securities, net ........ ... .. . i i (169,102) (113,987) (190,401)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment. ............ .. . i o (52,271) (59,274) (77,301)
Sale (purchase) of marketable securities-restricted, net ............. ... ... ... ... ... 19,643 (117,368) (17,765)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment . .................... .. ... ... 30 12,492 25,139
Net cash paid for acquisitions .. ... ... ... i i e — — (500)
Net cash flows used in investing activities .................. ... coiiiiiiinn... (201,700) (278,137) (260,828)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from equity offering used for redemption of §175 million of senior notes ........ 199,424 — —
Principal payments on senior note redemption............ ... ... i i (175,000) — —
Principal payments on long-termdebt...... ... ... . . (151,329) (554,308) (30,284)
Proceeds from borrowings of long-term debt ... ... ... ... o 150,000 496,945 —
Principal payments on FHP seniornotes ........ ... i (43,250) (41,750) —
Use of restricted cash collateral for payment of FHP senior notes ...................... 43,250 — —
Proceeds from issuance of common and treasury stock............ . . i 41,146 4,893 83
Payment of premium to bondholders for senior note redemption ....................... (18,813) — —
L0an fEeS . o e e s (6,949) (37,789) (12,949}
Payments on software financing agreement. ........ ... e (3,683) (2,231) —
Common stock repurchases . ... .. i i e e e e (493) — —
Proceeds from issuance of convertible subordinated debentures. ........................ — 135,000 —
Proceeds from draw down under equity commitment arrangement .. ..........ooiiain. — 8,928 —
Purchase of minority interest in consolidated subsidiary ............... .. ... ... L — — (8,821)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities ....................... 34,303 9,688 (51,971)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents.............. ... 246,733 (26,070) (273,876)
Beginning cash and equivalents ............ . . 951,689 977,759 1,251,635
Ending cash and equivalents. ... . i $1,198422  § 951,689 $ 977,759

See accompanying notes.
Table continued on next page
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Year Ended  Year Ended  Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2003 2002 2001

(Amounts in thousands)

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid (received) during the year for:
Income taxes, netof refunds ........ ... $ 168,933 $ (68,123) $ 7,328
IEIESt o e $ 67,363 $ 68732 § 73,140
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities:
Details of cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle:

Goodwill IMpairment . .. .. ... e $ — $ 929,436 3 —

Less decrease in deferred lability ..... ... .. — (32,436) —

Goodwill impairment, NEt of X . ... ..uiir ittt et et $ —  §$897000 § —
Stock-based COMPENSAtION ... ... .. ittt e e $ 5,028 $ 1915 $ (506)
Treasury stock reissued in exchange for retirement of long-term debt:

TrCaSUIY STOCK .« oottt ettt et et e s $ — $ 5218 § 38,821

Additional paid-in capital . ...... .. .. — (2,398) (28,621)

Long-term debt retired . ... ... . e — (3,000) (12,000)

Extraordinary gain on early retirement of debt . ..... ... .. ... .. ... . o $ — (180) $ (1,800)
Details of accumulated other comprehensive income:

Change in unrealized gains on marketable securities......................... ... ... $ (4,899) $ 31,720 $ 7939

Less change in deferred income taxes. .. ... .. 1,984 (11,941) (3,013)

Change in stockholders’ equity. ... ... ..o e $ (2915 $ 19,779 $ 4926
Details of assets sold:

Net book value of assets Sold . ... ... .. i e s $ — $ — $ (42,000)

Less cash received . ... o i e — — 25,000

Note receivable from sale of @ssets ... ... oottt it e $ — 3 — $ (17,000)
Details of businesses acquired in purchase transactions:

Fair value of assets acquired. . ... .. ... it s $ — 8 — % 3245

Less liabilities assumed or created. ... .. ... i e — — (2,745)

Cash paid for fair value of assets acquired ............ .. ... ... o i — — 500

Cash acquired in aCqQUISITIONS . . . .. ..ttt — — —

Net cash paid for acquisitions .. ......cuuti it $ — 3 — 8 500

Details of discount on 10%% senior notes:

DISCOUNT ... oottt et e e e s $ (2,789) $ (3,055 3§ —

Discount reduction related to bond redemption ......... ... ..o 836 — —

AMOIIZAON . . - oottt ettt ettt e e 424 266 —

Net discount on notes payable . ... ..ot e $ (1,529) $§ (2,789) § —
Details of assets acquired:

Net book value of assets acquired ... ... ..o i $ (2,522) $ (13,674) $

Note payable .. ... 3,002 — —

Prepaid software maintenance ..............c. oottt (480) 13,674 —

Cash paid for assets acquired . .. .. ...ttt e $ — 3 — § —

See accompanying notes.
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Basis of Presentation

Organization and Operations. PacifiCare Health Systems, Inc. offers managed care and other
health insurance products to employer groups and Medicare beneficiaries primarily in eight western
states and Guam. Our commercial and senior medical plans are designed to deliver quality health
care and customer service to members cost-effectively. These programs include health maintenance
organizations, or HMOs, preferred provider organizations, or PPOs, and Medicare Supplement
products. We also offer a variety of specialty managed care products and services that employees can
purchase as a supplement to our basic commercial and senior plans or as stand-alone products. These
products include pharmacy benefit management, or PBM, services, behavioral health services, group
life and health insurance and dental and vision benefit plans.

Consolidation. Premium revenues are earned from products where we bear insured risk. Non-
premium revenues are earned from all other sources, including revenues from our PBM mail order
business, administrative fees and other revenue. Commencing with the first quarter of 2003, we
reformatted our statement of operations to show total revenues (premium revenues and non-premium
revenues) and health care services and other expenses by the following categories: commercial, senior
and specialty and other. These changes are summarized below:

» For our behavioral health and dental and vision subsidiaries, we previously included premium
revenues in the commercial revenue line and non-premium revenues in the other income line. In
2003, all revenues (premium and non-premium) derived from our specialty companies (behavioral
health, dental and vision and PBM) are now reported in the specialty and other revenues line.

» All health care services and other expenses for our specialty companies were previously included
within commercial health care costs. In 2003, all health care services and other expenses for our
specialty companies are now reported in the specialty and other health care services and other
expenses line.

» Non-premium revenues earned by, and non-premium related fees charged by, our health plans or
subsidiaries were previously included in the other income line. In 2003, these amounts are now
included in the commercial, senior or specialty revenue and health care services and other
expenses lines, as appropriate.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the parent company and
all significant subsidiaries that are more than 50% owned and controlled. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances were eliminated in consolidation.

Segment Information. We present segment information externally the same way management uses
financial data internally to make operating decisions and assess performance. Because we sell health
care packages in the form of bundled managed care and supplemental managed care products to
members of all ages, we have one reportable operating segment. These managed care members
generally fall within two product lines, commercial and senior, Revenues from non-Medicare
members, generally employees or early retirees of businesses, are reported in the commercial product
line. Revenues from our Medicare customers are reported in the senior product line. Qur single
largest customer is the federal government. Sources of federal government revenues include revenues
from Medicare beneficiaries and from federal employees covered by the Federal Employee Health
Benefits Program, or FEHBP, who are included in our commercial product line. Federal government
revenues were $5.9 billion in 2003, $6.3 billion in 2002, and $7.1 billion in 2001.
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Use of Estimates. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, we must use some estimates

and assumptions that may affect reported amounts and disclosures. We use estimates most often
when accounting for:

+ Allowances for doubtful premiums and accounts receivable;
» Provider receivables and reserves;

+ Impairment of long-lived assets;

» Medical claims and benefits payable;

 Professional and general liability; and

Reserves relating to the United States Office of Personnel Management, or OPM.

We are also subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ from estimated
results, such as changes in the health care environment, competition and legislation.

Reclassifications. We reclassified certain prior year amounts in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements to conform to the reformatted 2003 presentation. The reclassifications and
changes in presentation do not have any effect on our total consolidated revenues or health care
services and other expenses.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Equivalents. Cash and equivalents include items such as money market funds and
certificates of deposit, with maturity periods of three months or less when purchased.

Marketable Securities. All marketable securities (which include municipal bonds, corporate notes,
commercial paper and U.S. government securities), except for certain marketable securities-
restricted, are designated as available-for-sale. Accordingly, marketable securities are carried at fair
value and unrealized gains or losses, net of applicable income taxes, are recorded in stockholders’
equity. Because marketable securities are available for use in current operations, they are classified as
current assets without regard to the securities’ contractual maturity dates.

We are required by state regulatory agencies to set aside funds to comply with the laws of the
various states in which we operate. These funds are classified as marketable securities-restricted
(which include U.S. government securities and certificates of deposit held by trustees or state
regulatory agencies). Certain marketable securities-restricted are designated as held-to-maturity since
we have the intent and ability to hold such securities to maturity. Held-to-maturity securities are
stated at amortized cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to
maturity, and are classified as noncurrent assets. See Note 3, “Marketable Securities.”

Concentrations of Credit Risk. Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations
of credit risk consist primarily of investments in marketable securities and receivables generated in
the ordinary course of business. Our short-term investments in marketable securities are managed by
professional investment managers within guidelines established by our board of directors that, as a
matter of policy, limit the amounts that may be invested in any one issuer. Our receivables include
premium receivables from commercial customers, rebate receivables from pharmaceutical
manufacturers, receivables related to prepayment of claims on behalf of our self-funded customers,
and receivables owed to us from providers under risk-sharing arrangements. We had no significant
concentrations of credit risk at December 31, 2003.
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. Qur consolidated balance sheets include the following
financial instruments: cash and equivalents, trade accounts and notes receivable, trade accounts
payable and long-term obligations. We consider the carrying amounts of current assets and liabilities
in the consoclidated financial statements to approximate the fair value for these financial instruments
because of the relatively short period of time between origination of the instruments and their
expected realization. The carrying value of all long-term obligations approximates the fair value of
such obligations. :

Long-Lived Assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment. We record property, plant and equipment at cost. We capitalize
replacements and major improvements and certain internal and external costs associated with the
purchase or development of internal-use software. We charge repairs and maintenance to expense as
incurred. We eliminate the costs and related accumulated depreciation when we sell property, plant
and equipment, and any resulting gains or losses are included in net income. We depreciate property,
plant and equipment, including assets under capital leases, evenly over the assets’ useful lives ranging
from three to 25 years. We amortize leasehold improvements evenly over the shorter of the lease
term or five years. We amortize software costs evenly over estimated useful lives ranging from three
to five years. Accumulated depreciation and amortization on property, plant and equipment totaled
$212 million at December 31, 2003 and $192 million at December 31, 2002.

Long-lived Asset Impairment. We review long-lived assets, including identified intangible assets, for
impairment when events or changes in business conditions indicate that their full carrying value may
not be recovered. We consider assets to be impaired and write them down to fair value if expected
associated undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amounts. Fair value is determined
based on the present value of the expected associated cash flows.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets. When we acquire a business, we allocate the excess of the
purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired to goodwill and identified intangible
assets. Prior to 2002, we amortized goodwill and intangible assets evenly over periods ranging from
three to 40 years. On January 1, 2002, we adopted Statements of Financial Accounting Standards, or
SFAS, No. 141, Business Combinations, and SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.
Under the new rules, goodwill is no longer amortized, but is subject to impairment tests on an annual
basis or more frequently if impairment indicators exist. The tests for measuring goodwill impairment
under SFAS No. 142 are more stringent than the previous tests required by SFAS No. 121. See
Note 7, “Goodwill and Intangible Assets.”

Premiums and Revenue Recognition. We report prepaid health care premiums received from our
HMOs’ enrolled groups as revenue in the month that enrollees are entitled to receive health care
services. We record premiums received in advance as unearned premium revenue. Funds received
under the federal Medicare program accounted for approximately 50% in 2003, 53% in 2002 and 58%
in 2001 as a percentage of total premiums.

Health Care Services. Our HMOs arrange for comprehensive health care services to their members
through capitation or risk-based arrangements. Capitation is a fixed monthly payment made without
regard to the frequency, extent or nature of the health care services actually furnished. We provide
benefits to enrolled members generally through our contractual relationships with physician groups
and hospitals. Our capitated physicians and hospitals may, in turn, contract with specialists or referral
physicians and hospitals for specific services and are generally responsible for any related payments to
those referral physicians and hospitals. Risk-based arrangements include shared-risk and fee-for-
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

service contracts. Under the shared-risk contracts, we share the risk of health care costs with parties
not covered by our capitation arrangements. Under fee-for-service contracts, we contract with certain
hospitals and ancillary providers, as well as some individual physicians or physician organizations, to
provide services to our members based on modified discounted fee schedules for the services
provided. Expenses related to these programs that are based in part on estimates are recorded in the
period in which the related services are dispensed. The cost of health care provided is accrued in the
period it is dispensed to the enrolled members, based in part on estimates for hospital services and
other health care costs that have been incurred but not yet reported, or IBNR. Management
develops these estimates using standard actuarial methods which include, among other factors, the
average interval between the date services are rendered and the date claims are paid, denied claims
activity, disputed claims activity, expected health care cost inflation, utilization, seasonality patterns
and changes in membership. The estimates for submitted claims and IBNR claims liabilities are
made on an accrual basis and adjusted based on actual claims data in future periods as required. For
new products, such as our PPO products, estimates are initially based on health care cost data
provided by third parties. This data includes assumptions for member age, gender and geography.
The models that we use to prepare estimates for each product are adjusted as we accumulate actual
claims paid data. Such estimates could materially understate or overstate our actual liability for
medical claims and benefits payable. These estimates are reviewed by outside parties and state
regulatory authorities on a periodic basis. The estimates for submitted claims and IBNR claims
liabilities are made on an accrual basis and adjusted in future periods as required. Adjustments to
prior period estimates, if any, are included in current operations. We have also recorded reserves,
based in part on estimates, to indemnify our members against potential claims made by specialists or
other providers whose fees should have been paid by the insolvent medical groups. See Note 13,
“Contingencies.”

Premium Deficiency Reserves on Loss Contracts. We assess the profitability of our contracts for
providing health care services to our members when current operating results or forecasts indicate
probable future losses. We compare anticipated premiums to health care related costs, including
estimated payments for physicians and hospitals, commissions and cost of collecting premiums and
processing claims. If the anticipated future costs exceed the premiums, a loss contract accrual is
recognized.

Stock-Based Compensation. We have stock-based employee and director compensation plans. See
Note 9, “Employee Benefit Plans.” Prior to 2003, we accounted for those plans under the recognition
and measurement provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and
related interpretations. No stock-based employee and director compensation cost was reflected in net
income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, as all stock options granted under
our plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the
date of grant. Effective January 1, 2003, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FASB
Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, on a prospective basis for all
employee and director awards granted, modified or settled on or after January 1, 2003. Awards
typically vest over four years. Therefore, cost related to stock-based employee and director
compensation included in the determination of net income for 2003 is less than that which would
have been recognized if the fair value based method had been applied to all awards granted, modified
or settled since October 1, 1995. The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and
earnings (loss) per share, after adjusting for the effect of the two-for-one stock split in the form of a
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

stock dividend that was effective January 20, 2004, as if the fair value method had been applied to
all outstanding and unvested awards in each period.
Year Ended

2003 2002 2001

(Amounts in thousands, except
per-share data)

Net income (loss), asreported ..................... $242,748  $(757,829) $19,006
Add stock-based compensation expense included in
reported net income (loss), net of related tax effect. . 8,228 — —

Deduct total stock-based compensation expense
determined under fair value method for all awards,

net of related tax effect. . ........................ (16,703) (18,360)  (6,427)
Pro forma net income (loss) ....................... $234,273  $(776,189) $12,579
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic—asreported............. ... L, $ 326 $§ (1075 $ 0.28
Basic—proforma................ ... ..., $ 315 § (11.01) $§ 0.19
Diluted —as reported ... ....... .. ..o, $ 304 S (1075) $ 0.27
Diluted —proforma........... ... ..., $ 293 § (11.01) $ 0.19
The following table illustrates the components of our stock-based compensation expense:
Year Ended
2003 2002 2001
Pretax Net-of-Tax Pretax Net-of-Tax Pretax Net-of-Tax
Charges Amount Charges Amount Charges Amount
(Amounts in thousands)
Stock options ................ $ 7,545 $ 4,512 $ — $ — $ — $ —
Employee Stock Purchase
Plan ...................... 6,214 3,716 —_ —_ — —_
13,759 8,228 — — — —
Restricted stock(1) ........... 5,333 3,189 693 414 3,632 2,172
Total............ ... .. ...... $19,092  $11,417 $693 $414 $3,632 $2,172

(1) The recognition and measurement of restricted stock is the same under APB Opinion No. 25
and FASB Statement No. 123. The related expenses for the fair value of restricted stock were
charged to selling, general and administrative expenses and are included in the net income
(loss), as reported amounts in the pro forma net income (loss) table above. See Note 6,
“Stockholders’ Equity.”

Taxes Based on Premiums. Certain states in which we do business require the payment of excise,
per capita or premium taxes based on a specified rate for enrolled members or a percentage of billed
premivms. Such taxes may be levied instead of state income tax. These taxes are recorded in selling,
general and administrative expenses, and totaled $34 miilion in 2003, $27 million in 2002 and

$26 million in 2001.
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Income Taxes. We recognize deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been included in the consolidated financial statements or tax
returns. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between the
financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities. We measure deferred tax assets and
liabilities by applying enacted tax rates and laws to taxable years in which such differences are
expected to reverse. See Note 8, “Income Taxes.”

Earnings per Share. The following table includes a reconciliation of the denominators for the
computation of basic and diluted earnings per share. All share and per share amounts reflect the
retroactive effects of the two-for-one common stock split in the form of a stock dividend that was
effective January 20, 2004. See Note 6 “Stockholders’ Equity”.

2003 2002 2001
(Amounts in thousands)

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period(1} ........ 71,782 68,894 66,908
Weighted average number of shares issued:

Stock options exercised and treasury stock reissued, net .... 1,627 1,580 642

Common stock offering(2) . ........ ... ... ... ... . ... .. 1,000 — —
Denominator for basic earnings per share .................. 74,409 70,474 67,550
Employee stock options and other dilutive potential common

shares(3) (4] .. oo e 5,554 — 508
Denominator for diluted earnings per share(3)(4) ........... 79,963 70,474 68,058

(1) Excludes approximately 1,515,000, 226,000 and 180,000 shares of restricted common stock
which have been granted but have not fully vested as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

(2) In November 2003, we issued 7.6 million shares of our common stock in a public offering. See
Note 6 “Stockholders’ Equity”.

(3) Certain options to purchase common stock were not included in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share because their exercise prices were greater than the average market price of
our common stock for the periods presented. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2001,
these weighted options outstanding totaled 4.6 million shares and 12.2 million shares,
respectively, with exercise prices ranging from $12.34 to $57.00 per share.

(4) Employee stock options and other dilutive potential common shares for the year ended
December 31, 2002 were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because
they were antidilutive.




PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Marketable Securities

The following table summarizes marketable securities as of the dates indicated:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(Amounts in thousands)

Marketable securities:

U.S. government and agency................ $ 337,323 $ 4,084 $(3,903) $ 337,504

State, municipal and state and local agency ... 537,179 20,037 (1,359) 555,857

Corporate debt and other securities .......... 455,360 13,644 (2,645) 466,359

Total marketable securities ........... 1,329,862 37,765 (7,907) 1,359,720
Marketable securities-restricted:

U.S. government and agency................ 111,442 523 9) 111,956

State, municipal and state and local agency ... 17,305 432 (39) 17,698

Corporate debt and other securities .......... 37,799 320 (13) 38,106

Total marketable securities-restricted . .. 166,546 1,275 (61) 167,760

Balance at December 31,2003 ................ $1,496,408 $39,040 $(7,968) $1,527,480

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(Amounts in thousands)

Marketable securities:

U.S. government and agency................ $ 339,514 % 9,010 $(1,696) $ 346,828
State, municipal and state and local agency . .. 391,370 16,057 (759) 406,668
Corporate debt and other securities .......... 429,876 15,726 (3,581) 442021
Total marketable securities ........... 1,160,760 40,793 (6,036) 1,195,517
Marketable securities-restricted:
U.S. government and agency................ 103,287 2,542 — 105,829
State, municipal and state and local agency ... 25,679 736 (68) 26,347
Corporate debt and other securities .......... 57,223 924 (2) 58,145
Total marketable securities-restricted . . . 186,189 4,202 (70) 190,321
Balance at December 31,2002 ................ $1,346,949  $44,995 $(6,106) $1,385,838




PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As of December 31, 2003 the contractual maturities of our marketable securities were as follows:
) Marketable Securities —
Marketable Securities Restricted
Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value
(Amounts in thousands)

Due in one yearorless ................. $ 147,337 $ 143,199 $108,881 $109,273
Due after one year through five years ... .. 471,369 487,246 44 681 45,318
Due after five years through ten years..... 387,392 401,122 6,732 6,870
Due afterten years. .................... 323,764 328,153 6,252 6,299

$1,329,862 $1,359,720 $166,546 $167,760

Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketable securities were $7.4 billion in 2003, $7.7 billion in
2002 and $8.8 billion in 2001. Gross realized gains and gross realized losses are included in net
investment income under the specific identification method.

4. Dispositions

2002 Dispositions. In the fourth quarter of 2002, we entered into an agreement with
HEALTHuvision under which HEALTHvision acquired the e-prescribing assets of our subsidiary
MEDeMORPHUS Healthcare Solutions, Inc. in exchange for assuming certain liabilities. Under this
agreement, HEALTHvision assumed responsibility for MEDeMORPHUS’s existing contracts with
more than 1,600 physicians, including the delivery of MEDeMORPHUS’s handheld devices and
wireless functionality. In connection with the sale of assets, we recognized pretax charges of

$9 million ($6 million or $0.07 diluted loss per share, net of tax). See Note 10, “Impairment,
Disposition, Restructuring, Office of Personnel Management and Other Charges (Credits).”

S. Long-Term Debt and Other Commitments

Our contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2003, including long-term debt and other
commitments, were as follows:
Payments Due by Period

Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008  Thereafter
(Amounts in millions)

Long-term debt:

10%Y% senior notes, net of discount........... $323 $§— $— $— $— §$— $323
JPMorgan Chase term loan. . ............... 149 2 1 23 73 50 —
Convertible subordinated debentures ......... 135 — — — — — 135
Database financing agreement............... 9 5 4 — — - —
Other ..... ... ... 4 — 1 1 — 1 1
Total long-term debt commitments ........ 620 7 6 24 73 51 459
Other commitments:
Information technology outsourcing contracts . ... 1,118 175 164 142 133 130 374
Operating leases .......... ..o, 107 27 23 21 17 8 11
Total other commitments................. 1,225 202 187 163 150 138 385
Total contractual cash obligations.............. $1,845 $209 $193  $187 $223  §$189 $844

Convertible Subordinated Debentures. We have $135 million in aggregate principal amount of 3%
convertible subordinated debentures due in 2032. The debentures are convertible into 6,428,566
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shares of common stock under certain conditions, including satisfaction of a market price condition
for our common stock, satisfaction of a trading price condition relating to the debentures, upon
notice of redemption, or upon specified corporate transactions. Each $1,000 of the debentures is
convertible into 47.619 shares of our common stock. The market price condition for conversion of the
debentures is satisfied if the closing sale price of our common stock exceeds 110% of the conversion
price (which is calculated at $23.10 per share) for the debentures for at least 20 trading days in the
30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of any fiscal quarter. In the event that the
market price condition is satisfied during any fiscal quarter, the debentures are convertible, at the
option of the holder, during the following fiscal quarter. The market price condition is evaluated each
quarter to determine whether the debentures will be convertible at the option of the holder during
the following fiscal quarter. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, the market price
condition described above was satisfied for the quarters ended September 30, 2003 and December 31,
2003. As a result, the debentures were convertible during the quarter ended December 31, 2003 and
remain convertible at the option of the holder at any time during the quarter ended March 31, 2004.
While no debentures were converted as of December 31, 2003, they are considered common stock
equivalents and are included in the calculation of weighted average shares outstanding on a diluted
basis for the fourth quarter and fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. All share and per share
amounts disclosed above reflect the retroactive effects of the two-for-one common stock split in the
form of a stock dividend that was effective January 20, 2004. See Note 6 “Stockholders’ Equity”.

Beginning in October 2007, we may redeem for cash all or any portion of the debentures, at a
purchase price of 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest, upon not less than 30 nor more
than 60 days’ written notice to the holders. Beginning in October 2007, and in successive 5-year
increments, our holders may require us to repurchase the debentures for cash at a repurchase price of
100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest. Qur payment obligations under the debentures
are subordinated to our senior indebtedness, and effectively subordinated to all indebtedness and
other liabilities of our subsidiaries.

10%% Senior Notes. We have $325 million in aggregate principal amount of 10%% senior notes
due in 2009. The 10%% senior notes were issued in May 2002 at 99.389% of the aggregate principal
amount representing a discount of $3 million that is being amortized over the term of the notes. In
December 2003, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the debt agreement, we redeemed
$175 million in principal of the senior notes at a redemption price equal to 110.750%, plus accrued
and unpaid interest on the notes as of the redemption date. We expensed approximately $28 million
in connection with the redemption, including the pro-rata write-off of the initial discount, the
redemption premium and other fees and expenses associated with the transaction. We may redeem
the remaining 10%% senior notes at any time on or after June 1, 2006 at an initial redemption price
equal to 105.375% of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. The redemption price
will thereafter decline annually. Additionally, at any time on or prior to June 1, 2006, we may
redeem the 10%% senior notes upon a change of control, as defined in the indenture for the notes, at
100% of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest and a “make-whole” premium.

Certain of our domestic, unregulated subsidiaries fully and unconditionally guarantee the

10%% senior notes. Prior to September 15, 2003, some of our domestic, unregulated subsidiaries were
restricted from guaranteeing the 10%% senior notes by the terms of the FHP senior notes. As the
FHP senior notes were repaid in full on September 15, 2003, these subsidiaries now fully and
unconditionally guarantee the 10%% senior notes. See “FHP Senior Notes” below and Note 15,
“Financial Guarantees.”
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In April 2003, we entered into an interest rate swap on $300 million of our 10%% senior notes for
the purpose of hedging the fair value of our indebtedness. This fair value hedge is accounted for
using the short-cut method under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, whereby the hedge is reported in our balance sheets at fair value, and the carrying
value of the long-term debt is adjusted for an offsetting amount representing changes in fair value
attributable to the hedged risk. Under the terms of the agreement, we make interest payments based
on the three-month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 692 basis points and receive
interest payments based on the 103%% fixed rate. Our rate under the swap agreement was 8.09%, at
December 31, 2003 which is based on a 90-day LIBOR of 1.17% plus 692 basis points. The three-
month LIBOR rate we use to determine our interest payments under the swap agreement was first
established on June 2, 2003 and resets every three months thereafter, until expiration in June 2009.

Senior Credit Facility. In June 2003, we replaced our senior credit facility with a new syndicated
facility with JPMorgan Chase Bank serving as the Administrative Agent. The new facility consists of
a $150 million term loan, which matures on June 3, 2008, and a $150 million revolving line of credit,
which matures on June 3, 2006. We used the proceeds from the term loan to repay the $131 million
outstanding under the prior facility. The remaining $19 million was used to pay fees and expenses
relating to the new facility and for general corporate purposes. As of December 31, 2003, we had
$149 million outstanding on the term loan and no balance outstanding on the revolving line of credit.
We borrowed and repaid $3 million under the revolving line of credit during the vear ended
December 31, 2003.

On December 17, 2003 our senior credit facility was amended to provide for reduced interest rates
per annum applicable to term loan borrowings, with the amount of margin spread for the borrowing
being determined by our current debt ratings. The amended applicable rates are, at our option, either
JPMorgan Chase Bank’s prime rate (or, if greater, the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5%) which we
refer to as the alternative base rate, plus a margin spread of 1.25% to 1.75% per annum, or the
LIBOR for the applicable interest period, plus a margin spread of 2.25% to 2.75% per annum. All of
our borrowings under the term loan are currently LIBOR borrowings, and the current margin spread
on our term loan borrowings is 2.50%. As of December 31, 2003, our term loan rate was 3.68% per
annum, which is based on a 90-day LIBOR of 1.18% plus the applicable margin spread of 2.50%.
The interest rates per annum under the senior credit facility applicable to revolving credit borrowings
are, at our option, either the alternate base rate plus a margin spread of between 1.5% to 2.75% per
annum, or the LIBOR for the applicable interest period plus a margin spread of between 2.5% to
3.75% per annum, with the amount of the margin for any borrowing being determined based on
current credit ratings for the debt under the senior credit facility. Qur current margins for revolving
credit borrowings are 2.25% per annum for alternate base rate borrowings and 3.25% per annum for
LIBOR borrowings.

The terms of the senior credit facility contain various covenants customary for financings of this type
which place restrictions on our and/or our subsidiaries’ ability to incur debt, pay dividends, create
liens, make investments, optionally repay, redeem or repurchase our securities, and enter into
mergers, dispositions and transactions with affiliates. The senior credit facility also requires us to
meet various financial ratios, including a minimum net worth requirement, a minimum fixed-charge
coverage requirement and a maximum leverage ratio. At December 31, 2003, we were in compliance
with all of these covenants. See “FHP Senior Notes” below and Note 15, “Financial Guarantees.”

Certain of our domestic, unregulated subsidiaries provide guarantees and have granted security
interests to the lenders in substantially all of their personal property in order to secure our obligations
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under the senior credit facility. We have also pledged the equity of certain of our subsidiaries to the
lenders. Prior to September 15, 2003, some of our domestic, unregulated subsidiaries were restricted
from guaranteeing the senior credit facility by the terms of the FHP senior notes. As the FHP senior
notes were repaid in full on September 15, 2003, these subsidiaries now fully and unconditionally
guarantee the senior credit facility.

Revolving
Term Loan Credit
Facility Facility Total
(Amounts in millions)

Balance at December 31,2001 .. ...... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... ... .. $ 650 $ 35 $ 705
Proceeds applied from funding of 10%:% senior notes .............. (315) (54) (369)
Scheduled payments ............cc.iiiiiiini i (60) — (60)
Proceeds applied from funding of convertible subordinated debentures (53) — (53)
Proceeds applied from sales of property ........... ... . ... .. ... (35) — 3%
Payments under amendment to senior credit facility ............... (32) — (32)
Proceeds applied from equity commitment arrangement............ @ _ 1y (s
Balance at December 31, 2002. . ............ ... ... ... ..., _ 151 = _ 151
Scheduled payments under prior senior credit facility . ............. (20) — (20)
Repayment of outstanding balance under prior senior credit facility . . (131) — (131)
Proceeds from borrowing under new senior credit facility........... 150 3 153
Scheduled payments under new senior credit facility .............. _ ) N C))
Balance at December 31, 2003. . ... ....... ... . ... ... .. ... 149 $ — $ 149

FHP Senior Notes. In September 2003, we paid in full the senior notes that we assumed when we
acquired FHP International Corporation, or FHP, in 1997. As a result, some of our domestic,
unregulated subsidiaries which were previously restricted from guaranteeing our 10%% senior notes
and our senior credit facility by the provisions of the FHP senior notes, now fully and unconditionally
guarantee the 10%% senior notes and the senior credit facility. See Note 15, “Financial Guarantees”.

Database Financing Agreements. As of December 31, 2003, we had $9 million outstanding under
various financing agreements related to the purchase of database licenses, financial accounting system
software and related maintenance in connection with the implementation of our information
technology, or IT, initiatives. Payments under the financing agreements are due quarterly through
July 2005. The interest imputed on the payment plan agreement ranges from 4% to 5.3%.

Letters of Credit. Letters of credit are purchased guarantees that assure our performance or
payment to third parties in connection with professional liability insurance policies, lease
commitments and other potential obligations. Letters of credit commitments totaled $19 million at
December 31, 2003 and 2002. As of December 31, 2003, our letters of credit commitments were
backed by funds deposited in restricted cash accounts.

Information Technology Outsourcing Contracts. In December 2001, we entered into a 10-year
contract to outsource our IT operations to International Business Machines Corporation, or IBM.
Under the contract, IBM is the coordinator of our IT outsourcing arrangement, and will provide IT
services and day-to-day management of our IT infrastructure, including data center operations,
support services and information distribution. In January 2002, we entered into a 10-year contract to
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outsource our IT software applications maintenance and enhancement services to Keane, Inc., or
Keane. Our remaining cash obligations for base fees under these contracts over the initial 10-year
terms is $1.1 billion, assuming our actual use of services equals the baselines specified in the
contracts. However, because we have the ability to reduce services from the vendors under the
contracts, our ultimate cash commitment may be less than the stated contract amounts. The
contracts also provide for variable fees, based on services provided above certain contractual
baselines. During 2002, we entered into additional services contracts with IBM totaling $127 million
over the remaining term of the original contract. Additionally, in the event of contract termination,
we would be responsible to pay termination fees to IBM and Keane. These termination fees decline
as each successive year of the contract term is completed. In connection with these outsourcing
agreements, we transitioned approximately 550 employee positions to IBM and Keane in March
2002.

In connection with the IBM outsourcing contract, we sold IBM computer equipment with a net book
value of $42 million in December 2001. The consideration we received from IBM for the sale
included $25 million in cash, and a note receivable for the $17 million balance. We will collect the
note receivable, which bears interest at approximately 7% per annum, in the form of credits against
our future base fee payments from 2002 through 2005. We used the $25 million we received from
IBM to repay indebtedness under the term loan facility of our senior credit facility in January 2002.

Operating Leases. We lease office space and equipment under various non-cancelable operating
leases. Rent expense totaled $46 million in 2003, $76 million in 2002 and $57 million in 2001.

6. Stockholders’ Equity

Stockholder Rights Agreement. In November 1999, our board of directors adopted a stockholder
rights agreement to protect stockholder rights in the event of a proposed takeover. The board of
directors declared a dividend of one right for each share of our common stock outstanding as of
November 19, 1999. The right entitles the registered holder to purchase from PacifiCare 1/100th of
a share of Series A junior participating preferred stock at a price of $180 per 1/100th of a preferred
share. Similar rights will generally be issued in respect of common stock issued after November 19,
1999.

Stock Split. On December 19, 2003, our board of directors approved a two-for-one split of our
common stock in the form of a stock dividend. On January 20, 2004, we distributed one additional
share of common stock for every share of common stock outstanding to stockholders of record as of
the close of business on January 7, 2004. We had a sufficient number of authorized but unissued
shares of common stock to effect this stock split. The par value of our common stock after the split
remained at $0.01 per share, and additional paid-in capital was reduced by the par value of the
additional common shares issued. The rights of the holders of these securities were not otherwise
modified. In accordance with SFAS 128, Earnings per Share, which requires retroactive adjustment
of per share computation of stock split that occurs after the close of the period but before issuance of
the financial statements, all shares, per-share and market price data related to our common shares
outstanding and under employee stock plans reflect the retroactive effects of this two-for-one stock
split in the form of a dividend.

Common Stock Offering. In November 2003, we issued 7.6 million shares of our common stock in
a public offering. The net proceeds from the offering, approximately $200 million after underwriting
fees, were used to redeem $175 million in principal of the company’s outstanding 10%% senior notes.
See Note 5, “Long-Term Debt and Other Commitments”.
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Restricted Stock Awards. We granted approximately 1,489,000 and 106,000 shares of restricted
common stock, including stock deferred into restricted stock units, as part of an employee recognition
and retention program during the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Restrictions on these shares will expire and related charges are being amortized as earned over the
vesting period, not to exceed four years. A total of approximately 108,000 shares were forfeited for
the year ended December 31, 2003. No shares were forfeited during the year ended December 31,
2002.

All shares of restricted stock were issued from our 1996 Officer and Key Employee Stock Option
Plan, as amended. See Note 9, “Employee Benefits”. The amount of unearned compensation
recorded is based on the market value of the shares on the date of issuance and is included as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity, which was approximately $17 million and $2 million as
of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Expenses related to the vesting of restricted stock
(charged to selling, general and administrative expenses) were $5.3 million and $1.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Acqua Wellington Arrangement. In December 2001, we entered into an equity commitment
arrangement with Acqua Wellington North American Equities Fund Ltd., or Acqua Wellington, an
institutional investor, for the purchase by Acqua Wellington of up to 13.8 million shares, or

$150 million in our common stock. This equity commitment arrangement expired in June 2003.

Treasury Stock. In December 2003, our board of directors approved a resolution to retire all
outstanding shares of the Company’s treasury stock. As a result of this resolution, approximately
23 million shares were permanently retired and have been added back to our shares authorized for
future issuance.

7. Goodwill and Intangible Assets.

In the first quarter of 2002, we recognized $897 million (net of $32 million of deferred tax liability
reversals) of goodwill impairment as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle upon
adopting FASB Statement No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Under the new rules,
goodwill is no longer amortized, but is subject to impairment tests on an annual basis or more
frequently if impairment indicators exist. Under the guidance of FASB Statement No. 142, we used
a discounted cash flow methodology to assess the fair values of our reporting units as of January 1,
2002. For reporting units with book equity values that exceeded the fair values, we performed a
hypothetical purchase price allocation. Impairment was measured by comparing the goodwill derived
from the hypothetical purchase price allocation to the carrying value of the goodwill balance. The
same methodology was used for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002. Based on the results
of our impairment testing, no additional adjustments were required.

The following table reflects consolidated results adjusted as though the adoption of the SFAS
No. 142 non-amortization of goodwill provisions occurred for the year ended December 31, 2001,
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after adjusting for the effect of the two-for-one stock split in the form of a stock dividend that was
effective January 20, 2004 as discussed in Note 6 “Stockholders’ Equity”:

Year Ended December 31, 2001
As Reported Adjustments As Adjusted

(Amounts in thousands,
except per-share data)

Net INCOME . v ot e e $19,006 $57,411 $76,417
Basic earnings pershare . ........ .. ... ...l $ 028 $ 085 $ 113
Diluted earnings per share ...................... $ 0.27 $ 084 $ 112

Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their useful lives. We estimate our
intangible asset amortization will be $20 million in 2004, $16 million in 2005, $15 million in 2006,
$15 million in 2007 and $14 million in 2008. The following table sets forth balances of identified
intangible assets, by major class, for the periods indicated:

Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net Balance

(Amounts in thousands)

Intangible assets:

Employer groups. ...........o i $243,820  $124,170 $119,650
Provider networks ... ... ... i 121,051 21,080 99,971
Other ..o 10,729 9,242 1,487

Balance at December 31,2003 ............... $375,600 $154,492 $221,108

Intangible assets:

Employer groups. .....c.coiiii i $243,820  $105,406 $138,414
Provider networks . ... ... ... .. ..t . 121,051 17,986 103,065
Other oo 10,729 9,192 1,537

Balance at December 31,2002 . .............. $375,600 $132,584 $243,016




PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. Income Taxes

The tax effects of the major items recorded as deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

2003 2002
(Amounts in thousands)

Current deferred tax assets (liabilities):

ACCTUCA EXPEISES + .\ v v v et e e e $ 44243 § 48,632
Medical claims and benefits payable ....................... 63,295 28,453
ReStructuring . ... .ottt e e et 7,325 11,275
Accrued COmMpPensation . . .. ... vnee et 21,389 16,588
Stock-based compensation. . ......... ... .. ... . oo 4,903 —
Provider receivables . ........ ... ... 20,702 14,204
Prepaid expenses. ... ...t e (12,673) (10,130)
State franchise taxes ............ ..o i i i 6,963 2,039
Unrealized gains on marketable securities. .................. (11,043) (13,027)
Other o e 4,713 2,724

$ 149817 § 100,758

Non-current deferred tax (liabilities) assets:

Identifiable intangibles................... ... .. ........... $ (84,816) § (91,402)
Goodwill amortization(1) ........ ... .. ... .. i 7,347 6,860
Depreciation and software amortization..................... (27,308) (21,131)
O Rer i e e — 1,883

$(104,777) $(103,790)

(1) Non-current deferred tax liabilities for 2002 reflect a $32 million adjustment for the tax impact
of the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. See Note 7, “Goodwill and
Intangible Assets.”

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following:

2003 2002 2001
{Amounts in thousands)
Current:
Federal ........ .. . . . . $165,009  $60,063  $34,286
State . e 27,975 4,170 8,051
Total current ......... .. . i 192,984 64,233 42,337
Deferred:
Federal ........... .0 . (39,148) 15,321 959
State . (6,940) 3,238 (4,925)
Total deferred ......... ... ... ... ... .. ... (46,088) 18,559 (3,966)
Provision for income taxes ...............c.oiua.. $146,896  $82,792  $38,371
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Reconciliation of the U.S. statutory income tax rate to our effective tax rate is as follows:
2003 2002 2001

Computed expected provision ........ .. ... .. L 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Amortization of intangibles ........... ... ... oo — — 323
Tax-exempt INTETESt .. ... 0ottt et e (L.6) (2.1) (B.6)
State taxes, net of federal benefit ........... ... .. ... .. ... ... ..., 3.7 3.2 3.6
Nondeductible eXpenses .. ...t 0.3 0.9 3.2
Other, net. ... .. o i S 03 03 24
Provision for inCOme taxes .. ... vt 37.7% 31.3% 61.9%

9. Employee Benefit Plans

Savings and profit-sharing plans. Most of our employees may participate in our savings and profit-
sharing plan. Features of the plan in 2003 were as follows:

» Participants could defer up to 15% of annual compensation;
» We matched one-half of the deferral, up to 3% of annual compensation per employee; and

+ We automatically contributed 3% of annual compensation per employee to all employees
participating in the plan.

The plan authorizes us to contribute a discretionary amount to each employee’s account, generally
based on a percentage of pretax income. We did not contribute a discretionary amount in 2003, 2002
or 2001. Charges to income for the plan were $21 million in 2003, $18 million in 2002 and

$19 million in 2001.

Our Statutory Restoration Plan allows executive officers to defer the portion of their pay that due to
statutory limitations are not available for deferral, and also to receive excess matching contributions,
profit-sharing contributions and discretionary contributions in the same percentages as those provided
by the 401 (k) plan.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. We maintain an unfunded, nonqualified executive
pension plan covering certain senior executives. This plan provides defined benefits based on years of
service and final average compensation. The accumulated benefit obligation for the Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan at the end of 2003 and 2002 was $10,043,000 and $1,715,000
respectively, of which $2,838,000 and $1,136,000 respectively, were the net amounts recognized
(excludes unrecognized prior service costs which offsets the accumulated benefit obligation).

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. In September 2001, our board of directors adopted a non-
compensatory employee stock purchase plan, or ESPP. The ESPP provides that up to 2,200,000
shares of our common stock can be sold to our employees, after adjusting for the effect of the two-
for-one stock split in the form of a stock dividend that was effective January 20, 2004. Features of
the plan in 2003 were as follows:

+ Participants could have up to 15% of their after-tax earnings withheld and applied to the purchase
of these shares; ‘

» The purchase price was 85% of the lower of the market price of our common stock on the offering
date (generally the first day of each offering period), or on the purchase date;

F-21




PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

« Each offering period was two years, and there were four purchase dates within each offering
period; and '

« Purchase dates were the last day of each six-month purchase period within the offering period.

Approximately 1,500 employees are currently participating in this plan.

Equity Incentive Plans.

Employee Plans. As of December 31, 2003, under the 2000 and 1996 Employee Plans, we could
award officers and employees the following equity incentives:

» Options to purchase shares of common stock at no less than 100% of the market price on the date
the options are granted;

» Shares of restricted stock that could be deferred into restricted stock units; and
« Stock appreciation rights.

Stock options typically vest over four years in equal increments, and expire 10 years after the grant
date. In late 2001, we granted approximately four million options that vested over two years. Awards
under the Employee Plans are generally subject to continuous employment. As of December 31,
2003, approximately 5.8 million shares were available for awards under the Employee Plans. All
applicable share amounts reflect the two-for-one stock split in the form of a stock dividend that was
effective January 20, 2004.

In 2003, we began to award restricted stock and stock units as part of the annual performance cycle
to enhance stock ownership, assist in retaining key talent and to reduce the use of our shares. These
awards typically vest over four years. For our executive officers, the awards were subject to a
mandatory minimum four-year deferral into restricted stock units. Upon expiration of the deferral
period, executive officers receive shares of common stock equal to the number of vested shares
underlying the restricted stock units. The deferral provisions promote stock retention and significant
career share holdings. Vesting of the restricted stock and stock units accelerates upon the occurrence
of certain events.

Restricted stock units are deferred under our Stock Unit Deferred Compensation Plan, or Stock Unit
Plan. Under the Stock Unit Plan, executive officers may also defer all or a portion of their annual
bonus and signing bonus. The chief executive officer could also defer all or a portion of his salary.
Salary and bonus deferrals are converted into units of our common stock. The number of stock units
converted is equal to the amount of bonus or salary deferred, multiplied by a risk premium, then
divided by the price of our common stock on a predetermined date selected by the Compensation
Committee. Distributions are made in shares of common stock.

Premium Plan. As of December 31, 2003, 0.4 million of the vested premium options were
outstanding and will expire in 2007, The balance of the premium options expired because the closing
market price of our common stock did not reach $57.00 prior to October 6, 2002. There are no
shares available for future awards under the Premium Plan. All applicable share and per share
amounts reflect the two-for-one stock split in the form of a stock dividend that was effective
January 20, 2004.
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Director Plans. As of December 31, 2003 under the 2000 and 1996 Director Plans, we could grant
non-employee directors the following stock incentives, after adjusting for the effect of the two-for-one
stock split in the form of a stock dividend that was effective January 20, 2004:

 Options to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock are automatically granted annually to all non-
employee members of the board other than the Chairman of the Board on June 30, at no less than
100% of the market price on the date the options are granted;

« Options to purchase 20,000 shares of common stock are automatically granted annually to the non-
employee Chairman of the Board on June 30, at no less than 100% of the market price on the
date the options are granted;

* Options to purchase up to 30,000 shares of common stock are awarded when new members are
elected or appointed to the board of directors;

« Options to purchase shares of common stock may be granted on a discretionary basis; and

+ Stock units issued as a deferral of up to 50% of directors’ annual retainer, until directors reach
targeted stock ownership levels.

All stock options, except for initial grants to new board members, vest immediately on the grant
date, but the associated common stock may not be sold within six months after the grant date.
Effective October 23, 2003, the initial grants to new board members vest one-third on the date of
grant and one-third on the first and second anniversary of the date of grant. As of December 31,
2003, approximately 0.2 million shares were available for awards under the Director Plans.

Our stock incentive plans provide for accelerated exercisability of plan awards if certain events
relating to a change of control, merger, sale of assets or liquidation of PacifiCare were to occur.

Prior to 2003, we accounted for our stock option plans under Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations. Effective January 1,
2003, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, or FAS 123, on a prospective basis. Under the prospective method
provisions of FASB Statement No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and
Disclosure, or FAS 148, the recognition provisions will be applied to all employee awards granted,
modified or settled after January 1, 2003.

Pro forma information regarding net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share, as presented in
Note 2, “Significant Accounting Policies,” is required by FAS 123, as amended by FAS 148, and
has been determined as if we had accounted for our employee stock options and ESPP under the fair
value method of that Statement upon its initial effective date. The fair value for these options was
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estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions for 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Employee Stock Options ESPP
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Expected dividend vield . .................... 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% NA
Risk-free interest rate . ...................... 4% 3% 3% 1% 2% NA
Expected stock price volatility . ............... 80% 83% 110% 59% 67% NA
Expected term until exercise upon vesting
(YEAIS) vttt 2 2 2 0.5 0.5 NA
Weighted average fair value of options on grant
date:
Granted at market prices .................. $9.11  $6.75 $6.30 $11.49 $504 NA

Nonqualified stock option activity for all plans was as follows, after adjusting for the effect of the
two-for-one stock split in the form of a stock dividend that was effective January 20, 2004:

Weighted Average Options Weighted Average

Options Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 31, 2000 ... 17,829,176 $32.94 7,614,956 $36.27
Granted at market price............. 5,524,324 $ 8.88 — $ —
Exercised ...........cccooiiiiinns (9,600) $ 8.63 — $ —
Canceled ......................... (7,359,198) $36.08 — $ —
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 ... 15,984,702 $23.20 7,195,034 $31.91
Granted at market price............. 3,782,344 $ 9.73 —_ $ —
Exercised .........oooviiininian. (413,126) $ 7.61 — $ —
Canceled ....... ... ... ... ..... (5,826,284) $30.39 — $ —
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 ... 13,527,636 $16.81 6,628,204 $22.34
Granted at market price............. 1,712,400 $15.51 — $ —
Exercised .........coovveunnnao.. .. (3,205,864) $11.16 — $ —
Canceled ....... e (966,420) $23.48 — $ —
Qutstanding at December 31, 2003 ... 11,067,752 $17.66 6,383,252 $21.55

F-24




PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The following is a summary of information about options outstanding and options exercisable at
December 31, 2003:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number Average Average Number Average

Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life(1) Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$6.03-39.73 .......... 4,817,690 8 $ 8.28 2,473,190 $ 7.98
$11.09-8$19.25........ 2,280,576 9 $13.76 346,326 $13.67
$22.66-630.88 ........ 2,293,832 T $25.87 1,888,082 $25.56
$32.78 - $46.25 ... ... .. 1,675,654 4 $38.69 1,675,654 $38.69

11,067,752 6,383,252

(1) Weighted average contractual life remaining in years.

10. Impairment, Disposition, Restructuring, Office of Personnel Management and Other Charges
(Credits)

We recognized net pretax (credits) charges in 2003, 2002 and 2001 as follows:

Pretax Diluted Loss
Quarter (Credits) Net-of-Tax (Earnings)
Recognized Charges Amount per Share(1)
(Amounts in millions, except per share data)
2003
Restructuring change in estimate. . ........ Total Fourth $ (1.9) $(1.2) $(0.01)
2002
OPMcredits. . ..o .. Total First $(12.9) $(8.1) $(0.11)
Write-off of unamortized senior credit
facility fees and paid advisory fees ...... Total Second 18.3 11.4 0.16
OPMcredits .. ..ot Fourth (11.1) 6.9) (0.09)
Loss on disposition of subsidiary .......... Fourth 9.0 5.6 0.07
Write-off of unamortized senior credit
facility fees and paid advisory fees ...... Fourth 1.1 0.7 0.01
Restructuring change in estimate.......... Fourth (0.7) (0.5) —

Total impairment, disposition,
restructuring, OPM and other charges
{eredits) ......... i Total Fourth (1.7) (L.1) (0.01)

Total net 2002 impairment, disposition,
restructuring, OPM and other
charges (credits) ................. $ 37 $ 22 $ 0.04
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Pretax Diluted Loss
Quarter (Credits) Net-of-Tax (Earnings)
Recognized Charges Amount per Share(1)
(Amounts in millions, except per share data)
2001
Gain from contract termination agreement. . First $ (1.2) $(0.6) $(0.01)
Restructuring change in estimate.......... First 0.3 0.1 —
Total First (0.9) (0.5) (0.01)
Restructuring change in estimate.......... Total Second (0.3) (0.1) —
Debt offering costs........... ...t Third 3.1 1.5 0.02
Restructuring change in estimate.......... Third (0.2) (0.1) —
Total Third 2.9 14 0.02
Restructuring charge .................... Fourth 59.9 38.5 0.56
Restructuring change in estimate.......... Fourth (0.5) (0.2) —
Total impairment, disposition,
restructuring and other charges ....... Total Fourth 594 38.3 0.56
Total net 2001 impairment, disposition,
restructuring, OPM and other ,
charges (credits) ................. $ 61.1 $39.1 $ 0.57

|

(1) The year to date diluted loss (earnings) per share is computed using the year to date weighted
average common shares and equivalents outstanding and may not agree to the sum of each
quarter. Per share amounts reflect the retroactive effects of the two-for-one common stock split
in the form of a stock dividend that was effective January 20, 2004.

2003. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we recognized a credit of $1.9 million for changes in our
December 2001 restructuring estimates related to severance and related employee benefits.

2002. We recognized net pretax charges of $4 million as described below:

Write-Off of Unamortized Senior Credit Facility Fees. During 2002, we recognized other charges of
$19 million for the write off of unamortized senior credit facility fees in connection with our
repayment of a significant portion of our senior credit facility, and for advisory fees paid in
connection with the restructuring of our long-term debt.

OPM. During 2002, we recognized OPM credits of $24 million, representing a reduction to the net
liability we had established in prior periods as a result of settlements with the OPM, the

U.S. Department of Justice, or DOJ, and a private individual to settle disputes and a private lawsuit
under the False Claims Act regarding alleged premium overcharges to the government for the period
1990 through 1997, primarily related to contracts held by FHP health plans prior to our acquisition
of FHP in 1997. '

Loss on Disposition of Subsidiary. During the fourth quarter of 2002, we recognized disposition
charges of $9 million, in connection with the sale of assets of our subsidiary, MEDeMORPHUS

Healthcare Solutions, Inc. The charge included severance, legal and other expenses related to the
disposition. See Note 4, “Dispositions.”
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Restructuring Change in Estimates. During the fourth quarter of 2002, we recognized a credit of
$0.7 million for changes in our December 2001 restructuring estimates related to severance and
related employee benefits.

2001. We recognized net pretax charges of $61 million as described below:

Debt offering costs. During the third quarter of 2001, we recognized charges of $3 million for
expenses related to our efforts to obtain senior note financing, which we discontinued during the third
quarter of 2001.

Restructuring Change in Estimates. We recognized changes in our January 2000 and December
2000 restructuring estimates related to severance and related employee benefits. During the third
quarter of 2001, we recognized a credit of $0.2 million for the January estimate. During the second
quarter of 2001, we recognized a credit of $0.1 million for the January estimate and a credit of
$0.2 million for the December estimate. During the first quarter of 2001, we recognized a credit of
$0.1 million for the January estimate, offset by a charge of $0.4 million for the December estimate.

Gain from Contract Termination Agreement. During the first quarter of 2001, we recognized other
credits of $1 million for a gain from a contract termination agreement.

Restructuring Charge. In December 2001, we recognized a restructuring charge of $60 million. Of
the $60 million charge, approximately $34 million represented a liability for cash payments, of which
approximately $22 million was paid during the fourth quarter of 2001 and during the year ended
December 31, 2002. Approximately $20 million of the restructuring charge was for severance and
related employee benefits for 1,450 employees whose positions were eliminated. As of December 31,
2003, approximately 1,240 employees have left the company and 200 employees, whose positions
were eliminated, accepted other positions within the company. During 2003, we made severance
payments totaling approximately $3 million to terminated employees.

The restructuring charge also included approximately $27 million related to the outsourcing of our IT
production and $13 million related to lease terminations.

The following table presents the activity through December 31, 2003, on the restructuring charge we
took in 2001:

Initial Balance at Balance at
Pretax Non-cash 2001 2002  December 31, 2003  Changes in December 31,
Charge Write-off Activity Activity 2002 Payments Estimate 2003

(Amounts in millions)
December 2001 restructuring:
Lease cancellations and

commitments ............. $39.7 $(25.8)$ — $ (8.0) $59 $(31) § — $2.8
Severance and separation

benefits .................. 20.2 — (0.6) (14.0) 5.6 (29) (19) 08
Total December 2001

restructuring .. .......... $59.9 $(25.8)$(0.6)$(22.0) $11.5  $(6.0) $(L9) Ei__é_
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11. Incurred But Not Reported Claims Reserves

The following table presents the roll-forward of our incurred but not reported, or IBNR, claims
reserves as of the periods indicated:

Year Ended
2003 2002 2001
{(Amounts in millions)

IBNR asof January 1 ... ... ..o $ 753 § 808 $ 913
Health care claim expenses incurred during the period:

Related to current year. . ..., 4,682 4,343 4,514

Related to prior years .. ... (104) — (45)

Total incurred ... 4,578 4,343 4,469
Health care claims paid during the period:

Related to current year. . .........oovveueernnneenn.. (3,918)  (3,689)  (3,783)

Related to prior years ........... ... (587) (709) (791)

Total health care claims payments ................... (4,505) (4,398) (4,574)
IBNR as of December 31 ............coviinnin... $ 826 $§ 753 § 3808

Included in IBNR is a provision for adverse claims development. The provision for adverse claims
development at the beginning of each year is released against the health care claims expenses related
to prior periods in each period presented. The provision for adverse claims development is then re-
evaluated based on actuarial calculations and recorded in the current year expense. The release of
the provision for adverse claims development into each year presented was $50 million, $51 million
and $56 million for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

12. Health Care Services and Other Expenses

The following table presents the components of total health care services and other expenses for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Commercial Senior Commercial Senior Commercial Senior
{Amounts in millions)

Capitation expense............ $1,488 $2,704 $1,795 $2,994 $1,977 $3,738
All other health care services

and other expenses.......... 2,782 1,836 2,410 2,110 2,125 2,396
Total health care services and

other expenses ............. $4,270 $4,540 $4,205 $5,104 $4,102 $6,134

13. Contingencies

Provider Instability and Insolvency. Our health care services and other expenses include write-offs
of certain uncollectible receivables from providers, and the estimated cost of unpaid health care
claims normally covered by our capitation payments. Depending on state law, we may be held liable
for unpaid health care claims that were previously the responsibility of the capitated provider and for
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which we have already paid capitation. Insolvency reserves also include estimates for potentially
insolvent providers that we have specifically identified, where conditions indicate claims are not being
paid or claim payments have slowed considerably, and we have determined that it is probable that we
will be required to make the providers’ claim payments. We continue to monitor the financial
condition of our providers where there is perceived risk of insolvency and adjust our insolvency
reserves as necessary. Information provided by provider groups may be unaudited, self-reported
information or may not ultimately be obtained. The balance of our insolvency reserves included in
medical claims and benefits payable totaled $37 million at December 31, 2003 and $46 million at
December 31, 2002.

To reduce insolvency risk, we have developed contingency plans that include shifting members to
other providers and reviewing operational and financial plans to monitor and maximize financial and
network stability. As capitation contracts are renewed for providers we have also taken steps, where
feasible, to have security reserves established for insolvency issues. Security reserves are most
frequently in the forms of letters of credit or segregated funds that are held in the provider’s name in
a third party financial institution. The reserves may be used to pay claims that are the financial
responsibility of the provider.

In Re Managed Care. In mid-2000, various federal actions against managed care companies,
including us, were joined in a multi-district litigation that was coordinated for pretrial proceedings in
the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida. This litigation is known as “In
re Managed Care Litigation.” Thereafter, Dr. Dennis Breen, Dr. Leonard Klay, Dr. Jeffrey Book and
several other health care providers, along with several medical associations, including the California
Medical Association, joined the “In re Managed Care” proceeding as plaintiffs. These health care
providers sued several managed care companies, including us, alleging, among other things, that the
companies have systematically underpaid providers for medical services to members, have delayed
payments, and that the companies impose unfair contracting terms on providers and negotiate
capitation payments that are inadequate to cover the costs of health care services provided.

We sought to compel arbitration of all of Dr. Breen’s, Dr. Book’s and other physician claims against
us. The District Court granted our motion to compel arbitration against all of these claims except for
claims for violations of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act, or RICO (“Direct
RICO Claims”), and for their RICO conspiracy and aiding and abetting claims that stem from
contractual relationships with other managed care companies. On April 7, 2003, the United States
Supreme Court held that the District Court should have compelled arbitration of the Direct RICO
Claims filed by Dr. Breen and Dr. Book. On September 15, 2003, the District Court entered another
ruling on several of our motions to compel arbitration, ordering arbitration of all claims arising out of
our contracts with plaintiffs containing arbitration clauses. The District Court, however, also ruled
that (a) plaintiffs’ RICO conspiracy and aiding and abetting claims against us that stem from
contractual relationships with other managed care companies and (b) plaintiffs’ claims based on
services they provided to our members outside of any contractual relationship with us or assignments
from our members do not arise out of our contracts with plaintiffs and thus do not need to be
arbitrated. As a result, the order to compel arbitration does not cover any claims that may arise
relating to our non-contracted providers. We have filed an appeal from the District Court’s ruling to
the extent it did not compel arbitration of all of plaintiffs’ claims, but no oral argument has been
scheduled on the appeal yet.

On September 26, 2002, the District Court certified a class action in the “In re Managed Care
Litigation.” On November 20, 2002, the United States Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit

F-29




PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

granted our petition to appeal the class certification by the District Court. Oral argument for this
appeal was held on September 11, 2003 and the court has not issued an opinion as of the date of this
report. Discovery in this litigation is currently ongoing. We deny all material allegations and intend to
defend the action vigorously.

PacifiCare of Texas v. The Texas Department of Insurance and the State of Texas. In November
2001, our Texas subsidiary, PacifiCare of Texas, filed a lawsuit against the Texas Department of
Insurance, or TDI, and the State of Texas challenging the TDI’s interpretation and enforcement of
state statutes and regulations that would make Texas a “double-pay” state. The lawsuit relates to the
financial insolvency of three physician groups that had capitation contracts with PacifiCare of Texas.
Under these contracts, the responsibility for claims payments to health care providers was delegated
to the contracted physician groups. We made capitation payments to each of these physician groups,
but they failed to pay all of the health care providers who provided health care services covered by
the capitation payments. On February 11, 2002, after the date we filed our lawsuit, the Attorney
General of Texas or AG, on behalf of the State of Texas and the TDI, filed a civil complaint against
PacifiCare of Texas in the District Court of Travis County, Texas alleging violations of the Texas
Health Maintenance Organization Act, Texas Insurance Code and regulations under the Code and
the Texas Deceptive Trade Practices Consumer Protection Act. The AG’s complaint primarily
alleges that despite its capitation payments to the physician groups, PacifiCare of Texas is still
financially responsible for the failure of the physician groups to pay the health care providers who
provided health care services covered by the capitation payments. The AG sought an injunction
requiring us to comply with state laws plus unspecified damages, civil penalties and restitution.

On July 23, 2003, without the admission of any wrongdoing, our Texas subsidiary entered into a
definitive settlement agreement with the State of Texas, the AG and the TDI. The settlement
agreement provides that all pending litigation and related civil investigations will be stayed for up to
twelve months from the date of execution of the settlement agreement or such additional period as
the parties may mutually agree. While the proceedings are stayed, the parties will seek to settle the
provider creditor claims in the remaining outstanding bankruptcies relating to Medical Select
Management and Heritage Southwest Medical Group and engage in a review of provider claims of
the Heritage Physicians Network, or HPN. We agreed to use our reasonable best efforts to reach
settlements in the bankruptcies and resolve the HPN claims by specified dates and agreed to make
contributions to fund provider creditor claims in the bankruptcies subject to the process set forth in
the definitive settlement agreement.

As part of the settlement, we agreed to make payments totaling $4.25 million, including attorneys
fees totaling $1.25 million to the AG, and administrative services reimbursements totaling

$1.5 million and administrative penalties totaling $1.5 million to the TDI. Of the $4.25 million
payment, $2.45 million was paid in July 2003, and the remaining $1.8 million will be paid upon the
satisfaction of the conditions for the settlement. All amounts paid upon execution of the settlement
agreement will be held in trust pending the effectiveness of the settlement. The settlement will
become effective upon us completing settlements in the two bankruptcies in accordance with the
settlement agreement, timely completion of the HPN claims process, payment of all settlement
amounts to the AG and TDI, and compliance with certain Texas prompt payment obligations with
respect to members enrolled in our commercial HMO plans. Concurrent with the settlement
becoming effective: (i) the parties would enter into a permanent injunction with a term of one year
that will require PacifiCare of Texas to comply with applicable provisions of the Texas prompt
payment obligations with respect to members enrolled in our commercial HMO plans; (ii) all of the
pending litigation between the parties will be dismissed with prejudice or with specified final
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judgments; and (iii) the parties will enter into mutual releases. We cannot provide any assurances
that we will be able to meet the conditions required to cause the settlement to become effective. If
the settlement agreement does not become effective, then we are prepared to resume the litigation.
We believe that recorded liabilities for this matter are adequate, including the satisfaction of all the
terms and conditions of the settlement, or any liabilities that may arise if we are required to resume
the litigation.

OPM Litigation. On April 12, 2002, we resolved issues raised in various audits of our health plans
by the OIG as well as the False Claims investigations of the United States Department of Justice, or
DOJ and a private lawsuit under the False Claims Act. The settlement primarily related to contracts
we acquired through our merger with FHP International Corporation, or FHP, in 1997. As previously
disclosed, the OIG and others alleged that the former FHP Arizona, California, Colorado, Guam and
Ohio HMO subsidiaries, as well as the former FHP Illinois, New Mexico and Utah HMO
subsidiaries that we sold in 1997 and 1998, substantially overcharged the government for premiums
from 1990 through 1997. The allegations were referred to the DOJ for review of potential claims
under the False Claims Act. In addition, a private individual filed a complaint under the False
Claims Act in 1998 that remained under seal until the settlement. The OIG also conducted audits of
our Oregon HMO for contract years 1991 through 1996 and our California HMO for contract years
1993 through 1996 and referred these audits to the DOJ for potential claims under the False Claims
Act. The settlement resolved issues raised in OIG’s various audits of these 10 health plans, as well as
the False Claims investigations of the DOJ and the private lawsuit under the False Claims Act.

We paid $88 million in 2002 and 2003 under the settlement agreement. As part of the settlement, we
received from OPM in the second quarter of 2002 approximately $15 million in premiums that were
either withheld pending resolution of these audits or were not paid by OPM for 2001 and earlier
periods. This settlement and the results of other 2002 OPM audits resulted in OPM credits of

$24 million ($15 million or $0.42 diluted earnings per share, net of tax) that we recorded in 2002,
representing a reduction to the net liability we had established in prior periods. We did not admit to
any wrongdoing as part of the settlement.

Irwin v. AdvancePCS, Inc. et al. On March 26, 2003, Robert Irwin filed a complaint in the
California Superior Court of Alameda County, California, against our PBM company, Prescription
Solutions, as well as nine other PBM companies. On July 17, 2003, the Irwin case was coordinated
with American Federation of State, County & Municipal Employees v. AdvancedPCS, et al, and
transferred to Los Angeles Superior Court for coordinated proceedings. The case purports to be filed
on behalf of non-ERISA health plans and individuals with no prescription drug benefits who have
purchased drugs at retail rates. The first amended complaint, filed on November 25, 2003, alleges
that each of the defendants violated California’s unfair competition law. The complaint challenges
alleged business practices of PBMs, including practices relating to pricing, rebates, formulary
management, data utilization and accounting and administrative processes. The complaint seeks
unspecified monetary damages and injunctive relief. We do not provide PBM services to non-ERISA
plans in California and do not believe we were properly named as a defendant in this litigation. We
deny all material allegations and intend to defend the action vigorously.

Other Litigation. We are involved in various legal actions in the normal course of business,
including claims from our members and providers arising out of decisions to deny or restrict
reimbursement for services and claims that seek monetary damages, including claims for punitive
damages that are not covered by insurance. Qur establishment of drug formularies, support of clinical
trials and PBM services may increase our exposure to product liability claims associated with
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pharmaceuticals and medical devices. Based on current information, including consultation with our
lawyers, we believe any ultimate liability that may arise from these actions, including the In re
Managed Care litigation, would not materially affect our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. However, our evaluation of the likely impact of these actions could change
in the future and an unfavorable outcome, depending upon the amount and timing, could have a
material effect on our results of operations or cash flows of a future period. For example, the loss of
even one claim resulting in a significant punitive damage award could have a material adverse effect
on our business. Moreover, our exposure to potential liability under punitive damage theories may
decrease significantly our ability to settle these claims on reasonable terms.

14. Comprehensive Income

The following tables summarize the components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the
periods indicated:

Income
Tax
Pretax Benefit Net-of-Tax
Amount (Expense) Amount
(Amounts in thousands)
2003:
Change in unrealized gains on marketable securities ... § 2,743 § (1,111) § 1,632
Less: reclassification adjustment for net gains realized
INNEtINCOME .\ttt e e (7,642) 3,095 (4,547)

Other comprehensive income (loss) ................. $ (4,899) § 1984  $(2,915)
2002:

Change in unrealized gains on marketable securities ... $ 36,234  $(13,638) $22,596
Less: reclassification adjustment for net gains realized

IMNELINCOME .« .ottt ettt (4,514) 1,697 (2,817)
Other comprehensive income ...................... $ 31,720  $(11,941) $19,779
2001:

Change in unrealized gains on marketable securities ... § 21,589 § (8,200) $13,389

Less: reclassification adjustment for net gains realized
INNEtINCOME . ...ttt iiaaenns (13,650) 5,187 (8,463)

Other comprehensive income ...................... $ 7,939 § (3,013) §$ 4926

15. Financial Guarantees

Certain of our domestic, unregulated subsidiaries, which we refer to as the Initial Guarantor
Subsidiaries and certain subsidiaries of PacifiCare Health Plan Administrators, Inc., or PHPA, which
we refer to as the PHPA Guarantor Subsidiaries, fully and unconditionally guarantee the

10%.% senior notes. Prior to September 15, 2003, the PHPA Guarantor Subsidiaries were restricted
from guaranteeing the 10%:% senior notes by the terms of the FHP senior notes. As the FHP senior
notes were repaid in full on September 15, 2003, these subsidiaries now fully and unconditionally
guarantee the 10%:% senior notes. The Initial Guarantor Subsidiaries and the PHPA Guarantor
Subsidiaries, excluding MEDeMORPHUS Healthcare Solutions, Inc., are also guarantors of our

F-32




PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

senior credit facility. The following unaudited consolidating condensed financial statements quantify
the financial position as of December 31, 2002 and 2003 and the operations and cash flows for the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 of the Initial Guarantor Subsidiaries and the PHPA
Guarantor Subsidiaries listed below. The following unaudited consolidating condensed balance sheets,
consolidating condensed statements of operations and consolidating condensed statements of cash
flows present financial information for the following entities and utilizing the following adjustments;

Parent — PacifiCare Health Systems, Inc. on a stand-alone basis {carrying investments in
subsidiaries under the equity method); PacifiCare became the parent on February 14, 1997 effective
with the acquisition of FHP.

Initial Guarantor Subsidiaries — PHPA, PacifiCare eHoldings, Inc., SeniorCo, Inc. and
MEDeMORPHUS Healthcare Solutions, Inc. on a stand-alone basis (carrying investments in
subsidiaries under the equity method.)

PHPA Guarantor Subsidiaries — RxSolutions, Inc., doing business as Prescription Solutions,
PacifiCare Behavioral Health, Inc., and SecureHorizons USA, Inc. on a stand-alone basis.

Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries — Represents all other directly or indirectly wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Parent on a consolidated basis.

Consolidating Adjustments — Entries that eliminate the investment in subsidiaries and intercompany
balances and transactions.

The Company — The financial information for PacifiCare Health Systems, Inc. on a condensed
consolidated basis.

Provision For Income Taxes — PacifiCare and its subsidiaries record the provision for income taxes
in accordance with an intercompany tax-sharing agreement. Income tax benefits available to
subsidiaries that arise from net operating losses can only be used to offset the subsidiaries’ taxable
income from prior years in accordance with the Federal Tax Law and taxable income in future
periods.
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(Unaudited)

Initial PHPA
Guarantor Guarantor  Non-Guarantor Consolidating

Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Company
(In thousands)

Operating revenue . ... ... $ 176 ' $ 33,280 $447,687  $11,733,870  $(371,041) $11,843,972
Income from subsidiaries 82,535 153,982 — 16,109 (252,626) —

Total operating revenue 82,711 187,262 447,687 11,749,979 (623,667) 11,843,972
Health care services and

other expenses ........ — 320 294,709 10,416,632 (344,004) 10,367,657
Selling, general and

administrative expenses (724) 160,264 93,434 1,056,545 (21,145) 1,288,374
Impairment, disposition,

restructuring, Office of

Personnel Management

and other charges

(credits), net ......... 3,097 52,254 178 5,628 — 61,157
Operating income (loss) . . 80,338 (25,576) 59,366 271,174 (258,518) 126,784
Interest expense......... (61,332)  (11,974) (62) (2,806) 5,892 (70,282)
Income (loss) before

income taxes......... 19,006 (37,550) 59,304 268,368 (252,626) 56,502
(Benefit) provision for

income taxes ......... — (119,210) 29,440 128,141 — 38,371
Income before

extraordinary gain .. ... 19,006 81,660 29,864 140,227 (252,626) 18,131
Extraordinary gain on

early retirement of debt,

1S — 875 — — — 875
Net income ............ $ 19,006 $ 82,535 $ 29,864 $ 140,227  $(252,626) $ 19,006
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(Unaudited)
Initial PHPA

Guarantor  Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Parent  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries =~ Adjustments  Company

(In thousands)

Operating activities:
Netincome ..........coiiiiiiiii ... $ 19,006 $ 82,535 §$ 29,864 $ 140,227 $(252,626) $ 19,006

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash flows provided by (used in) operating

activities:
Equity in income of subsidiaries ........... (82,535) (153,982) — (16,109) 252,626 —
Amortization of goodwill and intangible

ASSELS . o i — 29,588 499 52,809 — 82,896
Depreciation and amortization............. — 48,063 5,507 12,238 — 65,808

Impairment, disposition, restructuring, Office
of Personnel Management and other '
charges (credits), net .................. 3,097 52,254 (78 5,628 — 61,157

Provision for doubtful accounts ............ — — 47 22,023 — 22,070
Amortization of capitalized loan fees ....... 7,560 — — — — 7,560
{Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and other ................... — (1,141) (134) 7,328 — 6,053
Deferred income taxes ................... — (14,473) 1,112 9,395 — (3,966)
Stock-based compensation expense . ........ 3,632 — — — — 3,632
Gain on early retirement of debt, net ... .. .. — (1,800) — — — (1,800)
Tax benefit realized for stock option exercises 21 — — — — 21
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of
effects from acquisitions and dispositions .. 110,907 (90,283)  (40,875) (203,263) — (223,514)
Net cash flows provided by (used in)
operating activities. .......... .. ... .. 61,688 (49,239) (3,802) 30,276 — 38,923
Investing activities: .
(Purchase) sale of marketable securities, net .. (10,001) 32,004 —_ (212,404) _— (190,401)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment .. .. — (55,735) (3,369) (18,197) — (77,301)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
EQUIPMENT . ..ot — 25,139 _ — — 25,139
Sale (purchase) of marketable securities-
restricted, net . .......... .. i — 10 — (17,775) — (17,765)
Net cash (paid for) acquired from acquisitions — (873) — 373 — (500)
Net cash flows (used in) provided by
investing activities . .................. (10,001) 545 (3,369) (248,003) — (260,828}
Financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt ........ (30,000) — — (284) — (30,284)
Credit facility amendment fees and expenses. .. (12,949) — — — — (12,949)
Purchase of minority interest in consolidated
subsidiary ....... ..ol (8,821) — — — — (8,821)
Proceeds from issuance of common and
treasury stock .. ..ol 83 — — — — 83
Intercompany activity:
Royalty dividends and loans received (paid) — 161,439 — (161,439) — —
Dividends received (paid) ............. ... — 42,300 — (42,300) —_— —
Subordinated loans (paid) received......... — (99,536) — 99,536 — —
Net cash flows (used in) provided by
financing activities . .................. (51,687) 104,203 — (104,487) — (51,971)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents. . — 55,509 (7,171) (322,214) — (273,876}
Beginning cash and equivalents . ............... 54,826 (67,580) 1,264,389 1,251,635
Ending cash and equivalents .................. 3 — $ 110,335 $(74,751) $ 942,175 $ — 8 977,759
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2002

Initial PHPA
Guarantor  Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Parent  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries =~ Adjustments = Company

(in thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents ................. oo % 16,207 $ 151,973 $(47,595) % 831,104 § — $ 951,689
Marketable securities . . .................. — —_ — 1,195,517 — 1,195,517
Receivables, net ........................ 33 (44,362) 124,077 218,523 (8,371) 289,900
Intercompany .......... ... i (537,199) 415,167 137,002 (14,970) — —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets. . . 1,015 24,853 8,596 16,073 (3,732) 46,805
Restricted cash collateral for FHP senior
(Vo] (- 43,346 —_ — — -— 43,346
Deferred income taxes ...o.ooovvvvnn s, — 61,399 3,508 63,108 (27,257) 100,758
Total current assets .............c.vue (476,598) 609,030 225,588 2,309,355 (39,360) 2,628,015
Property, plant and equipment at cost, net . . .. — 99,610 17,890 44,185 — 161,685
Marketable securities — restricted........... 34,812 — — 151,377 — 186,189
Deferred income taxes .. ...o.oooviiia.. — 72,141 6,654 23,090 (101,885) —
Investment in subsidiaries .................. 2,513,858 1,555,158 13,264 (15,453)  (4,066,827) —_—
Goodwill and intangible assets, net .......... —_ 11,923 16,480 1,197,717 — 1,226,120
Other assets. . ... ovvviv et 22,615 25,533 1 975 — 49,124

$2,094,687 $2,373,395 $279,877  §$3,711,246  $(4,208,072) $4,251,133

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Medical claims and benefits payable . ... ... $ — § 17929 §$ 36,522 § 995509 § (5,460) $1,044,500
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . . . . 5,313 253,597 47,971 135,434 (3,673) 438,642
Deferred income taxes ............... ..., — 15,487 553 11,217 (27,257) —
Unearned premium revenue .............. —_ 200 1,353 480,970 (2,971) 479,552
Current portion of long-term debt ......... 60,484 46,546 — 205 — 107,235
Total current liabilities................. 65,797 333,755 86,399 1,623,335 (39,361) 2,069,929
Long-termdebt........................... 587,315 8,109 — 1,537 — 596,961
Convertible subordinated debentures ......... 135,000 — — — — 135,000
Deferred income taxes .. .........o. ... — 100,833 8,445 96,397 (101,885) 103,790
Other liabilities . . .......... .. ... o o — 17,148 — — — 17,148
Stockholders’ equity:
Capital stock . .......co o i il 954 — — — — 954
Unearned compensation.................. (2,000) — — — — (2,000)
Additional paid-in capital ................ 1,560,308 — — — — 1,560,308
Accumulated other comprehensive income . . — — — 21,730 — 21,730
Retained earnings .. ..................... 350,369 — — — — 350,369
Treasury stock....... .o (603,056} — — — —  (603,056)
Equity in income of subsidiaries........... — 1,913,546 185,033 1,968,24'17 (4,066,826) —
Total stockholders’ equity .............. 1,306,575 1,913,546 185,033 1,989,977 (4,066,826) 1,328,305

$2,094,687 $2,373,395 $279,877  $3,711,246  $(4,208,072) $4,251,133
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CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(Unaudited)

Initial PHPA
Guarantor  Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Parent  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Adjustments Company

(In thousands)

Operating revenue . ........... $ (10,346)$ 29,204 $450,770 $11,027,550 $ (340,676) $11,156,502
Income from subsidiaries ... ... (661,977) (556,987) — (4,591) 1,223,555 —
Total operating revenue ... (672,323} (527,783) 450,770 11,022,959 882,879 11,156,502
Health care services and other
EXPENSES . -\t — 19,101 295,370 9,491,872 (320,642) 9,485,701
Selling, general and
administrative expenses. . .. .. (121) 261,742 98,799 1,026,808 (17,068) 1,370,160

Impairment, disposition,
restructuring, Office of
Personnel Management and

other charges (credits), net .. 18,162  (12,687) (89) (1,612) — 3,774
Operating income ............ (690,364) (795,939) 56,690 505,891 1,220,589 296,867
Interest expense . ............. (67,465)  (7,728) — (2,677) 2,966 (74,904)
Income before income taxes ... (757,829) (803,667) 56,690 503,214 1,223,555 221,963
(Benefit) provision for income

TAXES © et — (141,413) 22,275 201,930 — 82,792

(Loss) income before
cumulative effect of a change

in accounting principle ...... (757,829) (662,254) 34415 301,284 1,223,555 139,171
Cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle ........ — — — (897,000) — (897,000)
Net (loss) income............ $(757,829)$(662,254) $ 34,415 $ (595,716) $1,223,555 § (757,829)
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(Unaudited)

Initial PHPA
Guarantor  Guarantor
Parent  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Adjustments

Subsidiaries

Company

(In thousands)

Net (loss) income . ..., $(757,829) $(662,254) $ 34,415 $(595,716) $ 1,223,555 $(757,829)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Equity in income of subsidiaries ...................... 661,977 556,987 — 4,591 (1,223,555) —
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle . . .. — — — 897,000 897,000
Amortization of intangible assets...................... — 1,249 — 22,351 23,600
Deferred income taxes ............covveiiinnnia... — (3,064) 199 21,424 18,559
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment — 15,792 21 (3,020) — 12,793
Marketable and other securities impairment for other than
temporary declines in value ............... ... ..... 11,001 — — 1,542 — 12,543
Employee benefit plan contributions in treasury stock . ... 12,132 — — — — 12,132
Amortization of capitalized loan fees .................. 7,784 — —_ — — 7,784
Provision for doubtful accounts ....................... — — 329 6,017 6,346
Impairment, disposition, restructuring, Office of Personnel
Management and other charges (credits), net......... 18,162 (12,687) (89) (1,612) 3,774
Amortization of notes receivable from sale of fixed assets — (3,107) — — — (3,107)
Tax benefit realized for stock option exercises............. 1,009 — — — — 1,009
Stock-based compensation expense . ............... ... 693 — — — — 693
Amortization of discount on 10%% senior notes ......... 266 — — — — 266
Adjustment to cash received in purchase transaction ... .. — 17 — — — 17
Depreciation and amortization . ....................... — 33,281 6,100 10,903 — 50,284
Changes in assets and liabilities....................... 84 815 (64,224) (9,918) (54,158) — (43,485)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating
ACtiVItieS . ... e 40,010  (138,010) 31,057 309,322 — 242,379
Investing activities:
Purchase of marketable securities-restricted. .............. (78,158) — — (39,210) —  (117,368)
Purchase of marketable securities, net ................... — — — (113,987) —  (113,987)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ............... — (47,596) (3,901) (7,777) — (59,274)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment. . .. — 104 — 12,388 — 12,492
Net cash flows used in investing activities ............ (78,158)  (47,492) (3,901) (148,586) —  (278,137)
Financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt ................... (554,412) — — 104 —  (554,308)
Proceeds from borrowings of long-term debt .............. 496,945 — — — — 496,945
Proceeds from issuance of convertible subordinated
debentures ... 135,000 — — — 135,000
Principal payments on FHP senior notes ................. — (41,750) — — — (41,750)
Credit facility amendment fees and expenses.............. (37,789) — — — — (37,789)
Proceeds from draw down under equity commitment
F:35 807450 1113 1 | N 8,928 — —_ — — 8,928
Proceeds from issuance of common and treasury stock ..... 4,893 —_ — — — 4,893
Payments on software financing agreement ............... — (2,231) — — — (2,231)
Intercompany activity:
Dividends received (paid) ............... . ........... 790 143,399 — (144,189) — —
Royalty dividends and loans received (paid) ............ — 117,613 — (117,613) — —
Subordinated loans (paid) received.................... — (17,179) — 17,179 — —
Capital contributions received (paid) .................. — 27,288 — (27,288) — —
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing
ACHIVILIES . e 54,355 227,140 — (271,807) — 9,688
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents............. 16,207 41,638 27,156 (111,071) — (26,070)
Beginning cash and equivalents . .................. ... .. ... — 110,335 (74,751) 942,175 — 971,759
Ending cash and equivalents ............. ... ... $ 16,207 §$ 151,973 $(47,595) $ 831,104 § — $ 951,689
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2003

(Unaudited)
Initial PHPA
Guarantor Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries = Subsidiaries Adjustments  Company
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and equivalents............ $ — % 242,246 $§ 601 $ 955,575 $ —  $1,198,422
Marketable securities. ........... 37 — — 1,359,683 — 1,359,720
Receivables, net ................ 991 (70,112) 125,622 217,138 (7,696) 265,943
Intercompany .................. 10,110 38,248 24,424 (72,782) —_ —
Prepaid expenses and other current
aSSES . . 8,074 32,033 7,672 13,427 (3,907) 57,299
Deferred income taxes........... (15) 65,497 5,511 107,464 (28,640) 149,817
Total current assets ........... 19,197 307,912 163,830 2,580,505 (40,243) 3,031,201
Property, plant and equipment at
COSE MEt. v vt ettt ie et — 95,805 15,689 37,913 — 149,407
Marketable securities-restricted .. ... 33,436 — — 133,110 — 166,546
Deferred income taxes............. — 80,431 9,327 26,907 (116,665) —
Investment in subsidiaries . ......... 2,376,929 1,713,296 13,264 (7,903) (4,095,586) —
Goodwill and intangible assets, net . . — 11,923 16,480 1,175,809 — 1,204,212
Otherassets .............ooovn... 17,549 26,262 408 23,719 — 67,938
$2,447,111  $2,235,629 $218,998 $3,970,060 $(4,252,494) $4,619,304
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Medical claims and benefits
payable ............... ..., $ — § 15581 $ 50,874 $ 965,704 § (4,659) $1,027,500
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities ................. ... 6,646 249,411 91,098 148,457 (4,802) 490,810
Deferred income taxes........... — 17,010 734 10,896 (28,640) —
Unearned premium revenue ... ... — 254 1,288 497,080 (2,142) 496,480
Current portion of long-term debt 1,500 5,766 —_ 230 — 7,496
Total current liabilities ........ 8,146 288,022 143,994 1,622,367 (40,243) 2,022,286
Long-termdebt .................. 471,221 4,883 — 1,596 — 477,700
Convertible subordinated debentures 135,000 — —_ — — 135,000
Deferred income taxes............. — 117,052 10,968 93,422 (116,665) 104,777
Other liabilities. . ................. — 28,004 — — — 28,004
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock . ................ 848 — — — — 848
Unearned compensation ......... (16,843) — — — — (16,843)
Additional paid-in capital ........ 1,458,310 — — — — 1,458,310
Accumulated other comprehensive
10SS . v 22 — — 18,793 — 18,815
Retained earnings............... 390,407 — — —_ — 390,407
Treasury stock ................. — — — — — —
Equity in income of subsidiaries. . . — 1,797,668 64,036 2,233,882 (4,095,586) —
Total stockholders’ equity .. .... 1,832,744 1,797,668 64,036 2,252,675 (4,095,586) 1,851,537
$2,447,111  $2,235,629 $218,998 $3,970,060 $(4,252,494) 84,619,304
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(Unaudited)

Initial PHPA
Guarantor  Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Parent  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries = Adjustments Company

(In thousands)

Operating revenue . ............ $ 841 § 31,287 $529,607 $10,810,692 $ (363,916)$11,008,511
Income from subsidiaries ....... 339,072 475,286 — 7,550 (821,908) —
Total operating revenue .... 339,913 506,573 529,607 10,818,242  (1,185,824) 11,008,511
Health care services and other. .. — 3,646 363,447 9,019,918 (321,217) 9,065,794
Selling, general and
administrative expenses....... 166 234,129 124,878 1,133,537 (40,168) 1,452,542

Impairment, disposition,
restructuring, Office of
Personnel Management and

other charges (credits), net . .. — 619 (29) (590) — —
Operating income ............. 339,747 268,179 41,311 665,377 (824,439) 490,175
Interest expense .. ............. (96,999)  (5,337) — (726) 2,531 (100,531)
Income before income taxes .... 242,748 262,842 41,311 664,651 (821,908) 389,644
(Benefit) provision for income

TAXES © .ot —  (77,064) 16,308 207,652 — 146,896
Netincome .................. $242,748 $339,906 § 25,003 $§ 456,999 § (821,908)$ 242,748
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(Unaudited)

Initial PHPA
Guarantor  Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Parent  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries  Adjustments  Company

(In thousands)

Operating activities:
Net iNCOME ..ttt e $242,748 $339,906  $25,003 $456,999 $(821,908) $ 242,748
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Equity in income of subsidiaries .................... (339,071) (475,287) — (7,550) 821,908 —
Deferred Income taxes ...........oiviuernaninn. . — 5,354 (1,972) (49,470) — (46,088)
Depreciation and amortization . ..................... — 28,779 6,462 9,472 — 44,713
Expense related to bond redemption................. 28,155 — - — — 28,155
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and

OHET © o o ee et e e — 19877 15 2,436 — 22,328
Amortization of intangible asset .................... — — — 21,908 —_ 21,908
Stock-based compensation expense .................. 19,092 _ —_ — — 19,092
Tax benefit realized for stock option exercises......... 17,838 — — — — 17,838
Provision for doubtful accounts ..................... — 4,213 6,058 — — 10,271
Amortization of capitalized loan fees .............. .. 7,481 — — — — 7,481
Amortization of notes receivable from sale of fixed '

BSSELS . o v e — (5,641) — — — (5,641)
Employer benefit plan contributions in treasury stock. . . 1,363 — — — — 1,363
Amortization of discount on 10%% senior notes ....... 424 — — — — 424
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from

acquisitions and dispositions. ..................... (552,849) 398,268 16,884 187,235 — 49,538

Net cash flows (used in) provided by operating

ACHIVILIES .. e (574,819) 315,469 52,450 621,030 — 414,130
Investing activities:
Purchase of marketable securities, net ................. — — — (169,102) — (169,102)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ............. —  (42,058) (4,268) (5,945) — (52,271)
Sale of marketable securities-restricted, net. .. .......... 1,376 — — 18,267 — 19,643
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment. . — 16 14 — — 30
Net cash flows provided by (used in) investing
activities . ... 1,376  (42,042) (4,254) (156,780) — (201,700)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from equity offering used for redemption of
$17S5 million of senior notes . ............ ... .. .. ... 199,424 — — — —_ 199,424
Principal payments on senior note redemption. .......... (175,000) — — — — (175,000)
Principal payments on long-term debt .............. ... (151,329) — — — — (151,329)
Proceeds from borrowings of long-term debt . .......... . 150,000 — — 150,000
Principal payments on FHP seniornotes ............... —  (43,250) — (43,250)
Use of restricted cash collateral for payment of FHP
SEIIOL MOTES . o\ttt et et ettt e e it 43,250 — — — — 43,250
Proceeds from issuance of common and treasury stock ... 41,146 — — —_ — 41,146
Payments of premium to bondholders for senior note
redemption . ... (18,813) — — — (18,813)
Loan fees .. .. .. . . . . . . (6,949) — — — (6,949)
Payments on software financing agreements............. — (3,683) — — (3,683)
Common stock repurchases ..........covviiii.. (493) — — — — (493)
Intercompany activity:
Dividends received (paid) .............. .. ... ..., .. 476,000 248,083 — (724,083) — —
Royalty dividends and loans received (paid) .......... — 87,576 — (87,576) — —
Capital contributions (paid) recetved ................ — (471,880) — 471,880 —
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing
ACHIVILIES ..o e 557,236 (183,154) — (339,779) — 34,303
Net (decrease) increase in cash and equivalents........... (16,207) 90,273 48,196 124,471 — 246,733
Beginning cash and equivalents .. ........ ... ... ... ... 16,207 151,973 (47,595) 831,104 — 951,689
Ending cash and equivalents ........................... $ —  $242.246 $ 601 $955,575 $ —  $1,198,422
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
PacifiCare Health Systems, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of PacifiCare Health Systems, Inc.
(the Company) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the related consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2003. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at
Item 15(a) (2). These consolidated financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of PacifiCare Health Systems, Inc. at December 31, 2003
and 2002, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the fair value
recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, on a prospective basis for all employee and director awards granted,
modified, or settled on or after January 1, 2003. Also, as discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, the company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, in 2002.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Irvine, California
January 30, 2004
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.

QUARTERLY INFORMATION FOR 2003 AND 2002 (Unaudited)

Quarters Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

2003

Operating revenue . .. .....covovrvveee i onn. $2,739,595  $2,730,234 $2,742,167 $2,796,515

Operating eXpenses . ... ......ovueivreivnieerenais 2,606,994 2,592,108 2,616,912 2,702,322

INCErest EXPENSE. . ..o vttt (19,550) (20,410) (16,924) (43,647)
Income before income taxes .............c.ouvin.. 113,051 117,716 108,331 50,546

Provision for income taxes .. ...t 42 281 44718 40,841 19,056

NetINCOME . ..ot ie et $ 70,770 § 72,998 $ 67,490 $ 31,490

Basic earnings per share(2) ....................... $ 098 § 1.00 % 0.91 $ 0.40

Diluted earnings per share(2) ..................... $ 096 $ 09 $ 0.86 $ 0.36

HMO and other membership(1) ..........0....... 2,897 2,885 2,883 2,912

2002

Operating revenue . .. .............ocooonn.. S $2,863,451  $2,769,360 $2,779,745 $2,743,946

Operating eXpenses .. ..........c.voeeieiiueraes 2,799,250 2,699,744 2,689,750 2,667,117

Interest expense. ...........oo i (16,191) (18,955) (20,205) (19,553)

Impairment, disposition, restructuring, Office of
Personnel Management and other charges (credits),

113 S A U (12,851) 18,336 — (1,711)
Income before income taxes ................ouon.. 60,861 32,325 69,790 58,987
Provision for InCOME taxes . .. .....ovevvvrennrnenn.. 22,701 12,058 26,031 22,002
Income before cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle ... .. ... o o 38,160 20,267 43,759 36,985
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle (897,000) — — —
Net (loss) income . ........... i, $ (858,840) § 20,267 $ 43,759 $ 36,985

Basic (loss) earnings per share(2):
Income before cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle ......... ... ... . $ 055 § 029 § 0.62 $ 0.52
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting

principle . ... ... (12.98) — — —
Basic (loss) earnings pershare .................. $ (1243) $ 0.29 $ 0.62 $ 0.52

Diluted (loss) earnings per share(2):
Income before cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle .......... ..o L $ 055 % 028 % 0.60 $ 0.50
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
pringiple . ... .. L (12.98) — — —
Diluted (loss) earnings per share ................ $ (1243) $ 0.28 $ 0.60 $ 0.50
HMO and other membership(1) .................. 3,330 3,263 3,189 3,138

(1) HMO and other membership as of quarter end.

(2) All applicable per-share amounts reflect the retroactive effects of the two-for-one common stock
split in the form of a stock dividend that was effective January 20, 2004.
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PACIFICARE HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC.

SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For The Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning Provision for Deductions or End of
of Period Doubtful Accounts Write-offs, net Period
(Amounts in thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Years ended December 31:

2003 ... $29,814 10,271 {(16,953) $23,132

2002 .. e $36,230 6,346 (12,762) $29,814

2001 ... $48,989 22,070 (34,829) $36,230
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